DRAFT Environmental impact statement



Village at Po'ipu

Prepared By:



Prepared For: Accepting Authority, State of Hawai'i Land Use Commission Docket No. A05-761 Eric A. Knudsen Trust

January 2006



DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 I	NTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY	1
1.1	INTRODUCTION	2
1.1.	1 Project Profile	2
1.1.	2 Applicant	4
1.1.	3 Planning Consultant	4
1.1.	4 Accepting Authority	4
1.1.	5 Compliance with State of Hawai'i and County of Kaua'i Environmental Laws	7
1.2	STUDIES CONTRIBUTING TO THIS ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT	7
1.3	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	8
1.3.	1 The Village at Poʻipū Summary Description	8
1.3.	2 Summary of Potential Impacts and Proposed Mitigation Measures	8
1.3.	3 Relationship to Land Use Policies	12
1.3.	4 Required Permits and Approvals	13
1.3.	5 Alternatives to the Proposed Action	14
1.3.	6 Probable Adverse Environmental Effects That Cannot Be Avoided	14
1.3.	7 Cumulative and Secondary Impacts	14
1.3.	8 Rationale for Proceeding with the Village at Po'ipū Notwithstanding Unavoidable Effects	14
1.3.	9 Unresolved Issues	15
2.0 I	PROJECT DESCRIPTION	17
21	BACKCROUND INFORMATION	17
2.1	1 I cration	17 17
2.1.	2 Land Ownershin	17 17
2.1.	3 State Land Use District	17 18
21	4 County of Kaya'i General Plan	10 18
2.1.	5 County of Kaya'i Zoning	
2.1.	6 Special Management Area	10 18
2.1.	7 Surrounding Uses	
2.1.	8 Description of the Property	
2.1.	9 History of the Property	
2.2	STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND NEED FOR THE PROJECT	
2.3	GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE VILLAGE AT PO'IPU	
2.3.	1 Objectives	26
2.3.	2 The Village at Po'ivū Description	27
2.3.	3 Land Use Summary	
2.4	DEVELOPMENT TIMETABLE AND PRELIMINARY COSTS	28
2.5	SUSTAINABLE BUILDING DESIGN	29
20 1	DESCRIPTION OF THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT POTENTIAL	
3.0 1	MPACTS AND MITIGATIVE MEASURES	33
л С 1		
3.1		
3.2	GEULUG I AND IUPUGKAPHY	
3.3		
3.3.	1 Sou Conservation Survey	34

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\mathrm{U}}$

3.3.2	Land Study Bureau Detailed Land Classification	
3.3.3	Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i	
3.4	NATURAL HAZARDS	41
3.5	FLORA	
3.6	FAUNA	
3.6.1	Fauna Study	
3.6.2	Critical Habitats	
4.0 4	CCECCMENT OF THE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT DOTEN	
4.0 A	SSESSMENT OF THE HUMAN ENVIKONMENT, POTEN	TIAL IMPACIS,
A	ND MITIGATIVE MEASURES	
4.1	ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES	49
42	CULTURAL RESOURCES	61
4.3	ROADWAYS AND TRAFFIC	
4.4	NOISE	
4.5	AIR OUALITY	72
4.6	VISUAL RESOURCES	75
4.7	SOCIAL & ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS	
4.7.1	Pomulation	
472	Housino	77
473	Community Character	78
474	Employment	79
475	Economic Factors/Covernment Revenues	80
48	INFRASTRI CTURE AND LITH ITIES	
1.0	Water Sustems	
1.0.1	Wasternater System	
1.0.2	Drainage System	
1.0.0	Electrical and Communications Systems	
4.8.5	Solid Wasta	
49	PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES	
491	Police Protection	88
197	Fire Protection	89
4.9.2	Schoole	
19.0	Recreational Facilities	90
105	Health Care Services	
4.9.0		
5.0 R	ELATIONSHIP TO LAND USE PLANS, POLICIES, AND G	CONTROLS 93
E 1		02
5.1	Chanter 242 Harnei'i Daviered Chattates	
5.1.1	Chupter 545, Huwai i Kevisea Statutes	
5.1.2	Suite Lunu Use Luw, Chupter 205, Fuwui i Keviseu Siututes	
5.1.5	Coastal Zone Management Act, Chapter 205A, Hawai i Revised Statutes	
5.1.4	Hawai i State Plan, Chapter 226, Hawai i Kevisea Statutes	
5.1.5		
0.Z	KAUA I COUNT I	
5.2.1	Kaua i County General Plan	
5.2.2 F 2	ADDOMALS AND DEDMITS	
5.3	ALL KOVALS AND LEKNIIS	
6.0 A	LTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED ACTION	
(1		
6.1	NU-ACTION ALTERNATIVE.	
6.2	DOCTRONING ACTION DENDING FURTHER OT UNV	
0.0	TOJITONING ACTION FEINDING FURTHER STUDT	

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\mathrm{U}}$

7.0	CONTEXTUAL ISSUES 119
7.1	RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE SHORT-TERM USES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND THE
	MAINTENANCE AND ENHANCEMENT OF LONG-TERM PRODUCTIVITY119
7.2	CUMULATIVE AND SECONDARY IMPACTS119
7.3	IRREVERSIBLE AND IRRETRIEVABLE COMMITMENTS OF RESOURCES122
7.4	PROBABLE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS THAT CANNOT BE AVOIDED123
7.5	RATIONALE FOR PROCEEDING WITH THE VILLAGE AT PO'IP $ar{ ext{U}}$ NOTWITHSTANDING
	UNAVOIDABLE EFFECTS123
7.6	UNRESOLVED ISSUES
8.0	CONSULTATION
9.0	LIST OF PREPARERS 127
10.0	REFERENCES 129
11.0	COMMENT LETTERS ON THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT
	PREPARATION NOTICE AND RESPONSES

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1:	Regional Location Map	3
Figure 2:	State Land Use District Boundary Amendment Petition Area	5
Figure 3:	Village at Po'ipū Conceptual Master Plan	6
Figure 4:	Тах Мар Кеу	19
Figure 5:	State Land Use Districts	20
Figure 6:	Kaua'i General Plan	21
Figure 7:	Kaua'i County Zoning	22
Figure 8:	Special Management Area (SMA)	23
Figure 9:	Site Photographs	25
Figure 10:	Soil Conservation Service Soil Survey Map	36
Figure 11:	Land Study Bureau (LSB) Agricultural Classifications	37
Figure 12:	Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawaii (ALISH)	39
Figure 13:	Tsunami Evacuation Zone and Overwash from Hurricane 'Iniki 1992	42
Figure 14:	Flood Insurance Rate Map	43
Figure 15:	U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Critical Habitat Areas	47
Figure 16:	Archaeological Sites	50

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1:	List of Anticipated Permits and Approvals	
Table 2:	Project TMKs	
Table 3:	Proposed Land Uses	
Table 4:	Onsite Infrastructure Order-of-Magnitude Cost Estimates	
Table 5:	Comparison of Existing and Future Peak Runoff Conditions	
Table 6:	Kaua'i Complex Schools, Capacity and Enrollments	
Table 7:	List of Anticipated Permits and Approvals	113

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\mathrm{U}}$

LIST OF APPENDICES

- A Botanical Survey
- B Avifaunal and Feral Mammal Survey
- C Archaeological Inventory Survey of the Proposed Po'ipūlani Golf Course and Residential Development
- D Archaeological Inventory Survey for the Makai Portion of Parcel 19
- E Archaeological Inventory Survey for an 8.633-Acre Parcel at Koloa
- F Archaeological Inventory Survey of an Approximately 2.8-Acre Knudsen Trust Parcel
- G Data Recovery and Preservation Plan for the Po'ipūlani Development Area
- H Archaeological Data Recovery of a Portion of the Eric A. Knudsen Trust Lands
- I Data Recovery Plan for State Site 50-30-10-947 Railroad Berm
- J Interim Protection Plan for the Knudsen Trust Lands Phase I
- K Cultural Impact Assessment
- L Traffic Impact Analysis Report
- M Environmental Noise Assessment Report
- N Air Quality Study
- O Market Study, Economic Impact Analysis and Public Costs/Benefits Assessment
- P Preliminary Engineering Report

(This page intentionally left blank.)

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

This Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is prepared pursuant to Chapter 343, Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS), and Title 11, Chapter 200, Administrative Rules, Department of Health, State of Hawai'i. The proposed project is an applicant action by the Eric A. Knudsen Trust (Knudsen Trust) for the development of the Village at Po'ipū residential community comprising approximately 203 acres in Po'ipū, near the southern coast of Kaua'i, Hawai'i. Figure 1 shows a regional location map of the project site.

The preparation of this EIS is being undertaken to address requirements under HRS Chapter 343, as triggered by the inclusion of the improvements to Hapa Road, an unimproved County roadway. The proposed improvements to Hapa Road are required by condition of the County of Kaua'i as part of the zoning amendments granted by Ordinance PM-31-79 and further detailed in Ordinances PM-200-90 and PM-201-90. It is also being prepared in support of a State Land Use District Boundary Amendment (SLUDBA) for a 127.4-acre portion of the project site (see Figure 2).

Figure 3 shows a conceptual master plan for the project. It includes a mix of residential densities as well as archaeological preserves, and parks. The Village at Po'ipū residential communities will be interlaced with landscaped streets and greenway networks that will allow residents to walk or bike between *mauka* and *makai* areas, including Po'ipū Beach, Kōloa Town and other nearby amenities such as the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club.

A historic railroad berm runs through the project site between Weliweli Park and Kiahuna Plantation Drive. The areas south of the railroad berm are located within the Urban State Land Use District and are fully entitled. Roughly fifteen acres north of the railroad berm are also entitled and classified as Urban. The remaining 127.4 acres north of the railroad berm are in the Agricultural District and will require approval by the State Land Use Commission (LUC) to reclassify the State Land Use District to the Urban District. This would be the first discretionary approval sought for the project and as a result, the LUC determined it is the appropriate approving authority for this EIS. The petition has been filed with the LUC and is identified as Docket No. A05-761.

1.1 INTRODUCTION

1.1.1 Project Profile

Project Name:	Village at Po'ipū
Location:	Poʻipū, Kauaʻi, Hawaiʻi
Judicial District:	Kōloa
Applicant:	Eric A. Knudsen Trust
Recorded Fee Owner:	Eric A. Knudsen Trust
Tax Map Keys:	TMK 2-8-13: 01, 2-8-14: 01, 2-8-14: 02, 2-8-14: 03, 2-8-14: 04, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)
Land Area:	203 acres (approx.)
Existing Use:	Cattle and horse ranching and undeveloped scrubland
Proposed Action:	Develop a master planned single-family and multi-family residential community that protects and preserves significant archaeological sites and is pedestrian and bicycle friendly.
State Land Use:	Urban and Agricultural Districts (A State Land Use District Boundary Amendment is concurrently being sought for the Agricultural District)
County General Plan:	Residential Community
County Zoning:	Residential (R-10), Residential (R-6), Residential (R-4) and Open (O)
Special Management Area:	Not within the SMA
Accepting Authority:	State of Hawai'i Land Use Commission



LEGEND



Figure 1 Regional Location Map

Village at Po'ipu

2000





Source: -U.S. Geological Survey (Koloa Quadrangle, 1995) -State of Hawaii GIS Database

1.1.2 Applicant

The applicant is Eric A. Knudsen Trust.

Contact: Stacey Wong, Trustee Eric A. Knudsen Trust P.O. Box 759 Kalāheo, Hawai'i 96741 Telephone: (808) 332-5676 Fax: (808) 332-5681

1.1.3 Planning Consultant

The Knudsen Trust's environmental and entitlement planning consultant for the Village at Po'ipū is PBR HAWAII.

Contact: Kimi Yuen PBR HAWAII 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813 Telephone: (808) 521-5631 Fax: (808) 523-1402

1.1.4 Accepting Authority

In accordance with Chapter 343, HRS, privately initiated EIS documents must be accepted by the government agency empowered to issue permits for the project. In this instance, the State of Hawai'i Land Use Commission is the accepting authority since a State Land Use District Boundary Amendment (SLUDBA) is the first discretionary approval being sought for the project.

Contact: Anthony Ching, Executive Officer State Land Use Commission P.O. Box 2359 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96804 Telephone: (808) 587-3822 Fax: (808) 587-3827





1.1.5 Compliance with State of Hawai'i and County of Kaua'i Environmental Laws

This Environmental Impact Statement is prepared pursuant to Chapter 343, Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS), and Title 11, Chapter 200, Administrative Rules, Department of Health, State of Hawai'i. The proposed project is an applicant action by the Eric A. Knudsen Trust for the development of the Village at Po'ipū, comprising approximately 203 acres located in Po'ipū, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. As the proposed project involves the use of County lands (Hapa Road), the preparation of this EIS is being undertaken to address potential requirements under Chapter 343, HRS.

A 127.4-acre portion of the proposed development also requires approval by the State Land Use Commission (LUC) to reclassify the project from the Agricultural to the Urban district (Figure 2). This EIS is being submitted in support of the petition (Docket No. A05-761) filed pursuant to Section 205-4 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes and Section 15-15-46 et seq. of the Title 15, Subtitle 3, Chapter 15 of the Hawai'i Administrative Rules (LUC Rules).

To provide a thorough environmental review of the Village at Po'ipū, the preparation of an EIS is being undertaken. This Draft EIS was preceded by *The Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice* (EISPN). Notice of availability of the EISPN was published in the July 23, 2005 edition of OEQC's *The Environmental Notice*. Copies of the EISPN were provided to appropriate government agencies and other organizations. The public comment period for the EISPN ended on August 22, 2005. Comments on the EISPN have been incorporated into this EIS. Copies of the comment letters and responses are included in Section 11.0.

1.2 STUDIES CONTRIBUTING TO THIS ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT

A description of the environment, alternatives considered, impact determination, and proposed mitigation measures are provided in this EIS. The information contained in this report has been developed from site visits, technical consultant reports, public agencies, and generally available information regarding the characteristics of the site and surrounding areas. Consultant reports are included as appendices to this EIS.

Technical studies to assess the existing natural and physical conditions of the Village at Po'ipū site and the potential impacts of development of the property have been prepared.

The studies include:

• Archaeological Inventory Surveys

- Archaeological Data Recovery and Preservation Plans
- Flora Survey
- Faunal Survey
- Cultural Impact Assessment
- Traffic Impact Assessment
- Environmental Noise Impact Assessment
- Air Quality Study
- Preliminary Engineering Studies
- Market Study, Economic Impact Analysis, and Public Cost/Benefit Assessment

1.3 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.3.1 The Village at Po'ipū Summary Description

The Village at Po'ipū residential community comprises approximately 203 acres located in Po'ipū, near the southern coast of Kaua'i, Hawai'i (Figure 1). Figure 3 shows a conceptual master plan for the project. It includes a mix of residential communities as well as archaeological preserves and parks. The Village at Po'ipū residential communities will be interlaced with landscaped streets and greenway networks that will allow residents to walk or bike between *mauka* and *makai* areas, including Po'ipū Beach, Kōloa Town, and other nearby amenities such as the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club.

Portions of the 203 acres are used for grazing cattle and horses, and the majority of it consists of pastureland scrub. Areas that are not grazed are covered by dense koa haole thickets. A historic railroad berm runs through the project site between Weliweli Park and Kiahuna Plantation Drive. The areas south of the railroad berm are located within the Urban State Land Use District and are fully entitled. Roughly fifteen acres north of the railroad berm are also entitled and classified as Urban.

The remaining 127.4 acres north of the railroad berm are in the Agricultural District and will require approval by the State Land Use Commission (LUC) to reclassify the State Land Use District to the Urban District. Roughly 324 units and 190 additional dwelling units are allowed with the existing zoning. An additional 98 units would be allowed with the change to the Urban State Land Use District.

1.3.2 Summary of Potential Impacts and Proposed Mitigation Measures

Flora

No threatened or endangered plant species or species of concern have been found on the Village at Po'ipū site. The proposed conceptual master plan attempts to improve botanical resources by clearing the site of the existing alien and invasive species. Native plants will be installed within the archaeological sites and preserves. Native and non-invasive species also will be encouraged throughout the Village at Po'ipū project as part of the Landscape Master Plan and Design Guidelines.

Fauna

The proposed Village at Po'ipū is not expected to impact any endangered or threatened species as none were found within the project site during the avifaunal and feral mammal survey. Although none were observed on the site, the faunal survey concluded that the project might positively impact the migratory Pacific Golden Plover and endangered Hawaiian Hoary Bat.

Critical Habitat

There are two areas within the Village at Po'ipū project site designated as "critical habitats" by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) for the endangered Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Kaua'i Cave Amphipod. However, at the time of their designation, it was not known whether either species inhabited the sites. The critical habitats center around two lava tubes and the conceptual master plan for the Village at Po'ipū protects these sites with a fifty-foot buffer within which no development will occur. These areas will be preserved as archaeological sites and will be planted with native plants to improve possible habitat conditions for the endangered Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Amphipod should they exist on site.

Archaeological Resources

Extensive archaeological studies, as well as data recovery and preservation plans have been conducted for the entire property. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation by the State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) as well as those recommended for possible preservation will be protected. Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. In total, the area set aside for archaeological sites and preserves encompasses over 23 acres.

The vehicular and pedestrian circulation networks will be designed to provide both visual connections and direct access to the sites. In most cases, roadways will run adjacent to the preservation sites so that cultural practitioners, researchers and other interested persons may easily access the sites. Appropriate interpretive signage will be provided at the archaeological preserves. In addition, the signs will instruct visitors of the care and respect required to preserve the sites for future generations. Native plants will be planted at the archaeological sites. Furthermore, should *iwi kupuna* or Native Hawaiian cultural or traditional deposits be found during ground disturbance or excavation, work will cease and the appropriate agencies will be contacted pursuant to applicable law.

Cultural Resources

Based on interviews with people knowledgeable with the Kōloa-Po'ipū area and the Village at Po'ipū site, the primary cultural concerns pertain to the protection and preservation of culturally and historically significant archaeological sites and the protection of natural resources. In the past, potentially significant sites have been damaged or destroyed by stone robbers and other activities. As discussed above, the Village at Po'ipū will improve stewardship of cultural resources through the establishment of over 23 acres of archaeological preserves. The preserves will be accessible to the public and will allow continued access by cultural practitioners.

Traffic

The traffic impact analysis report conducted for this EIS concludes that the Village at Po'ipū will have a minimal impact on local and regional traffic. It recommends improvements to two intersections within the vicinity of the project to facilitate satisfactory traffic flow in the area. In addition, a network of pedestrian/bicycle paths, including a shared bike and pedestrian path in Hapa Road, will weave throughout the project site, linking the different neighborhoods and archaeological preserves to one another. This will encourage residents to walk or bike to various destinations around the area such as Po'ipū Beach, the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, the Po'ipū Shopping Village, and Kōloa Town as an alternative to driving.

Population

At full occupancy, the Village at Po'ipū is expected to have between 1,037 and 1,573 persons with approximately half anticipated to be full-time residents.

Employment

The Village at Po'ipū will generate jobs during construction and after its completion. During the first ten years of build-out and operation, the project will generate an average of 174 additional jobs per year which can easily be absorbed by the currently available employment pool. After the first ten years, the ongoing management of the site will generate approximately 29 on-site and 12 indirect or off-site positions.

Economic Impacts

The State of Hawai'i will receive nearly \$43.8 million in primary tax receipts during the first decade of development and operation, and a stabilized amount of \$4.8 million annually. The County of Kaua'i will receive \$10 million during the first ten years of the project, and \$1.3 million per year thereafter. In no year does the State or County suffer a revenue shortfall (costs exceeding receipts) relative to the project.

Public Services

The de facto population of the Village at Po'ipū is project to be 1,037 to 1,573. Because approximately half of this population is expected to be part-time residents/visitors, pressure on government services and funds will be less than a community of full-time

residents, as visitors typically do not rely on the full range of government services that full-time residents require. Property owners at the Village at Po'ipū, even those that are not full-time residents, will pay property taxes on a full-time basis, and excise taxes when they purchase goods and services on the island.

A public cost/benefit analysis has been prepared and is included in Appendix O. Based on the analysis, in no year single year do aggregate public costs to the State or County exceed public income. In addition, County of Kaua'i and State of Hawai'i agencies providing public services have been contacted regarding the potential impact of the increase in population associated with the Village at Po'ipū. Their preliminary comments have been incorporated in this EIS and the Knudsen Trust will continue to work with the agencies to ensure implementation of proper mitigative measures required by the project.

Water

The County of Kaua'i Department of Water (DOW) will supply potable water to home sites in the Village at Po'ipū. The Knudsen Trust is entering a cost-sharing agreement with the DOW for any new facilities that must be installed to supply the project and will pay facilities reserve charges per the agreement. In addition, a separate irrigation system using non-potable water for all landscaping within common areas and the larger single-family lots will be developed. The non-potable water will be supplied by a private system, sourced from two on-site wells and Grove Farm's Waita Reservoir as needed.

Wastewater

Wastewater generated by the Village at Po'ipū project will be collected and routed to the privately owned and operated Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility (PWRF) for treatment. An upgrade and expansion of the wastewater plant was initiated in 2004. The first phase of improvements has been completed and included a new biological process, capable of treating up to 1,000,000 gallons per day of wastewater. With the completion of this phase, the Po'ipū Reclamation Facility has sufficient capacity to treat all the wastewater that will be generated by the Village at Po'ipū.

The second phase of improvements is estimated for completion at the end of 2005 and includes tertiary filtration and ultraviolet (UV) disinfection. When the second phase of improvements is completed, the treatment plant will meet R-1 standards, which is the highest level of effluent quality regulated by the State of Hawai'i. It is expected that the effluent will be used by the neighboring Kiahuna Mauka Partners projects to irrigate the common areas of their development as well as the Kiahuna Golf Course. This will increase reuse of wastewater and reduce potable water requirements for irrigation in the region.

Drainage

Although the Village at Po'ipū will result in the construction of impermeable areas such as roads and homes that will increase the amount of runoff generated, the proposed improvements planned for the Village at Po'ipū drainage system will meet County requirements to maintain or reduce peak discharge rates at pre-development levels. The onsite detention basins are expected to actually reduce the peak discharge rate compared with existing levels. The plan also proposes using a combination of bioswales, vegetated drainage filtration and detention basins, as well as engineered networks of drain inlets, manholes, and drainage pipes. The incorporation of bioswales into the drainage process will help filter and slow runoff, improving the water quality of the runoff before it reaches the drainage systems and eventually the ocean.

1.3.3 Relationship to Land Use Policies

State Land Use Law, Chapter 205, Hawaii Revised Statutes

Within the Village at Po'ipū project site, approximately 124.7 acres are within the Agricultural District and approximately 78.3 acres are within the Urban District. The proposed residential uses are permitted within the Urban District. A State Land Use District Boundary Amendment (SLUDBA) will be required to reclassify the Agricultural District. An additional 2.7-acre portion of Hapa Road is also within the Agricultural District and will be included in the SLUDBA petition per the LUC request and with permission of the County of Kaua'i.

Hawaii Coastal Zone Management Program, Chapter 205A, Hawaii Revised Statutes

The Costal Zone Management Area as defined in Chapter 205A, HRS, includes all the lands of the State. As such, the Village at Po'ipū is within the Costal Zone Management Area. However, it is not located along a shoreline and is outside of the Special Management Area (SMA). Conformance with the Coastal Zone Management Program is further discussed in Section 5.1.3 of this Draft EIS.

Hawaii State Plan, Chapter 226, Hawaii Revised Statutes

The Hawaii State Plan (Chapter 226, HRS) establishes a set of goals, objectives, and policies that serve as long-range guidelines for the growth and development of the State. As proposed, the Village at Po'ipū is relevant to many of goals, objectives, and policies set forth by the Hawaii State Plan. The proposed project balances the provision of needed housing in South Kaua'i with the preservation of historic resources and implements environmentally-sensitive management of resources and wastes such as the use of non-potable water for irrigation and the biofiltration of runoff water. Conformance with specific elements of the Hawaii State Plan is discussed in detail in Section 5.1.4 of this Draft EIS.

State Functional Plans

The Hawaii State Plan directs State agencies to prepare functional plans for their respective program areas. There are 13 state functional plans that serve as the primary implementing vehicle for the goals, objective, and policies of the Hawaii State Plan. The functional plans applicable to the Village at Po'ipū are discussed in Section 5.1.5 of this Draft EIS.

County of Kaua'i General Plan

The General Plan of the County of Kaua'i is a policy document that is intended to help guide development for the enhancement and improvement of life on Kaua'i. The document provides the County's vision for Kaua'i and establishes the strategies to help achieve that vision. The General Plan includes land use maps for planning districts on Kaua'i. The Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District Land Use Map designates the entire Village at Po'ipū site as "Residential Community." The residential uses proposed in the Village at Po'ipū master plan are consistent with this designation.

County of Kaua'i Zoning

Similar to the State Land Use Districts, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance for the County of Kaua'i regulates the type and location of development permitted on the island. The existing Kaua'i County zoning for the Village at Po'ipū community includes a mix of Residential zoning R-4, R-6 and R-10 and the Open District. The proposed residential development will conform to existing zoning.

1.3.4 Required Permits and Approvals

A preliminary list of permits and approvals required for the Village at Po'ipū is presented in Table 1 below.

PERMIT/APPROVAL	RESPONSIBLE AGENCY	
Chapter 343, HRS compliance	State Land Use Commission Office of Environmental Quality Control	
State Land Use District Boundary Amendment	State Land Use Commission	
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)	State Department of Health	
Archaeological Data Recovery and Preservation Plan, Compliance with Chapter 6E, HRS	State Historic Preservation Division	
Grading/Building Permits	Kaua'i County Department of Public Works	
Subdivision Approval	Kaua'i County Planning Department	

 Table 1: List of Anticipated Permits and Approvals

1.3.5 Alternatives to the Proposed Action

The alternatives that have been considered are:

- 1) No action;
- 2) Other uses of the property (including agriculture, park/open space, or other urban uses); and
- 3) Postponing action pending further study.

1.3.6 Probable Adverse Environmental Effects That Cannot Be Avoided

Potential adverse environmental effects that cannot be avoided include the change in character and visual appearance of the site from scrub and rangeland to a residential community, impacts from increased traffic, solid waste generation and electrical power demand. Potential short-term impacts include impacts to air quality and noise levels during construction. These impacts are more fully discussed in Section 4.0 of this EIS.

1.3.7 Cumulative and Secondary Impacts

The cumulative and secondary impacts generated by the Village at Po'ipū are assessed based on the context and vision for the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo area as provided by the Kaua'i General Plan. As part of the Residential Community designated in the General Plan, the Village at Po'ipū community in conjunction with neighboring developments anticipated for the area will increase much needed housing supply in South Kaua'i in order to support the expected increase in population and to keep growth focused in and around existing towns and communities. As described in the General Plan, area traffic will increase as will the demand for public infrastructure and services. These impacts are more fully discussed in Section 7.2 of this EIS.

1.3.8 Rationale for Proceeding with the Village at Po'ipū Notwithstanding Unavoidable Effects

In light of the above mentioned unavoidable effects, the creation of the Village at Po'ipū should proceed because relatively minor negative impacts will be offset by substantial positive impacts, including: 1) the expansion and diversification of the Kōloa-Po'ipū area housing stock; 2) conformance with the County of Kaua'i General Plan; 3) creation of public amenities including parks, bike and pedestrian paths, and archaeological preserves; 4) clearing of invasive species and planting of native plants that may improve habitats of endangered species; and 5) the wages, taxes, and overall positive economic impacts of the Village at Po'ipū for the State and County.

1.3.9 Unresolved Issues

The Knudsen Trust is currently working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to meet its remaining affordable housing requirements for the Village at Po'ipū project. Please note that in satisfaction of the original 1977 State Land Use Boundary Amendment (Docket A76-418) which reclassified the lands *makai* of the railroad berm as well as lands to the west from the Agricultural District to the Urban District, a \$2,000,000 payment was made to the County of Kaua'i to fulfill its affordable housing obligation. This condition was confirmed as being satisfied by the LUC on October 16, 1995. Phase 1 and 2 of the Village at Po'ipū project are located in this area *makai* of the railroad berm and therefore do not have any affordable housing requirements to fulfill.

(This page intentionally left blank.)

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This section provides background information and a general description of the proposed Village at Po'ipū community and discusses the estimated development timetable and preliminary development costs.

2.1 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1.1 Location

The proposed Village at Po'ipū community is located in the Kōloa District of the southern part of Kaua'i and encompasses approximately 203 acres (Figure 3). Located *mauka* of Po'ipū Beach and Po'ipū Road, the project site is bordered on the west by Hapa Road and Kiahuna Plantation Drive and on the east by Weliweli Tract Subdivision, Weliweli Park, and Grove Farm and State of Hawai'i lands. The project site stretches north to Weliweli Road and south to Po'ipū Road.

2.1.2 Land Ownership

Eric A. Knudsen is the recorded fee owner of the parcels identified by the following Tax Map Key Numbers (see Figure 4):

ТМК	Approximate Acreage
2-8-13:01	11.539
2-8-14:01	66.053
2-8-14:02	1.45
2-8-14:03	0.66
2-8-14:04	0.32
2-8-14: 19	123.08
2-8-14: 37	0.196
TOTAL	203.298

 Table 2: Project TMKs

The County of Kaua'i is the owner of Lot 19-B (Hapa Road), which will be improved as a bicycle/pedestrian path as part of the project. The County of Kaua'i required its improvement as a condition of approval for the zoning amendments granted by Ordinance PM-31-79 and further amended by Ordinances PM-200-90 and PM-201-90. There are no known TMKs for Hapa Road but it is identified as Lot 19-B by State Land Court Map 28 of Land Court Application 956.

2.1.3 State Land Use District

Within the Village at Po'ipū project site, approximately 124.7 acres are within the Agricultural District and approximately 78.3 acres are within the Urban District (see Figure 5). The proposed residential uses are permitted within the Urban district. A State Land Use District Boundary Amendment (SLUDBA) is being sought to reclassify the areas within the Agricultural District and the petition has been filed with the LUC as Docket No. A05-761. An additional 2.7-acre portion of Hapa Road is also within the Agricultural District and will be included in the SLUDBA petition per the LUC request and with permission of the County of Kaua'i.

2.1.4 County of Kaua'i General Plan

The General Plan Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District Land Use Map designates the entire Village at Po'ipū site as "Residential Community" (see Figure 6). The land uses proposed in the Village at Po'ipū master plan are consistent with this designation and the General Plan's vision for this area of Po'ipū as a residential community.

2.1.5 County of Kaua'i Zoning

The existing Kaua'i County zoning for the Village at Po'ipū community includes a mix of Residential zoning R-4, R-6 and R-10 and the Open District (see Figure 7). The proposed residential development will conform to existing zoning.

2.1.6 Special Management Area

The Village at Po'ipū is not within the Special Management Area (SMA) (see Figure 8). As a result, it will not require a SMA Permit from the County.

2.1.7 Surrounding Uses

Surrounding land uses to the south include various resorts such as the Marriott Waiohai, Kiahuna Plantation, and the Sheraton Kaua'i as well as the Kiahuna Swim and Tennis Club, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, and the Po'ipū Shopping Village. Also *makai* of the project site are Po'ipū Beach Park and Manokalanipo Park. To the east are the Weliweli subdivision, Weliweli Park, and undeveloped lands owned by Grove Farm and the State of Hawai'i. Kōloa Town and its residential areas are to the north and northwest. To the west, the project site is bordered by St. Raphael Roman Catholic Church, Kiahuna Golf Course and Golf Village, and the urban classified properties of Kiahuna Mauka Partners, which will be developed into a mix of single family and multi-family residential units. Over three-quarter miles to the west, west of Po'ipū Road, is Kukui'ula, a new luxury residential development.



Figure 4 Tax Map Key

Village at Po'ipū Knudsen Trust





LEGEND

Land Use Districts

Other Features

Urban

Agricultural

Project Site Boundary TMK Boundary **Major Streets**

Streams

Source: -State Land Use Commission (2000) -State of Hawaii GIS Database -LUC Boundary Interpretation (2005)

Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposes only. Figure 5 State Land Use Districts

Village at Po'ipu

1500







Public Facilities



Source: Kaua'i General Plan, 2000

www.kauai.hawaii.gov/Portals/0/planning/flu-koloa.pdf

Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposed only.

Figure 6 Kaua'i General Plan Kōloa - Poʻipū - Kalāheo Planning District Land Use Map

2000

Village at Po'ipu



South Kaua`i







LEGEND



Village at Poʻipū Project Site

R-4 / Urban Area Based on LUC Boundary Interpretation (2005) Figure 7 Kaua'i County Zoning



1500







LEGEND



- Special Management Area **Project Site Boundary**
- TMK Boundary
- **Major Streets**
- Streams

Source: -Kauai County Planning Department -State of Hawaii GIS Database (1998)

Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposes only. Figure 8 Special Management Area (SMA)

Village at Po'ipu





2.1.8 Description of the Property

Portions of the project site are currently used for grazing cattle and horses, and the majority of it consists of pastureland scrub. Areas that are not grazed are covered by dense koa haole thickets. There are no wetlands on the site. Figure 9 contains oblique aerial photographs of the project site.

The site has a depth of approximately 4,000 lineal feet and varies in width from 1,700 feet along Po'ipū Road to 700 feet in the central/upper portion of the property. The topography of the site is generally flat with slope averaging 4-5 percent across the site. The terrain ranges from level to slightly undulating and rocky. Elevations run from 18 feet above mean sea level (msl) at the *makai* boundary along Po'ipū Road to approximately 200 feet above msl along its *mauka* border near the intersection of Hapa Road and Weliweli Road.

2.1.9 History of the Property

Historic documents suggest that the uses within and around the Village at Po'ipū project area included agricultural and grazing activities. As late as the mid- to latenineteenth century, the area was used for habitation and taro cultivation as part of the extensive Kōloa Field System which stretched between Lāwa'i and Weliweli. By the first decades of the twentieth century, cane fields spanned the landscape of Kōloa. However, sugar company field maps from the early 1900s indicate only small incursions of sugarcane within the present project area due to the rockiness of the terrain.

By the mid-twentieth century, the project area was comprised of open pasture, with sugar cane extending into small portions. An aerial photograph taken on April 30, 2000 indicates that, at the end of the twentieth century, the project area continued to comprise open and brush-covered pastureland with now-discontinued sugar cane fields also present.

The Knudsen family has owned the project site since 1872, when the Sinclair family purchased a 6,500-acre property that included the project area. The Sinclair's youngest daughter, Anne, inherited the area as part of her dowry to Valdemar Knudsen. She later gave most of the lands including all of Village at Po'ipū site to her two sons, Eric A. and August Knudsen, in the early 1920s to hold in trust. Most of the project site has been used for cattle grazing or left as open scrub land.



A. View looking north from makai areas (approximate location of parcel boundaries).



C. View looking northwest, mauka parcels (approximate location of parcel boundaries).



B. View looking northwest, makai portion of property (approximate location of parcel boundaries).

Figure 9 Aerial Site Photographs Village at Po'ipu

South Kaua`i



2.2 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND NEED FOR THE PROJECT

The County of Kaua'i's 2000 General Plan describes the Po'ipū area as part of one of Kaua'i's largest resort and residential areas. The Village at Po'ipū site is designated as "Residential Community" on the General Plan's Land Use Map for the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District and is envisioned to fill a large portion of Kaua'i's south shore residential growth requirements.

In addition, the market study prepared for the Village at Po'ipū by The Hallstrom Group reports that the Po'ipū/Kōloa housing market is in a moderately to strongly undersupplied condition. Development in the area has been limited since the 1980s, despite very low vacancy rates, high market demand, and rapidly appreciating prices over the last several years. Due to the extremely limited inventory available in the region, the number of sales has remained relatively static, resulting in rapidly escalating per unit prices.

The market study estimates that over 4,000 dwelling units will be required by the year 2025 (The Hallstrom Group 2005). Even if all known major projects with residential units planned for development during this period are built (which is unlikely), housing supply will fall short of projected demand by at least 1,000 housing units during the next two decades (The Hallstrom Group 2005). The proposed Village at Po'ipū master-planned community will provide a variety of housing options and opportunities, thereby increasing housing supply on the island and filling a portion of this projected need.

The Village at Po'ipū property is well-suited for the proposed development because of its physical traits (size, shape, topography), direct access to main arterials, proximity to the central Po'ipū vacation community and expanding regional resident population, access to nearby existing utility systems, existing land use entitlements for much of the property, and proximity to primary retail, restaurant, and services, as well as regional recreational amenities.

Complete market absorption of the single-family lots/homes will require an estimated six to seven years from the commencement of presale offerings. The multi-family units are estimated to require approximately seven years to achieve complete sell-out.

2.3 GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

2.3.1 Objectives

The objectives of the Village at Po'ipū are to:

- Create a high-quality residential community in an appropriate location in South Kaua'i to provide much-needed housing;
- Preserve and protect cultural and historic archaeological resources for present and future generations of Hawai'i residents and visitors;
- Expand regional recreational opportunities by creating pedestrian and bicycle greenway networks, parks, open spaces, and archaeological preserves; and
- Provide for the logical and long-planned in-fill of urban expansion in the Po'ipū area.

2.3.2 The Village at Po'ipū Description

The Village at Po'ipū is envisioned as a community that will include a mix of residential densities, as well as public amenities such as archaeological preserves, parks, and bicycle and pedestrian paths. Although final subdivision layouts have not been determined, an estimated 134 multi-family, 216 single-family, and up to 153 additional dwelling units will be included in the community. Development densities will vary to provide a diverse product inventory, with higher densities located closer to the commercial areas of Po'ipū and lower densities stretching mauka to blend with existing neighborhoods.

The residential neighborhoods will be interlaced with landscaped streets and greenway networks, including the development of Hapa Road as a bicycle/pedestrian path. These improvements will allow residents and visitors to walk or bike between *mauka* and *makai* areas such as Po'ipū Beach and Kōloa Town, and to other nearby amenities such as the Po'ipū Shopping Village, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, and the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club.

A new internal roadway connecting Po'ipū Road with Hapa Road near the Roman Catholic Church will provide an additional *mauka-makai* connection for the area. This road will have secondary connections into abutting existing and future projects to further improve circulation and connectivity in the area by dispersing traffic.

2.3.3 Land Use Summary

The proposed project consists of single-family residential, multi-family residential, parks, and archaeological preserves. Bicycle and pedestrian paths will also be built to connect *mauka* and *makai* areas, including a route along Hapa Road per condition of the County of Kaua'i. Although final subdivision layouts have not been determined, the following table shows an estimated breakdown of proposed uses and an estimated number of developable units.

	Estimated Acreages	Estimated Units
SF Residential	153.2	216-369*
MF Residential	9.4	134
Archaeological Preserves**	16.5	
Parks	12.0	
Collector Roads	12.2	
TOTAL	±203.3	350-503
Notes:		

Table 3: Proposed Land Uses

*Includes Additional Dwelling Units (ADUs).

**In addition to the 16.5 acres of larger, contiguous archaeological preserves, another 7.3 acres will be preserved within the residential areas for the smaller, isolated archaeological sites.

2.4 DEVELOPMENT TIMETABLE AND PRELIMINARY COSTS

According to the market study, the Village at Po'ipū is estimated to be absorbed within six to seven years of presale offerings (The Hallstrom Group 2005). Therefore, the development timetable for the Village at Po'ipū is estimated to be ten years including the entitlement process.

Portions of the Village at Po'ipū project site located *makai* of the railroad berm are fully entitled and could be developed at any time. Construction of the first fifty lots is expected to start in 2006. In order to develop the areas mauka of the railroad berm per the conceptual master plan, a State Land Use Boundary Amendment will be required. This process is expected to take two years from commencement. Once land use entitlements are obtained, the remaining development will occur subject to market conditions.

Order-of-Magnitude Infrastructure Cost Estimates

Kodani & Associates prepared preliminary order-of-magnitude cost estimates for the Village at Po'ipū. It includes infrastructure improvements such as grading, roadway construction, drainage, water, wastewater, and electrical. The costs are summarized below as offsite and onsite improvements.

Offsite

The estimated cost for offsite wastewater improvements for the Village at Po'ipū project is roughly \$2.0 million (2005 dollars). Offsite water system improvements are estimated to be between \$2.5 and \$3.0 million (2005 dollars).

Onsite

Onsite infrastructure and civil costs for the Village at Po'ipū project were estimated for the project in early 2005. The total order-of-magnitude cost estimate is \$34.4 million. These costs are summarized in Table 4.

ONSITE WORK	COST ESTIMATE
Grading	\$12,069,200
Roadways	\$3,998,405
Water	\$2,041,875
Wastewater	\$4,360,800
Drainage	\$5,128,410
Electrical	\$3,331,720
Engineering Design (~1.1%) & Contingency (10%)	\$3,426,213
TOTAL	\$34,356,623

 Table 4: Onsite Infrastructure Order-of-Magnitude Cost Estimates

These estimates are subject to change based on final designs and the ultimate phasing or timing of development.

2.5 SUSTAINABLE BUILDING DESIGN

The Office of Environmental Quality Control (OEQC) issued "Guidelines for Sustainable Building Design in Hawai'i: A Planner's Checklist" (OEQC 1999) has requested that consideration be made in applying sustainable building techniques to projects. The OEQC Guidelines state, "[a] sustainable building is built to minimize energy use, expense, waste and impact on the environment. It seeks to improve the region's sustainability by meeting the needs of Hawai'i's residents and visitors today without compromising the needs of future generations."

Techniques from "Guidelines for Sustainable Building Design in Hawai'i: A Planner's Checklist" considered in the Village at Po'ipū community design include:

Site Selection and Site Design:

1. Select a site with short connections to existing municipal infrastructure (sewer lines, water, waste water treatment plant, roads, gas, electricity, telephone, data communication lines and services). Select a site close to mass transportation, bicycle routes and pedestrian access.

Discussion: A site was selected that is surrounded by existing development, and is located within close proximity to existing utilities and municipal infrastructure. The
project is located near existing parks, retail, and other community amenities and will connect to them through a network of pedestrian and bicycle greenways.

Site Preparation and Design:

1. Prepare a thorough existing conditions topographic site plan depicting topography, natural and built features, vegetation, location of site utilities and include solar information, rainfall data and direction of prevailing winds. Preserve existing resources and natural features to enhance the design and add aesthetic, economic and practical value. Design to minimize the environmental impact of the development on vegetation and topography.

Discussion: The existing resources and natural features of the Village at Po'ipū site and the surrounding areas are discussed and shown in various sections and figures contained in this document. Aerial photographs are also provided in Figure 9. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation as well as those recommended for possible preservation to date by the State of Hawai'i Department of Land and Natural Resources, Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) have been protected in the master plan (see Figure 16). The sites will be preserved with fifty-foot buffers surrounding them, landscaped with native plants, and integrated into the master plan. They will remain accessible to the public via the proposed street and pedestrian pathway networks. None of the existing vegetation is endangered and much of it consists of invasive alien species. Other site features are detailed in Section 3.0.

2. Locate building(s) to encourage bicycle and pedestrian access and pedestrian oriented uses. Provide bicycle and pedestrian paths, bicycle racks, etc. Racks should be visible and accessible to promote and encourage bicycle commuting.

Discussion: The conceptual master plan for the project includes a network of bicycle and pedestrian paths. Based on Design Guidelines prepared for the project, buildings will be located close to the street to provide a comfortable environment for pedestrians and bicyclists. An extensive network of pedestrian/bicycle paths will weave throughout the project site, linking the different neighborhoods and archaeological preserves to one another.

The streets within the Village at $Po'ip\bar{u}$ will be designed to encourage pedestrian use. Street design includes: narrow lanes designed for slow travel speeds; slight bends in the roads to allow for natural traffic calming (long, straight segments of neighborhood through-streets are avoided); and sidewalks and street trees to provide a comfortable pedestrian environment.

Building Design:

1. For natural cooling, use: reflective or light colored roofing, radiant barrier and/or insulation, roof vents; light colored paving (concrete) and building

surfaces; tree planting to shade buildings and paved areas; and building orientation and design that captures trade winds and/or provides for convective cooling of interior spaces when there is no wind.

Discussion: Natural cooling elements such as street trees, covered porches and verandas will be included within the Village at Po'ipū community. These elements are required by the Design Guidelines developed for the Village at Po'ipū.

Energy Use:

1. Use renewable energy. Use solar water heaters and consider the use of photovoltaics and Building Integrated Photovoltaics (BIPV).

Discussion: The use of renewable energy devices will be encouraged through the use of solar design features.

Landscape and Irrigation:

- 1. Incorporate water efficient landscaping (xeriscaping) using the following principles:
 - a. Soil analysis/improvement: Use (locally made) soil amendments and compost for plan nourishment, improved water absorption and holding capacity.
 - b. Appropriate plant selection: Use drought tolerant and/or slow growing hardy grasses, native and indigenous plants, shrubs, ground covers, trees, appropriate for local conditions, to minimize the need for irrigation.
 - c. Mulches: Use mulches to minimize evaporation, reduce weed growth and retard erosion.

Discussion: Where feasible, landscaping will include the use of locally made soil amendments and compost; use of drought tolerant and/or slow growing vegetation; and the use of mulches. The Landscape Design Guidelines that were developed for the Village at Po'ipū specify the use of native and indigenous plants.

2. Irrigate with non-potable water or reclaimed water when feasible. Collect rainwater from the roof for irrigation.

Discussion: The project will use non-potable water for irrigating common areas and the multi-family neighborhood and will provide connections to the non-potable system for any single-family lot larger than 20,000 SF for their irrigation needs.

3. Use pervious paving instead of concrete or asphalt paving. Use natural and man-made berms, hills and swales to control water runoff.

Discussion: Road sections through non-urbanized areas (not fronted by development) will use landscaped or grassed swales for drainage. Drainage designs that encourage biofiltration, or the slowing and filtering of settlement of runoff waters will be implemented wherever possible.

Further efforts to minimize energy consumption may include incorporating select items from the County of Kaua'i's Building Energy Code and the *Field Guide for Energy Performance, Comfort, and Value in Hawaii Homes* (DBEDT) into the Village at Po'ipū design guidelines.

3.0 DESCRIPTION OF THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT, POTENTIAL IMPACTS, AND MITIGATIVE MEASURES

This section describes the existing conditions of the physical or natural environment, potential impacts of the Village at Po'ipū on the environment, and mitigative measures to minimize any impact.

3.1 CLIMATE

Existing Conditions

The semi-arid climate of Po'ipū and Kōloa is typically dry and sunny. The climate of the Po'ipū area is very much affected by the topography of the island and its coastal situation. Winds are predominantly trade winds from the east or northeast. Wind speeds average about 11 to 12 miles per hour providing relatively good ventilation much of the time. Occasional storms may generate strong winds from the south (Kona winds) for brief periods. Landbreeze-seabreeze circulations may develop when trade winds are weak. Temperatures in the area are generally very moderate with average daily temperatures ranging from about 68°F to 81°F. Average annual rainfall in the Po'ipū area amounts to about 40 to 45 inches with summer months being the driest.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū is not expected to have an impact on climatic conditions and no mitigative measures are planned. Street trees and landscaping in common areas will be planted to provide shade and comfort for pedestrians and bicyclists.

3.2 GEOLOGY AND TOPOGRAPHY

Existing Conditions

The Village at Po'ipū site has a depth of approximately 4,000 lineal feet and varies in width from 1,700 feet along Po'ipū Road to 700 feet in the central/upper portion of the property. The slope over the length of the site averages 4 to 5 percent, with the terrain being level to undulating and rocky in areas. Elevations run from 18 feet above mean sea level (msl) at the *makai* boundary along Po'ipū Road to approximately 200 feet above msl along its *mauka* border near the intersection of Hapa Road and Weliweli Road.

The Village at Po'ipū site is located on the Kōloa Plain, which formed over lava flows from the post-erosional Kōloa volcanic series. Kaua'i consists of a single great shield volcano, which is eroded and partly veneered with much later volcanics. The rocks of the Kaua'i shield volcano are named the Waimea Canyon Volcanic Series; the portion that built the main mass of the shield outside the caldera is called the Nāpali formation. Presumably the Kōloa eruptions were fed by dikes, but very few have been found, probably because erosion has not yet cut deeply enough to expose them (MacDonald, Abbott, & Peterson 1983).

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū project is a residential development that will employ standard construction methods including minor grading. Pier and post construction is recommended in the Design Guidelines for single-family residential development to reduce the amount of grading required and minimize the impervious footprint of houses. Because the proposed improvements are relatively insignificant compared to the overall geologic character of the site and region, it is not expected to have an effect on geologic conditions and no extensive mitigative measures are planned.

Appropriate engineering, design, and construction measures will be undertaken to minimize potential erosion due to grading of soils during construction. Further information on soils and grading is provided in Section 3.3. Information on drainage conditions and improvements is provided in Section 4.8.3.

3.3 SOILS

Existing Conditions

There are three soil suitability studies prepared for lands in Hawai'i whose principal focus has been to describe the physical attributes of land and the relative productivity of different land types for agricultural production. These are: 1) the U.S. Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Services Soil Survey (SCS); 2) the University of Hawai'i Land Study Bureau (LSB) Detailed Land Classification; and 3) the State Department of Agriculture's Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH).

3.3.1 Soil Conservation Survey

The SCS Soil Survey shows that the majority of the project site contains Waikomo Series soils, specifically the Waikomo very rocky silty clay soils (Wt) and Waikomo extremely rocky silty clay soils (Wu) (see Figure 10). These soils are well drained, gently sloping, stony and rocky. Permeability is moderate and runoff is slow. Bedrock is typically at a

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

depth of less than 20 inches. Waikomo soils have low shrink-swell potential and have low corrosivity to uncoated steel and concrete.

The SCS Survey also includes a Land Capability Grouping, which rates soil types according to eight levels of productivity for commercial cultivation, ranging from the highest classification level, I, to the lowest level, VIII. Class I soils have few limitations that restrict their use. Class VIII soils and landforms have limitations that preclude their use for commercial plant production and restrict their use to recreation, wildlife habitat, or water supply, or to esthetic purposes. The two soil types within the project site are of Class VI and VII. Class VI soils have severe limitations that make them generally unsuitable for cultivation and limit their use largely to pasture or range, woodland, or wildlife habitat. Class VII soils also have very severe limitations that make them unsuitable for cultivation and that restrict their use largely to pasture or range, woodland, or wildlife habitat. The following is a brief description of the project site's two soil types.

Waikomo very rocky silty clay (Wt). This soil is similar to other Waikomo soils, except that rock outcrops cover 3 to 25 percent of the surface. This soil is used for pasture, wildlife habitat, and homesites. Some small areas are irrigated. The capability classification is VIs, irrigated or nonirrigated. Subclass VIs has very severe limitations because of stoniness or unfavorable texture. The soils are very stony, very rocky, extremely stony, or extremely rocky, and have slopes of 0 to 35 percent.

Waikomo extremely rocky silty clay (Wu). This soil is similar to other Waikomo soils except that rock outcrops cover 25 to 50 percent of the surface. This soil is used for pasture, wildlife habitat, and homesites. The capability classification is VIIs, nonirrigated. Subclass VIIs soils have very severe soil limitations because of unfavorable texture, or because they are extremely rocky or stony. Also included are land types that are steep, rocky, or stony.

3.3.2 Land Study Bureau Detailed Land Classification

The University of Hawai'i Land Study Bureau document titled "Detailed Land Classification, Islands of Kaua'i, O'ahu, Maui, Moloka'i, and Lāna'i" classifies nonurban land based on a five-class productivity rating system using the letters A, B, C, D, and E, where A represents the highest class of productivity and E the lowest. The LSB ratings for the Village at Po'ipū project site are either E, the lowest productivity rating, or are not classified (see Figure 11).



LEGEND

 Soil Boundary
 Project Site Boundary

 Wt: Waikomo very
 TMK Boundary

 rocky silty clay
 Major Streets

 Wu: Waikomo extremely
 Streams

Figure 10 Soil Conservation Service - Soil Survey Map

Village at Poʻipũ Knudsen Trust



South Kaua`i



Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposes only.

Source: -USDA Soil Conservation Service (1972)



LEGEND



Figure 11 Land Study Bureau (LSB) Agricultural Classifications







3.3.3 Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i

The State of Hawai'i Department of Agriculture's Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH) system rates agricultural land as Prime, Unique or Other Lands. The rest of the lands are not classified.

Prime Agricultural Land is land best suited for the production of food, feed, forage, and fiber crops. The land has the soil quality, growing season, and moisture supply needed to economically produce sustained high yields of crops when treated and managed, including water management, according to modern farming methods.

Unique Agricultural Land is land other than Prime Agricultural Land that can be used for specific high-value food crops. The land has a special combination of soil quality, growing season, temperature, humidity, sunlight, air drainage, elevation, aspect, moisture supply, or other conditions that favor the production of a specific crop of high quality and/or high yield when the land is treated and managed according to modern farming methods. In Hawai'i, some examples of such crops are coffee, taro, rice, watercress and non-irrigated pineapple.

Other Agricultural Land is land other than Prime or Unique Agricultural Land that is also of statewide or local importance for the production of food, feed, fiber, and forage crops. The lands in this classification are important to agriculture in Hawai'i yet they exhibit properties, such as seasonal wetness, erosion, limited rooting zone, slope, flooding, or drought, that exclude them from the Prime or Unique Agricultural classifications. These lands can be farmed satisfactorily by applying greater inputs of fertilizer and other soil amendments, drainage improvement, erosion control practices, flood protection and produce fair to good crop yields when managed properly.

The project site is not classified under the ALISH system and is therefore not considered important for agriculture (see Figure 12).

Potential Impacts

Impacts to the soils of the site include the potential for soil erosion and the generation of dust during construction. Land disturbing activities include removal of existing vegetation (clearing and grubbing) and grading and will expose soils to erosion forces. Some wind erosion of soils could occur without a proper watering and re-grassing program. Heavy rainfall could also cause erosion of soils within disturbed areas of land.



LEGEND

ALISH Types

Other Features

Prime ALISH Lands Other ALISH Lands

Not classified

Project Site Boundary

TMK Boundary **Major Streets** Streams

Figure 12 Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i (ALISH)

Village at Po'ipu

1500

Source: -State Department of Agriculture (1977) -State of Hawaii GIS Database (2002)

Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposes only.

LINEAL SCALE (FEET) NORTH 750



Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū will be constructed in phases, minimizing the amount of areas exposed to earthwork during any one time. The plan also includes considerable open space, thus limiting the need to grade all areas. To the extent possible, improvements will conform to the contours of the land, further limiting the need for extensive grading of the site.

Site grading will be segmented and exposed areas will be immediately grassed or landscaped before commencement of grading in the next phase. Measures to control erosion during the site development period could include:

- Minimizing the duration of construction periods;
- Retaining existing ground cover as long as possible;
- Constructing drainage control features early;
- Using temporary area sprinklers in non-active construction areas when ground cover is removed;
- Providing a water truck on site during the construction period to provide for immediate sprinkling as needed;
- Using temporary berms and cut-off ditches, where needed, for control of erosion;
- Watering graded areas when construction activity for each day has ceased;
- Grassing or planting all cut-and-fill slopes immediately after grading work has been completed; and
- Installing dust and silt screens.

All construction activities will comply with all applicable Federal, State, and County regulations and rules for erosion control. Before issuance of a grading permit by Kaua'i County, an erosion control plan and Best Management Practices (BMPs) required for the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Control (NPDES) permit will be prepared describing the implementation of appropriate erosion control measures.

All construction activities will also comply with the provisions of Chapter 11-60.1, Hawai'i Administrative Rules, Section 11-60.1-33 on Fugitive Dust. Measures to control dust from road areas during various phases of construction include:

- Planning phases of construction to minimize the amount of dust-generating materials and activities, centralize on-site vehicular traffic routes, and locate potential dust-generating equipment in areas of the least impact;
- Providing an adequate water source at the site prior to start-up construction activities;
- Landscaping and rapidly covering bare areas, including slopes, starting from the initial grading phase;
- Minimizing dust from shoulder and access roads;
- Providing adequate dust control measures during weekends, after hours, and before daily start-up construction activities; and

• Controlling dust from debris being hauled away from the project site.

After construction, establishment of permanent landscaping will provide long-term erosion control.

Because the soils at the project site are not well suited for agricultural cultivation or production, nor are they considered to be lands of agricultural importance to the State, the proposed development is not expected to impact the availability of any significant agricultural lands.

3.4 NATURAL HAZARDS

Existing Conditions

Natural hazards impacting the Hawaiian Islands include hurricanes, volcanic eruptions, earthquakes, tsunamis, and floods.

Volcanic hazards in the area of the Village at Po'ipū are considered minimal due to the dormant status of the Wai'ale'ale volcano comprising all of Kaua'i. The island of Kaua'i has a Zone 1 Seismic Probability Rating and volcanic eruption is unlikely. (In comparison, Hawai'i Island is in Zone 3.)

In Hawai'i, most earthquakes are linked to volcanic activity, unlike other areas where a shift in tectonic plates is the cause of an earthquake. Each year, thousands of earthquakes occur in Hawai'i; the vast majority of them so small they are detectable only with highly sensitive instruments.

The State of Hawai'i and especially Kaua'i has been affected by devastating hurricanes, 'Iwa in 1982 and 'Iniki in 1992. While it is difficult to predict these natural occurrences, it is reasonable to assume that future events could be likely given the recent record. The project area, as the rest of the island or state, is no more or less vulnerable to the destructive winds and torrential rains associated with hurricanes. For reference, Figure 13 shows the overwash boundary from Hurricane 'Iniki in 1992 and the project site is well *mauka* of this boundary.

Tsunamis are large, rapidly moving ocean waves triggered by a major disturbance of the ocean floor, which is usually caused by an earthquake but sometimes can be produced by a submarine landslide or volcanic eruption. About 50 tsunamis have been reported in the Hawaiian Islands since the early 1800s. Seven caused major damage, and two of these were locally generated. The tsunami evacuation zone is located *makai* of the Village at Po'ipū project site (see Figure 13).



LEGEND

Tsunami Evacuation Zone Overwash Boundary

Project Site Boundary

- TMK Boundary
- Major Streets
- Streams

Figure 13 Tsunami Evacuation Zone and Overwash from Hurricane Iniki 1992

Village at Po'ipū Knudsen Trust South Kaua'i







<u>LEGEND</u>



Zone A: Areas of 100-year flood Zone X (shaded): Areas of 500-year flood Zone X (no shade): Areas outside the floodplains Figure 14 Flood Insurance Rate Map

Village at Po'ipū Rnudsen Trust South Kaua'i

1500





The project site is relatively free from flood hazards and coastal restrictions. It is located outside the 100-year floodplain (Zone X) according to the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) (see Figure 14). The Village at Po'ipū community is also located *mauka* of the Special Management Area (SMA) (see Figure 8) and therefore will not require an SMA permit for development.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

The Village at Po'ipū will not exacerbate any natural hazard conditions. Volcanic impacts to the area are considered unlikely. Seismic hazards in the area are no greater than other locations on Kaua'i. It is located outside of the floodplain and *mauka* of known coastal hazards. The Village at Po'ipū, as the rest of Kaua'i or the State, is no more or less vulnerable to the destructive winds and torrential rains and associated with hurricanes.

The potential impact of destructive winds and torrential rainfall of hurricanes will be mitigated by compliance with the Kaua'i County Building Code. Likewise, all structures will be constructed for protection from earthquakes in compliance with the requirements of the Uniform Building Code and detention basins will be built for the project site to hold onsite any net increases in peak runoff generated by the project.

3.5 FLORA

Existing Conditions

A flora survey was conducted for the entire 203-acre Village at Po'ipū project site in 2002. The flora survey, conducted by Char & Associates, did not find any threatened or endangered species or species of concern as listed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). Most of the site is used for grazing cattle and horses and is covered with pastureland scrub or koa haole thickets. All of the plants found on site are similar to those found in disturbed lowland habitats throughout the Hawaiian Islands. Development as proposed in this EIS is not expected to have a significant negative impact on the botanical resources. The study also recommends that portions of the site be set aside to preserve archaeological sites or cave/lava tube systems which may harbor rare Hawaiian arthropods. The flora study is included in Appendix A.

Potential Impacts and Mitigation Measures

No threatened or endangered plant species or species of concern have been found on the Village at Po'ipū property. Given this finding, the proposed development is not expected to have a significant negative impact on botanical resources. The proposed conceptual master plan attempts to improve botanical resources by clearing the site of the existing alien and invasive species and sets aside land for archaeological preserves (23.8 acres), parks (12.0 acres), bicycle and pedestrian paths and landscaped house lots and roadways. Native plants will be installed within the archaeological sites and preserves.

Native and non-invasive species also will be encouraged throughout the Village at Po'ipū project as part of the Landscape Master Plan developed for the project and have been required as part of the Design Guidelines by which all-future homeowners must abide. As a result, native and non-invasive flora populations will thrive and replace the existing alien species. In addition, the archaeological preserves will be landscaped with native plants. This should improve potential habitat conditions for the arthropods that may exist on site. It will also include native plants that are currently found onsite that may have cultural importance to Native Hawaiians. The report recommends that landscaping be installed as soon as possible to prevent problems with dust.

3.6 FAUNA

3.6.1 Fauna Study

Existing Conditions

The faunal survey, conducted by Phillip L. Bruner in 2002, did not find any endangered or threatened species at the Village at Po'ipū project site. The only native species recorded on the site during the survey was the Hawaiian Owl or Pueo (*Asio flammeus sandwichensis*). It is endangered on O'ahu but not elsewhere in the state. There were several introduced species of birds and feral mammals recorded on the site as well as the migratory Pacific Golden Plover or *kolea (Pluvialis fulva)*. Furthermore, Bruner found that very little has changed in terms of bird and mammal composition based on a comparison of a faunal survey he had performed in 1990. The 2002 fauna study is included in its entirety as Appendix B.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The proposed Village at Po'ipū is not expected to impact any endangered or threatened species as none were found within the project site. Other findings from the Bruner faunal survey concluded that the proposed Village at Po'ipū may positively impact the migratory Pacific Golden Plover and the endangered Hawaiian Hoary Bat since they have been observed to frequent similar urban environments. However, the native Pueo (Hawaiian Owl) will less likely utilize the area once the tall grasses are cleared.

3.6.2 Critical Habitats

Existing Conditions

The United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) designated two "critical habitat" areas for the endangered Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider (*Adelocosa anops*) and Kaua'i Cave Amphipod (*Spelaeorchistia koloana*) that overlap the project site (see Figure 15). These areas are shown as a 200-foot radius around two lava tubes. They have been designated by USFWS as Units 6 and 8 in the April 9, 2003 Federal Register (50 CFR Part 17, Vol68, pp. 17430-17470). At the time of their federal designation, it was not known whether or not the endangered arthropods inhabited the lava tubes.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Knudsen Trust met with representatives from USFWS and State DLNR Division of Forestry and Wildlife (DOFAW) on November 14, 2002 and will work with the USFWS to determine if the Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Amphipod inhabit the two lava tubes. Although the critical habitat requirements are triggered only when federal funds or activities occur at the site, the conceptual master plan for the Village at Po'ipū includes a fifty-foot buffer around the lava tubes within which no development will occur. These areas will be preserved as archaeological sites and will be planted with native plants to improve possible habitat conditions for the endangered Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Amphipod should they exist on site.



LEGEND

USFWS Critical Habitat for Cave Wolf Spider and Cave Amphipods

Project Site Boundary



Major Streets Streams

Figure 15 U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Critical Habitat Areas

Village at Po'ipu

LINEAL SCALE (FEET) 1500 750



(This page intentionally left blank.)

4.0 ASSESSMENT OF THE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT, POTENTIAL IMPACTS, AND MITIGATIVE MEASURES

This section describes the existing conditions of the human environment, potential impacts of Village at Po'ipū, and proposed mitigative measures to minimize any negative impacts.

4.1 ARCHAEOLOGICAL AND HISTORIC RESOURCES

Over the last fifteen years, Cultural Surveys Hawai'i (CSH) conducted several archaeological surveys in order to inventory the entire Village at Po'ipū project site. The first of these inventory surveys was conducted for the majority of the Village at Po'ipū site in 1990 and subsequently revised in 1991 (Hammatt 1991). Additional surveys have been recently conducted for the *makai* portion of the project area directly north of Po'ipū Road and the two *mauka* parcels not included in the original 1990 survey. Figure 16 shows the locations of archaeological sites within the Village at Po'ipū project site. The sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation are shaded and hatched, respectively.

In addition, CSH produced a Data Recovery and Preservation Plan for the first inventoried portion of the project site which was approved by SHPD in 1991 (Hammatt 1991). CSH has recently completed additional data recovery and interim preservation plans for Phase 1 of the Village at Po'ipū project which is located just mauka of the Kiahuna Tennis Club. All archaeological studies and preservation plans completed to date for the project site are summarized below. Appendices C through J contain the complete reports. SHPD approval letters are included in the front of each report.

In the following discussion, the "main" project area refers to the majority of the project site that was inventoried in the first CSH study in 1990-91 and outlined as Area C in Figure 16. The "makai portion" refers to the area to the east of the Kiahuna Tennis Club as shown as Area A in Figure 16. "Upper mauka" project area refers to Area D, the approximately 8.6-acre parcel identified by TMK: 2-8-14: por. 01 and separated from the main site by Grove Farm property. Finally, the "lower mauka" parcel refers to the 2.8-acre parcel separated from the main site by Hapa Road, or Area B.



LEGEND

SHPD Recommendations







Possible Preservation, Test for Burials Site Numbers of Those

Recommended for Preservation or Possible Preservation



- Source Information: A) Yorck, etal, 2005. B) Tulchin and Hammatt, 2005 C) Hammatt, etal, 1990, rev. 1991 D) Hill, etal, 2005
- * Note: Possible remnant of 3900. Requires field verification but will be identified as preservation until it can be verified.

Disclaimer: This map has been prepared for general planning purposes only.

Other Features

Project Site Boundary 1

TMK Boundary





Figure 16 Archaeological Sites

Village at Po'ipũ ^{TKNIIdsen Trust} NORTH LINEAL SCALE (FEET) 400 800 BDBR





<u>Previous Archaeology</u>

Archaeological research before 1960 was limited to oral history accounts and surveys of the larger more important sites, especially *heiau* sites along the coast. Beginning in the 1960s, several large archeological surveys were carried for a large proportion of lands throughout Kōloa and surrounding *ahupua'a*. These studies are discussed in detail in the archaeological reports included in Appendices C through J.

Archaeology and Inventory Surveys

In 1991, Cultural Surveys Hawai'i surveyed the majority of the project site (Figure 16, Area C) in support of the now-defunct Po'ipūlani Golf Course project. CSH surveyed the *makai* portion of the Village at Po'ipū project site (Area A) in 2005. The remaining upper and lower *mauka* parcels of the Village at Po'ipū site have also been surveyed by CSH and all but one of the reports have obtained SHPD review and approval. The last inventory survey report for the 2.8-acre portion of TMK 2-8-13:01 (the lower *mauka* portion) was completed in December 2005 and is currently being reviewed by SHPD. The final SHPD determination for that parcel will be included in the Final EIS. The following discussion describes the findings of the archaeology and inventory surveys and the recommendations for the project site.

Main Project Area

In 1990-91, CSH conducted an archaeological inventory of the majority of the Village at Po'ipū project area for the then-proposed Po'ipūlani Golf Course and Residential Development in 1990. The report, entitled *Archaeological Inventory Survey of the Proposed Po'ipūlani Golf Course and Residential Development Koloa, Kaua'i* (Hammatt, Folk, and Stride 1991), was completed in July 1991 and accepted by SHPD. The project was never constructed. However, the findings of the archaeological inventory survey remain relevant and are summarized below. The complete report is attached as Appendix C.

Survey Findings. Fieldwork was conducted in June and July 1990. Although there has been considerable modification of the landscape for sugar cultivation and cattle ranching, significant remnants of a once continuous pre-contact habitation and agricultural complex were found on the property. A total of 75 sites were inventoried.

Of these sites, CSH identified eight as permanent habitation sites based on their size and formal construction. These primarily consist of large platforms with paved surfaces. There is also one enclosure identified as a house enclosure from the historic period. One of the two lava tubes found in the survey area is listed as a permanent habitation site based on the size of the interior chamber. All permanent habitation sites except the house enclosure are estimated to be pre-contact.

CSH identified 31 temporary habitation sites based on size, construction, style, and shape. These sites tend to be smaller, with informal construction style, with no paving and minimal facing in the stonework. The predominant shape is a C-shape, with some small enclosures. Virtually all of the temporary habitation sites are estimated to be from the pre-contact period.

Sixteen '*auwai* were identified in the survey area. They vary in construction from two parallel earthen mounds to rock-lined depressions with rock mounds on each side. Large lengths of the '*auwai* have been impacted by land clearing for sugar cultivation and ranching and only short segments remain. All '*auwai* are estimated to be a part of the pre-contact irrigation system, although some were also used in the 19th and 20th centuries for sugar cultivation, apparently without modifications.

Agricultural sites identified by CSH consist of clusters of adjacent fields defined by low field boundary walls, earthen mounds, and/or five to six foot high, stacked boulder walls. The low earth mound walls are estimated to be from the pre-contact period and reflect pre-contact (pre-cattle) agricultural activity. The higher, stacked boulder walls are estimated to be historic additions to the pre-historic plots, specifically to control cattle.

In general, burial sites do not figure prominently in the Kōloa fields and there are relatively few sites within the project area that appear to have been used exclusively as burial structures. There are a total of eight potential burial sites, although only one of these – one of the lava tubes – has been confirmed.

The most predominant structure from the historic period is the railroad berm that crosses the *makai* section of the surveyed area. The berm is intact along almost the entire length and reaches its greatest height at the west end.

Of the 75 sites, 63 were identified as significant according to the broad criteria established for the National and State Registers. More specifically, ten habitation and agricultural sites are considered significant under criteria "C" – "Site is an excellent example of a site type." The majority of the significant sites (61) are included under criteria "D" – "Site may be likely to yield information important in prehistory or history." These are primarily habitations sites, as well as agricultural features, whose excavation and further mapping and recording could potentially increase knowledge on chronology and sequence of pre-contact land development. There are also eight sites regarded as significant under criteria "E" – "Site has cultural significance to the Hawaiians or other ethnic group."

Recommendations. The 1991 inventory survey recommended preservation of ten significant sites (site numbers 86, 900, 913, 934, 938, 939, 946, 947, 953, and 966). In addition, the accompanying 1991 data recovery and preservation plan recommended

five other sites for possible preservation due to the potential for finding burials (sites 919, 926D, 927, 936, and 940). All fifteen of these sites will be preserved in the Village at Po'ipū as shown in Figure 3. CSH recommended that all other sites that could not be incorporated into the then-proposed development be subjected to a program of data recovery including subsurface testing and excavation. The data recovery plan for this area was completed in 1991 and data recover and interim protection plan for construction of Phase I have also been completed and approved by SHPD (see below for further discussion and Appendices G-J for the full reports).

Makai Project Area

In 2005, CSH completed an archaeological inventory survey on the southern most portion of the Village at Po'ipū project site (shown as Area A in Figure 16). It is located directly *mauka* of Po'ipū Road and abuts the main portion of the Village at Po'ipū project area which was surveyed in 1990-91. The majority of the *makai* project area continues to be used as grazing land for cattle. The western portion of the project areas is being utilized as a baseyard for a local landscaping operation. A barbed-wire fence separates the nursery from the cattle grazing lands. Bulldozing activities in the current project area are evident, as there are multiple bulldozed roads in the central and eastern portions of the study area.

The *makai* project area was subjected to a field inspection by CSH archaeologists in 2003. Pedestrian inspection of the project area indicated that several previously identified sites had been disturbed. Based on the varying levels of documentation and the observation that certain sites had been destroyed and/or severely impacted, SHPD requested an inventory survey plan be developed for review and approval prior to conducting the required inventory survey. CSH completed the inventory survey of the site, which included a complete ground survey, subsurface testing, research of historic and archaeological background, and preparation of the report in 2005. The inventory survey report was reviewed and approved by SHPD and is attached as Appendix D.

Current Survey Findings. Fieldwork was conducted by Gerald Ida, B.A., Missy Kamai, B.A., and Jonas Madeus, B.A., under the general guidance of Hallett H. Hammatt, Ph.D., between the dates of September 1 and 17, 2004. The field survey included collection of GPS data, mapping, and test excavations of sites and features in the project area. The surface survey covered 100 percent of the project area. All previously identified sites were relocated, if possible, mapped, photographed, and described.

Of 33 previously documented sites, fifteen remain and eighteen no longer exist. One site was newly identified in this study. Ten sites have a habitation function, three have an agricultural function, one has both a habitation and agricultural function, one has a storage function, and one is a probable *ahupua'a* boundary. Subsurface testing and material finds recovered during the survey indicate that the sites were used primarily for temporary habitation, including limited food preparation/consumption and lithic

reduction related to tool making. All sixteen identified sites are considered significant under Criteria D, "Site may be likely to yield information important in prehistory or history."

Recommendations. The CSH report recommends nine of the sixteen sites for further data recovery and work. Five sites are not recommended for further work because they have been severely impacted by rock collecting and only remnants of the original sites remain. Two sites, site 966 and 3900, are recommended for preservation. Site 966 is the makai part of a larger complex of features identified in the 1990-91 inventory survey and preservation plan. Although it has been heavily impacted by rock collecting and bulldozing, portions of the site remain intact, including 75 meters of a stone enclosing wall, a *lo'i* wall, and an adjacent *'auwai*. CSH recommends that the preservation be focused on the remaining northern portion as shaded in Figure 16. Site 3900 is believed to be a probable ahupua'a boundary wall and should be preserved where it is intact.

Upper Mauka Project Area

The approximately 8.6-acre upper *mauka* portion of the Village at Po'ipū site, identified by TMK: 2-8-14: por. 01 (Area D in Figure 16), is located immediately *makai* of Weliweli Road and is bordered on the west by Hapa Road and on the east by parcels currently used as pastureland. It is separated from the main project area by undeveloped lands owned by Grove Farm. The parcel consists of a northern triangular shaped area and a narrow strip that extends south from it, with most of the project area being fenced with barbed wire. The southern most third of narrow strip is fairly open pasture. North of the open pasture, the density of vegetation changes abruptly from low grasses to *koa haole*, sisal, java plum trees, Chinese banyans, and tall grasses. The vegetation gets increasingly dense in the northern triangular section of the project area, reducing visibility to about 20 feet.

In March 2005, Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, Inc. conducted an archaeological field inspection of the site that identified two possible platform remnants and a portion of the Kōloa Sugar Company's elevated metal irrigation flume. In accordance with CSH's recommendation that the identified features be properly documented before any development activities commence, CSH conducted a full archaeological inventory survey for the site. The inventory survey included a complete ground survey of the upper *mauka* project area, limited subsurface testing on subsurface deposits, research on historic and archaeological background, consultation with community members, and preparation of a survey report, which is summarized below and included in its entirety as Appendix E. The report was completed in September 2005 and approved by SHPD on January 11, 2006.

Current Survey Findings. Fieldwork was completed by Todd Tulchin, Robert R. Hill, and Hallett H Hammatt on August 2-4, 2005. The fieldwork included an initial pedestrian survey, followed by subsurface testing, documentation, and photography.

Two probable archaeological sites, initially classified as raised platforms during the previous field inspection were relocated. One of the possible platforms was tested and found to have been a geologic feature modified by heavy machinery. No cultural material was found. The second platform was determined to have been similar in nature and was not tested.

The inventory survey also relocated the previously identified irrigation flume, which was found to be associated with the expansion of sugar plantation lands of the Kōloa Sugar Company. The survey revealed that damage had occurred to a 15-meter section of the irrigation flume from the modern operation of heavy equipment. It appeared that two of the structural pylons built of basal cobbles and concrete had been leveled to grade at a point where the elevated metal flume met the concrete culvert under Hapa Road. The elevated metal flume is deemed significant according to Criterion A ("Sites that are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to broad patterns of our history") due to its association with the Kōloa Sugar Company's water infrastructure and Criterion D ("Sites which have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history") for engineering information regarding the construction of the flume.

Recommendations. Because the upper mauka project area has already been extensively compromised during the construction and maintenance of the elevated metal irrigation flume, as well as the modern construction of roadways bordering the project area, CSH concluded that no mitigation measures are required for work on this parcel. All features associated with the sites identified during the survey have been thoroughly documented and therefore no further data recovery work is necessary in regard to the three sites.

Lower Mauka Project Area

The second *mauka* parcel is the 2.8-acre portion of TMK 2-8-13:01 bounded by Hapa Road, the Roman Catholic Church and undeveloped Grove Farm property. The lower *mauka* parcel is located within relatively level terrain, at an elevation of approximately 150 feet above msl. The archaeological inventory survey conducted by CSH in 2005 included a complete ground survey, subsurface testing, research on the historic and archaeological background of the site, and preparation of an inventory survey report. The complete report is included in Appendix F and is currently being reviewed by SHPD.

Current Survey Findings. Cultural Surveys Hawai'i conducted fieldwork on August 2-4, 2005. Fieldwork comprised 100 percent coverage pedestrian inspection and limited subsurface testing, which consisted of partial excavation, by hand, of selected surface archaeological features located during the pedestrian survey.

A total of three historic sites, comprised of six individual features, were identified within the central portion of the project area. Identified features consisted of ranch-related stone cattle walls, a stacked-stone platform used as a traditional Hawaiian habitation site, and two planting areas used for dry-land agriculture. Subsurface testing within the platform revealed the presence of midden, charcoal, and traditional Hawaiian artifacts. Traditional artifacts recovered from the test excavation included a basalt flake, basalt awl, broken polished basalt adze fragment, and three coral abraders. In addition, a human tooth was found in the platform test excavation site. Both the stacked-stone platform and the two agricultural planting areas were interpreted to be pre-contact habitation and agricultural features. All three historic properties are considered significant under Criteria "D" – "Site may be likely to yield information important in prehistory or history."

Recommendations. The CSH inventory survey report for the lower *mauka* parcel recommends an archaeological data recovery program, in the form of controlled archaeological excavations for both the stacked-stone platform and the agricultural planting areas. Data recovery excavations will generate additional information regarding the age and function of the properties. Because the inventory survey generated sufficient information regarding the location, function, age, and construction methods of the stone walls, no further work is recommended.

In addition, due to the presence of a human tooth located during the test excavation within the platform, there is the possibility that additional human remains may be present. Prior to commencement of construction, the data recovery program including a Data Recovery Plan will be submitted to SHPD for review and approval.

Data Recovery and Preservation Plans

To date, CSH has completed data recovery plans for the main project area, the Phase 1 project area, and the railroad berm in compliance with SHPD regulations. CSH also prepared an interim protection plan for the Phase 1 project area. These reports are summarized below and are attached in their entirety in Appendices G, H, I, and J.

Main Project Area

A data recovery and preservation plan was first completed for the main project area by CSH in 1991 as a follow-up to the archaeological inventory survey for the proposed Po'ipūlani Golf Course and related residential development. The following discussion summarizes the recommendations of the plan. See Appendix G for the complete report.

Preservation Plan. The 1991 data recovery and preservation plan recommended complete preservation of nine sites (sites 86, 900, 913, 934, 936, 938, 939, 953, 966) and the partial preservation of the railroad berm (site 947). An additional five sites (sites

919, 926D, 927, 936, and 940) should also be preserved if archaeological testing determined that human burials occur within them.

During construction, the plan recommended marking all sites designated for preservation with a fence or highly visible barrier to make them visible for avoidance by mechanical equipment. The location of these barriers should be approved by State and County agencies but should create at least a 50-foot buffer. An archaeologist should be present during fencing to insure appropriate location of the fences and during all grading, grubbing, or other construction activities in the vicinity of the preserve areas that are likely to pose potential impact to them. The plan also recommended taking immediate steps to prevent vandalism to all existing sites, particularly rock robbing.

Following completion of construction, CSH recommends establishing a long-term preservation plan approved by State and County agencies. The long-term plan would likely include vegetation clearing, planting around some of the sites, and interpretive signage. In addition, access to the two lava tubes should be limited by protective fencing or grates at the entrances.

Data Recovery. The 1991 CSH plan also recommends data recovery activities for certain sites. Of the total 63 significant sites, ten sites are to be preserved and do not require more than testing to address specific questions. The remaining 53 sites should be the subject of a data recovery plan, which recommended the following data collection activities:

- Cross-section trenches of *'auwai*, agricultural fields, and field walls;
- Testing of larger habitation sites with more complete excavation of two sites;
- Testing of at least half of all temporary habitation sites with complete excavation of two to three sites.
- Testing of two cave sites with a one-meter square trench each, to recover chronological and paleontological data;
- Preparation of an end of fieldwork report and arrangement of a site tour with SHPD.
- Preparation of a final report on all data recovery (and monitoring) findings.

Phase I

Phase 1 of the Village at Po'ipū consists of approximately 20 acres located *mauka* of Po'ipū Road and is bordered on west by Hapa Road and on the south by Kiahuna Tennis Club. The area was included in the 1978 archaeological inventory survey for the proposed Kiahuna Golf Village project and the 1991 archaeological inventory survey and data recovery and preservation plan for the proposed Po'ipūlani Golf Course project. Data recovery and interim protection plans have been completed for this area in preparation for construction of Phase 1. These plans, which are summarized below, are included as Appendices H, I, and J.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

Data Recovery for Phase I. CSH prepared and completed archaeological data recovery for the four significant sites located within Phase 1 of the Village at Po'ipū project in November 2004. It was reviewed and accepted by SHPD on January 26, 2005. The data recovery and preservation plan was formulated based on the results of the archaeological inventory survey prepared for the property by CSH in 1991. The scope of work for the data recovery included archaeological fieldwork to document artifacts and faunal materials and features, research on historic and archaeological background, and preparation of an archaeological data recovery report, which is included as Appendix H of this EIS.

The four historic sites (908, 909, 969, and 973) were excavated for data recovery. Two were temporary habitation platforms and two were 'auwai (irrigation ditches) used for pre-contact agricultural activities. Limited amounts of cultural materials were recovered during excavation of one of the habitation platforms, suggesting that the site was used temporarily rather than for an extended period time. The lack of cultural materials were found during the testing of the 'auwai, which is not uncommon for such features. Construction of the 'auwai suggests that they were constructed and utilized during precontact times, despite the lack of charcoal. Dates received from radiocarbon dating indicate that the habitation platform was used during late pre-contact and early historic times.

Data Recovery for Railroad Berm. A portion of the railroad berm that bisects the Village at Po'ipū site (state site 50-30-10-947) will be rifted to allow for a planned road in the Phase 1 project area. A data recovery plan for the railroad berm was completed by CSH in September 2004 and approved by SHPD on December 15, 2004. The berm is part of a railroad network that historically transferred sugar from Weliweli and Pa'a to Kōloa Landing. The original data recovery and preservation plan completed in 1991 by CSH for the proposed Po'ipūlani development recommended that photographs and cross sectional drawings be made any time the berm experiences demolition, in order to document construction methods used to build the structure as well as to preserve significant historical information. In satisfaction of this recommendation, the 2004 data recovery plan requires the same level of documentation for any breach of the railroad berm. In addition, it requires stabilization of the cut ends of the berm using the material that is removed from the breach and maintenance of the same slope as much as County construction regulations will allow. The complete plan is included as Appendix I.

Based on historical records, the railroad berm was constructed between 1882 and 1910 as part of the Kōloa Sugar Company railroad system. This section of the railroad was used to haul sugar from Weliweli and Pa'a to Kōloa Landing. The east branch of the berm traverses a portion of the Village at Po'ipū site (TMK 2-8-14:19) for a distance of 1,650 feet from southwest to northeast. The berm in the area of Phase I is six feet high

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

and 20 feet wide. The proposed road will require about 50 feet of the berm to be removed for the proposed road in Phase I.

The loss of this relatively small portion of the berm will allow for documentation of the construction methods used to build the berm. The objective of the data recovery plan is to increase public knowledge about the construction of the railroad berm. Fieldwork will include the production of archival quality photographs and archaeological cross-sections of the railroad berm as it is breached. Since little is known about the construction of this historic site, the loss of this portion of berm is balanced by increasing knowledge of the site. According to CSH, the additional information about the construction of the railroad is proper mitigation for the relatively small amount of impact on the site. A report of the findings when construction occurs will be prepared for review and approval of SHPD.

Phase I Interim Protection Plan. The interim preservation plan for historic sites located in Phase I of the Village at Po'ipū project area was completed by CSH in October 2004 and approved by SHPD on March 30, 2005. The plan includes descriptions of all sites within proximity to Phase I construction activity and recommends how sites should be protected during the course of construction activities. See Appendix J for the complete plan.

Interim protection measures will include the following:

- **Demarcated Buffer Zones:** A buffer will be marked with an orange colored plastic barricade fence and appropriate signage during any construction in the immediate area of historic sites. The fencing and signage will remain in effect during all construction and landscaping activities in the vicinity. Avoidance instructions will be written into construction plans and specifications. No construction will take place within the buffer zone.
- Written Notification and Invitation to Verification of Buffer Establishment: The State Historic Preservation Division will be notified in writing once the interim buffer marker is erected and invited to verify the placement prior to any land alternation near the sites.
- **On-site Briefing of All Trades Working in the Vicinity:** All construction and landscaping crews working in the vicinity will have an on-site briefing informing them of the presence of the boundaries around the sites, asking for their avoidance of this area, and holding them accountable, for any breach of the maintenance of the integrity of the buffer zones.

Hapa Road

Although not included in any of the archaeological inventory studies prepared for the Village at Po'ipū, CSH provides a detailed description of the historic Hapa Road (site 992) and its rock walls in the Village at Po'ipū Phase I Interim Protection Plan (Appendix J). It describes the current condition of the road, portions of which have been paved into a modern road. The road itself is at least 100 years old and is believed to date back to the 1850s when the Catholic Church was built makai of Kōloa Town on the west side of the road. It probably predated this period as a mauka/makai trail. Because the rocky lands on either side of the road were used for cattle grazing, the walls were necessitated as pasture boundaries and to allow driving of cattle along the road during the early part of this century. The County of Kaua'i has mandated by ordinance and condition of zoning approvals that Hapa Road be improved into a pedestrian and bicycle path.

Summary of Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation to date as well as those recommended for possible preservation by SHPD have been protected in the conceptual master plan (see Figure 3). Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. Within the Village at Po'ipū project site, over 23 acres have been set aside for archaeological sites and preserves.

In addition, Hapa Road will be improved as a pedestrian and bicycle path as mandated by the County of Kaua'i. The historic rock walls will be preserved in place where they are in good condition and restored where they have collapsed or have been damaged by stone robbing. The path is envisioned as part of an integrated pedestrian and bicycle network that will weave throughout the Village at Po'ipū project. The Knudsen Trust will work closely with SHPD and the County of Kaua'i on the design and development of Hapa Road.

CSH and representatives from the Knudsen Trust are working closely with the State Historic Preservation Division's (SHPD) Kaua'i representative, Nancy McMahon, on preservation and protection plans. Their work is ongoing as construction for Phase I is expected to commence in 2006. As more studies are completed and approved for the project, similar steps will be taken to ensure all significant sites are protected as required by SHPD.

The Knudsen Trust and its contractors will comply with all laws and rules regarding the preservation of archaeological and historic sites should any sites be found during demolition and construction. Should any human remains, *iwi kupuna* or Native Hawaiian cultural or traditional deposits, be found during ground disturbance or excavation, work will cease immediately where the cultural material is found and the

site shall be protected from further damage. The contractor shall immediately contact SHPD, which will assess the significance of the find and recommend appropriate mitigation measures, if necessary. Alternate public access routes will be provided if safety-related restrictions are put in place during construction.

As shown in the conceptual master plan for the Village at Po'ipū, the proposed vehicular and pedestrian circulation networks will be designed to provide both visual connections and direct access to the sites. In most cases, public roadways will run adjacent to the sites so that cultural practitioners, researchers and other interested persons may easily access the sites. However, low walls or other barriers should be erected around the archaeological preserves to discourage stone robbing. Appropriate interpretive signage will be provided at the archaeological preserves. In addition, the signs will instruct visitors of the care and respect required to preserve the sites for future generations. Native plants will be used to landscape the sites. It is expected that the future Homeowners' Association (HOA) for the Village at Po'ipū will maintain the sites once the Knudsen Trust completes the initial improvements and transfers ownership to the HOA.

4.2 CULTURAL RESOURCES

Cultural Surveys Hawai'i (CSH) conducted a cultural impact assessment of the Village at Po'ipū site to gather information about traditional cultural practices and pre-historic and historic cultural resources. Preparation of the assessment included archival and documentary research, review of existing archaeological information, and consultation with individuals with knowledge of the area, and the cultural resources, practices, and beliefs associated with the area. The cultural impact assessment is summarized below. Appendix K contains the full report.

Historical Cultural Context

Pre-Contact Kōloa. The Village at Po'ipū site is in the *ahupua'a* of Kōloa in the Kona District of Kaua'i Island. The project area is located at the eastern end of an expansive irrigation system that spread out across the *makai* plain of Kōloa Ahupua'a. Although few records exist that document traditional Hawaiian life in Kōloa Ahupua'a, the documentation of at least fourteen *heiau*, the presence of a *hōlua* course in the *mauka* reaches of the *ahupua'a*, and the myriad legends attached to Maulili Pool suggest a heightened cultural richness of the *ahupua'a*.

Archaeological investigations have revealed that the *"lo'i* lands of Kōloa" formed an extensive system -- the *"*Kōloa Field System" -- that extended from Lāwa'i to Weliweli. The Kōloa field system consisted of a series of parallel *'auwai* fed by Waikomo Stream.

The system covered over 700 acres, making it one of the largest irrigated systems in the Hawaiian Islands.

Early Historic Period. Written accounts by visitors and settlers at Koloa Ahupua'a primarily describe the westerners' own concerns. However, these accounts include occasional references to the Hawaiians of the *ahupua'a*.

The first western settlers arrived in Kōloa in December 1834, initiating a process of rapid change that would reshape the life of Kōloa in the nineteenth century. Commercial activities burgeoned in the 1830s. In 1835, Ladd and Company gained from the King and local chiefs the lease of about one thousand acres and began sugarcane cultivation. In response, Kōloa Town and the landing at the mouth of Waikomo Stream became major commercial centers. Chief exports included sweet potatoes, sugar, and molasses. Kōloa was also frequently used as a landing for whalers.

Toward the mid-nineteenth century, the Organic Acts of 1845 and 1846 initiated the process of the Mahele – the division of Hawaiian lands – which introduced private property ownership into Hawaiian society. The bulk of the Kōloa Ahupua'a (approximately 8,620 acres) was awarded to Moses Kekuaiwa, the son of Kekuanaoa and Kinua, and the brother of Alexander Liholiho (Kamehameha IV), Lot Kapuaiwa (Kamehameha V), and Victoria Kamāmalu. The next largest award went to the Protestant Mission and consisted of approximately 825 acres.

Eighty-eight other *kuleana* awards were given to individuals within Kōloa Ahupua'a. Three Land Commission Awards (LCAs) are located within the Village at Po'ipū project area. An additional five LCAs are located adjacent to the project area.

Documentation from the Mahele period provides the most information about traditional Hawaiian activities, practices and land use within the project area. Mahele documents indicate that within and around the Village at Po'ipū project area, land use and activity by the mid-nineteenth century included habitation and taro cultivation. This may reflect the continuation of traditional Hawaiian land use within the project area. Testimony from one awardee in the vicinity of the project site, R.A. Walsh of the Roman Catholic Mission, suggests that the portion of Kōloa including the project area comprises the eastern end of a *lo'i* (irrigated terrace) system of the *ahupua'a*.

Late 1800s to Present. It is likely that taro lo'i continued in existence in the 1880s and the population of Kōloa continued to be dispersed across the Kōloa plain. A hand-drawn map of Kōloa by Kōloa resident, Judge Henry Kawahinehelelani Blake depicts taro *lo'i* and houses in the central portion of the Village at Po'ipū project area through the late nineteenth century. These uses were likely a continuation of the fields and houses identified in the LCA records.

By the first decades of the twentieth century, cane fields spanned the landscape of Kōloa. However, sugar company field maps from the early 1900s indicate only small incursions of sugarcane within the present project area. By the mid-twentieth century, the project area was comprised of open pasture, with sugar cane extending into small portions. An aerial photograph taken on April 30, 2000 indicates that, at the end of the twentieth century, the project area continued to comprise open and brush-covered pastureland with now-discontinued sugar cane fields also present.

<u>Interviews</u>

As part of the cultural assessment, individuals were interviewed to obtain information concerning their knowledge of the Village at Po'ipū site or the vicinity. Summaries of these interviews follow below. Transcripts of the interviews are included in the cultural assessment report (Appendix K).

Chris Kauwe and **Billy Kaohelauli'i** were interviewed at Po'ipū Beach Park, which is just *makai* of the lands and cultural site that their group, Hui Malama Kāne I Olo Uma, is presently caring for. Mr. Kaohelauli'i recalled visiting the project area with his family during his childhood in Kōloa. He also recalled a trail lined with rocks that led past the church up to Kōloa Town. Mr. Kaohelauli'i believes cultural sites within the project area include *heiau*, house foundations, birth places, caves, and rock walls.¹

Regarding current uses of the site, Mr. Kauwe identified several native herbs that he gathers from the project site for cultural practices. He also mentioned foot trails that lead into the project area from the Weliweli Tract subdivision. Both Mr. Kauwe and Mr. Kaohelauli'i believe that the archaeological sites in the project area were once continuous with the sites their group is caring for. Their concerns regarding the Village at Po'ipū project include watershed contamination, the loss of native plants, the loss of open space, and over-population and overcrowding. Mr. Kauwe also expressed concern that flooding could impact the lands *makai* of the site for which is group is currently caring.

Reginald Gage has been a Kaua'i resident since 1968 and serves on the Board of Directors of the Kaua'i Historical Society. Mr. Gage provided information about the origins of the name *Kōloa*, legends associated with Kōloa, and historic uses within the area. Regarding current cultural practices, Mr. Gage was not aware of any gathering of resources or cultural practices by Native Hawaiians or any other ethnic groups on the Village at Po'ipū site. Mr. Gage's greatest concern regarding the project site is the previous destruction or loss of archaeological sites. He noted that there could be unknown and undiscovered sites within the project area. He also suggested that

¹ Please note that no *heiau* were found onsite during the archaeological inventory surveys performed for the project site. Please refer to Section 4.1 and related appendices.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

although he does not know of any trails, it is likely that there were trails that have since been overgrown.

Kupuna Elizabeth Kalehuamakanoe Bukoski came to live in Kōloa in the 1930s. She now lives on Hapa Road immediately west of the proposed project area. During her interview, Mrs. Bukoski recalled sending her children into the project site to gather native plants for medicine, including *'uhaloa* and *pōpolo*. She also remembered many different native trees along Hapa Road, including *koa* and *kamani*. According to Mrs. Bukoski, Hapa Road was the first road in the area and that it was unpaved. She did not recall any other trails in the area. With regards to the proposed Village at Po'ipū project, Mrs. Bukoski expressed the belief that the project developer does not understand the area and its residents, and that it is unaware of potential historic sites. She is also concerned about the project's location across from her family's home.

David Chang is a local historian and long-time resident of Kōloa. In a phone interview with CSH, Mr. Chang expressed his concerns about the critical habitat of the Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Amphipod.

Recommendations

To ensure the protection and preservation of all significant historic sites and any potential burial sites (if present), CSH recommends that preservation procedures formulated during archaeological investigations be implemented prior to and during future development. In the event that previously unrecorded, significant historic properties are encountered during the course of development activities, further preservation measures should be undertaken.

In order to mitigate the impact of future development on traditional gathering practices, native Hawaiian plants should be incorporated in the landscaping in and around archaeological preserve areas of the project. Access to these areas for gathering purposes should be coordinated with members of the local community.

CSH has determined that the Village at Po'ipū project can have minimal impact upon native Hawaiian cultural resources, beliefs and practices, provided that the measures for the preservation of significant historic properties and burial treatment are implemented, and that there is proper treatment of any previously unrecorded, significant historic properties that may be encountered during development.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

Based on interviews held with people knowledgeable with the Kōloa-Po'ipū area and the Village at Po'ipū site, the primary cultural concerns pertain to the protection and preservation of culturally and historically significant archaeological sites. As discussed

in Section 4.1, all of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation by SHPD will be preserved and are integrated into the design of the proposed Village at Po'ipū community (see Figure 3). Native plants, including those that are currently found onsite, will be planted within the archaeological preserves. Whenever possible, existing plants will be transplanted into these areas. The preserves will be accessible to the public and will allow continued access by cultural practitioners. During construction, the Office of Hawaiian Affairs recommends that access to the sites and for cultural gathering should continue as long as public safety can be ensured. Alternate public access routes will be provided if safety-related restrictions to access are put in place during construction.

4.3 ROADWAYS AND TRAFFIC

Austin Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc. prepared a Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) for the proposed project. Key elements of the TIAR are summarized below. Appendix L contains the complete report.

Existing Conditions

The Village at Po'ipū project site is bordered by Weliweli Road to the north, Po'ipū Road to the south, and Kiahuna Plantation Drive and Hapa Road to the west. Primary access to the site is either from the south via Po'ipū Road or from the north via Maluhia and Weliweli Roads. Ala Kinoiki Road, the eastern bypass road, parallels the project site to the east. Weekday AM peak traffic occurs from 7:15 a.m. to 8:15 a.m. Weekday PM peak traffic occurs from 3:45 p.m. to 4:45 p.m.

Existing roadways within the project area are described below:

• <u>Po'ipū Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane County collector roadway that runs northsouth from Kōloa Road to Lāwa'i Road. Po'ipū Road changes to east-west direction after its intersection with Lāwa'i Road. The speed limit is 25 miles per hour (mph). Po'ipū Road forms the stem of an unsignalized Tee-intersection with Kōloa Road. The Po'ipū Road northbound approach has a yield-signcontrolled exclusive right-turn lane and a stop-sign-controlled exclusive left-turn lane. Further east, at its intersection with Kiahuna Tennis Club Driveway, Po'ipū Road has a shared right-turn/through lane at its eastbound approach and a shared through/left-turn lane at its westbound approach. At Kiahuna Plantation Drive, Po'ipū Road eastbound and westbound approaches have an exclusive leftturn lane and a shared right-turn/through lane. At the Ho'owili Road/Po'ipū Road intersection, the eastbound approach has a shared right-turn/through lane. At the Ho'owili Road/Po'ipū Road intersection, the eastbound approach has a shared right-turn/through lane while the westbound approach has a shared right-turn/through lane while the Westbound approach has a shared right-turn/through lane
turn/through lane; the eastbound approach has an exclusive left-turn lane and a through lane. East of the project site, Po'ipū Road forms a cross-intersection with Ala Kinoiki (north leg) and Pe'e Road (south leg). The Po'ipū Road eastbound approach has an exclusive left-turn lane and a shared right-turn/through lane. The westbound approach has a shared left-turn/through lane and an exclusive right-turn lane.

- <u>Weliweli Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane, County roadway oriented east-west from Kōloa Road to the Old Kōloa Sugar Mill. It intersects Ala Kinoiki Road east of Kōloa Town. The posted speed limit is 25 mph. Weliweli Road forms the stem of an unsignalized Tee-intersection with Kōloa Road. The northbound approach is stop-sign-controlled and has a single shared left-turn/right-turn lane. At the Weliweli Road/Hapa Road intersection, the Weliweli Road westbound approach has a single lane for left-turn and through movements, while the eastbound approach has a single shared lane for through and right-turn movements. Further west, Weliweli Road forms a cross-intersection with Ala Kinoiki Road. The stop-sign-controlled Weliweli Road westbound and eastbound approaches have a single shared lane for left-turn, through, and right-turn movements.
- <u>Hapa Road</u> is a two-way County roadway oriented north-south, in the northern portion of the Village at Po'ipū site. The road runs from a Tee-intersection with Weliweli Road to Saint Raphael's Church. At the Weliweli Road intersection, the Hapa Road northbound approach is stop-sign-controlled and has an exclusive right-turn and an exclusive left-turn lane. South of the church it is an unimproved road. Remnants of low rock walls border the road in places.
- <u>Kiahuna Plantation Drive</u> is a two-way, two-lane, private driveway that runs north-south, beginning at a stop-sign-controlled intersection with Po'ipū Road. At the intersection, the northbound and southbound approaches each have a single shared lane for right-turn/through/left-turn movements. Kiahuna Plantation Drive provides access to Kiahuna Golf Club, Po'ipū Shopping Village, and Kiahuna Golf Village residences. The posted speed limit is 25 mph.

Other existing roadways that are in the vicinity of the project area include the following:

• <u>Maluhia Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane road oriented north-south from Kaumuali'i Highway to an unsignalized Tee-intersection with Koloa Road. The posted speed limit varies from 35 to 50 mph, and is reduced to 25 mph as the road approaches Kōloa Town. At Kōloa Road, the Maluhia Road southbound approach has an exclusive right-turn lane and an exclusive left-turn lane. The southbound right-turn traffic is yield-sign-controlled, while the southbound leftturn traffic is stop-sign-controlled. At its intersection with Ala Kinoiki Road, the Maluhia Road northbound approach has a through lane and an exclusive right-

turn lane; the southbound approach has a through land and an exclusive left-turn.

- Ala Kinoiki Road (i.e. Koloa/Po'ipū Eastern Bypass Road) is a two-way, twolane, County arterial roadway oriented north-south, providing an alternate route from Maluhia Road in Koloa to Po'ipu. The posted speed limit on Ala Kinoiki Road varies from 25 to 40 mph. Ala Kinoiki Road intersects Maluhia Road north of Koloa Town at an unsignalized Tee-intersection. The Ala Kinoiki Road westbound approach is stop-sign-controlled and has an exclusive left-turn lane and an exclusive right-turn lane. The Ala Kinoiki Road westbound right-turn lane connects to an exclusive northbound acceleration lane on Maluhia Road, forming a "free" right-turn. Ala Kinoiki Road continues south to an intersection with Weliweli Road. The northbound approach has an exclusive left-turn lane and a two to three vehicle storage length and a share right-turn/through lane. The southbound approach at Weliweli Road has an exclusive left-turn lane with a two to three vehicle storage length, a through lane, and an exclusive right-turn lane. Further south, Ala Kinoiki Road intersects Po'ipū Road on the east side of the project site. The southbound approach has an exclusive right-turn lane connecting to an acceleration lane on westbound Po'ipū Road, forming a "free" right-turn.
- <u>Koloa Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane road County collector roadway oriented eastwest from Kaumuali'i Highway in Lāwa'i to Waikomo Road in Koloa. The speed limit varies between 25 to 50 mph on the section from Kaumuali'i Highway to Po'ipū Road and between 15 to 25 mph in Kōloa Town. At its intersection with Maluhia Road, the Koloa Road eastbound approach has an exclusive left-turn lane with a storage length for approximately six to seven vehicles and a through lane; the westbound approach has a single shared lane for through and rightturn traffic movements. At the Koloa Road/Po'ipū Road intersection, the Koloa Road westbound approach has an exclusive left-turn lane with a storage length for approximately seven to eight vehicles and a separate through lane. The eastbound approach has a single shared lane for through and right-turn traffic movements. At its intersection with Weliweli Road, the Koloa Road eastbound approach has a single shared lane for through and right-turn traffic movements while the westbound approach has a single shared lane for left-turn and through movements.
- <u>Kiahuna Tennis Club Driveway</u> is a two-way, two-lane, private driveway oriented north-south, which begins at a stop-signed-controlled Tee-intersection with Po'ipū Road, and serves as the only access to the Kiahuna Tennis Club. Southbound, the Kiahuna Tennis Club Driveway has a shared right-turn and left-turn lane.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

- <u>Ho'owili Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane, County roadway running south from Po'ipū Road to Ho'one Road, providing access to Po'ipū Beach Park, Brennecke Beach Park, and single-family residences. The posted speed limit is 25 mph. At its stop-sign-controlled intersection with Po'ipū Road, the Ho'owili Road northbound approach has an exclusive right-turn lane and an exclusive left-turn lane.
- <u>Kipuka Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane, County roadway that runs north-south, beginning at a Tee-intersection with Po'ipū Road and terminating at Pahoehoe Road. At Po'ipū Road the stop-sign-controlled Kipuka Street southbound approach has a single lane for right-turn and left-turn movements. Kipuka Road serves the neighboring Weliweli Tract subdivision. The posted speed limit is 25 mph.
- <u>Pahoehoe Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane, County roadway oriented east-west, and located in the northern portion of the Weliweli Tract subdivision.
- <u>Pe'e Road</u> is a two-way, two-lane, County roadway that runs north-south from Po'ipū Road to where Ho'one Road to the south. Pe'e Road serves the residences and resorts around the Po'ipū Crater Resort area. The posted speed is 25 mph.

Existing and Projected Traffic Condition Analysis without Project. Level of Service (LOS) is a qualitative measure used to describe the conditions of traffic flow ranging from free-flow conditions (LOS A) to congested conditions (LOS F). Most intersections in the vicinity of the proposed Village at Po'ipū project site currently operate at acceptable LOS levels during morning and afternoon peak hours. The exception to this is the Kōloa Road/Po'ipū Road intersection, at which the northbound left-turn traffic on Po'ipū Road operates at LOS F during the afternoon peak hour of traffic.

As a basis for comparison, traffic was projected for the area without the proposed Village at Po'ipū project. It was calculated based on a three percent annual growth of background traffic² and the projected traffic generated by new projects planned in the area as known at the time of the TIAR. These projects included Kukui'ula and related employee housing, Kiahuna Mauka, Kōloa Creekside, the Po'ipū Beach Hotel, Kōloa Marketplace, Historic Kōloa Village, the Po'ipū Beach Villas, and the expansion of the Sheraton Kauai Resort Hotel. It also considered roadway improvements planned for these projects such as the Western Bypass Road. The study years selected for the traffic projections were 2006, 2010, and 2015 in order to coincide with the proposed phasing of the Village at Po'ipū project.

² Calculated based on State Department of Transportation studies and historic data. Please reference the full TIAR for more detail (Appendix L).

Even without the project, several improvements to the roadway network in the Kōloa-Po'ipū region would need to be made to provide acceptable levels of service to accommodate projected traffic growth. ATA recommended the following improvements.

Base year 2006 without the project:

• At the Po'ipū Road/Ala Kinoiki Road/Pe'e Road intersection: install an all-way stop controlled intersection or a single-lane roundabout. Roundabouts are able to accommodate up to 30 percent more vehicular traffic with less delay than a signalized or stop-controlled intersection. However, there may not be sufficient space to accommodate one at this location without acquiring additional right-of-way.

Base year 2010 without the project:

- At the Koloa Road/Weliweli Road intersection, modify the Weliweli Road northbound approach to include an exclusive right-turn lane and an exclusive left-turn lane.
- At the Ala Kinoiki Road/Weliweli Road intersection, install a traffic signal or single-lane roundabout.
- At the Po'ipū Road/Ho'owili Road intersection, install a traffic signal or singlelane roundabout.
- At the Po'ipū Road/Kiahuna Plantation Drive intersection, install a traffic signal or single-lane roundabout.

Base year 2015 without the project:

• Additional improvements may be required depending upon the improvement installed in 2010. The Po'ipū Road/Kiahuna Plantation Drive would require the addition of exclusive right- and left-turn lanes if a traffic signal is installed. No further improvements will be required if a single-lane roundabout be installed.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

As noted earlier, build-out of the Village at Po'ipū would occur over three phases with the phases estimated to finish by 2006, 2010, and 2015. The TIAR projects the incremental impacts to traffic from each of the three phases and recommends mitigative measures.

Phase 1 (2006). Residents of Phase 1 would utilize Kiahuna Plantation Drive and the Kiahuna Tennis Club Driveway. Phase 1 is expected to generate approximately 33 trips during the AM peak hour of traffic and 40 trips during the PM peak hour of traffic. Traffic conditions at intersections will be similar to conditions without the project. Because no major traffic impacts resulting from Phase 1 of the project are anticipated, no mitigation measures are proposed.

Phase 2 (2010). Following completion of Phase 2, traffic from the Village at Po'ipū will use two additional access points: 1) Kipuka Street; and 2) a new road (Driveway A) intersecting Po'ipū Road at its intersection with Ho'owili Road. Build-out of Phase 1 and Phase 2 is expected to generate approximately 130 trips during the AM peak hour of traffic and 165 trips during the PM peak hour of traffic.

The construction of Driveway A during Phase 2 will reinforce the baseline need to either install a traffic signal or construct a single-lane roundabout at its intersection with Po'ipū Road and Ho'owili Road. If a traffic signal is installed, the following will be required:

- An exclusive right-turn lane and a shared through/left-turn lane on the northbound Ho'owili Road approach;
- A shared right-turn/through/left-turn lane on the southbound Driveway A approach; and
- A shared right-turn/through lane and an exclusive left-turn lane on westbound and eastbound Po'ipū Road approaches.

With either the installation of a roundabout or traffic signal, operating conditions will be acceptable at this intersection. Traffic at the other intersections will be similar to future conditions without the project so no additional mitigation measures are proposed.

Phase 3 (2015). At full build-out, the Village at Po'ipū is proposed to have five access points onto the existing roadway network: 1) Kiahuna Plantation Drive; 2) Kiahuna Tennis Club driveway; 3) Hapa Road; 4) Kipuka Street via Pahoehoe Street; and 5) Driveway A. With the third phase completed, Village at Po'ipū is expected to generate approximately 242 trips during the AM peak hour of traffic and 320 trips during the PM peak hour of traffic. Traffic flow at area intersections will be similar to projected baseline conditions without the project except for the following:

- Traffic on the southbound Kiahuna Tennis Club Driveway approach to Po'ipū Road will be LOS E rather than LOS D during the PM peak hour but would not warrant the installation of a traffic signal; and
- Traffic on the southbound Kiahuna Plantation Drive approach to Po'ipū Road would require an exclusive right-turn lane should a traffic signal be installed at the Kiahuna Plantation Drive/Po'ipū Road intersection. No design changes would be necessary if a single-lane roundabout is installed.

The projected traffic impacts directly attributed to the Village at Po'ipū are anticipated to be relatively minor. With the installation of all recommended improvements, traffic in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area is expected to operate at acceptable levels of service. The Knudsen Trust will implement those improvements directly related to its project's projected traffic impacts.

4.4 NOISE

D.L Adams Associates, Ltd. prepared an environmental noise assessment report for the Village at Po'ipū to examine potential noise impacts and suggest possible mitigative measures (see Appendix M). Key elements of the report are summarized below.

Existing Conditions

The Village at Po'ipū project site and vicinity is relatively quiet. The dominant sources of noise are generated by vehicular traffic on surrounding roads, birds, and wind. Secondary noise sources include pedestrian traffic, barking dogs and farm animals, and light rain. Based on noise measurements taken at the property line, the average daynight level is 53 decibel (dBA).

Potential Impacts

Potential impacts to the acoustic environment of the site and neighboring properties relate to short-term demolition and construction noise, traffic, and post-construction operations.

Demolition and Construction Noise. The dominant noise sources during construction will probably be earth moving equipment, such as bulldozers and diesel powered trucks. Noise from construction activities will occur mainly on the project site and Hapa Road. Noise from construction activities will be short-term, limited to daytime hours, and will comply with State of Hawaii Community Noise Control Rules and the DOH-issued construction noise permit.

Traffic Noise. Increases in traffic noise levels are not expected to be significant. At most, increases are less than 1 dB. All existing and predicted future noise levels are well below the FHWA/HDOT maximum noise limit of 67 dBA.

Post-Construction Operations. After construction, long-term noise impacts would include stationary mechanical equipment that is typical for residential housing, such as air conditioners or compressors. Other noises include typical human activities (i.e. outdoor maintenance, conversations, etc.) and vehicles entering and exiting the neighborhoods.

Mitigative Measures

All activities related to Village at Po'ipū will comply with HAR, Chapter 11-46, Community Noise Control.

Demolition and Construction Noise. Proper mitigating measures will be employed to minimize demolition- and construction-related noise impacts to comply with all Federal and State noise control regulations. The noise assessment report recommends using mufflers on diesel and gasoline engine machines and using property tuned and balanced machines. Additional noise mitigation could include temporary noise barriers or time of day usage limits for certain kinds of construction activities.

Increased noise activity due to demolition and construction will be short-term, limited to daytime hours, and persist only during the construction period. When construction noise exceeds, or is expected to exceed the Department of Health's allowable limits, a permit must be obtained. Specific permit restrictions for construction activities are:

- No permit shall allow any construction activities that emit noise in excess of the maximum permissible sound levels before 7:00 a.m. and after 6:00 p.m. of the same day, Monday through Friday.
- No permit shall allow any construction activities that emit noise in excess of the maximum permissible sound levels before 9:00 a.m. and after 6:00 p.m. on Saturday.
- No permit shall allow any construction activities that emit noise in excess of the maximum permissible sound levels on Sundays and holidays.

The use of hoe rams and jack hammers 25 lbs. or larger, high-pressure sprayers, chain saws, and pile drivers will be restricted to 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.

Traffic Noise. Because traffic noise analysis shows no significant noise impact to the surrounding community, or at the proposed Village at Po'ipū site, mitigation measures related to traffic noise are not warranted or proposed.

Post-Construction Operations. The design of Village at Po'ipū will provide for the location and placement of stationary mechanical equipment, such as chillers, compressors, and air conditioning units, away from neighbors and residential units, as much as is practical. Enclosed mechanical rooms may be required for some equipment.

4.5 AIR QUALITY

B.D. Neal & Associates prepared an air quality impact assessment to: 1) examine potential air quality impacts related to Village at Po'ipū; and 2) suggest mitigative measures to reduce any potential air quality impacts where possible and appropriate. The air quality assessment is summarized below. Appendix N contains the full report.

Existing Conditions

The climate of the Po'ipū area is very much affected by the topography of the island and its coastal situation. Winds are predominantly trade winds from the east or northeast, except for occasional periods when kona storms may generate strong winds from the south or when the trade winds are weak and land breeze-sea breeze circulations may develop. Wind speeds average about 11 to 12 miles per hour, providing relatively good ventilation much of the time. Temperatures in the area are generally very moderate with average daily temperatures ranging from about 68 degrees Fahrenheit to 81 degrees Fahrenheit. Average annual rainfall in the Po'ipū area amounts to about 40 to 45 inches with summer months being the driest.

Both federal and state standards have been established to maintain ambient air quality. At the present time, seven parameters are regulated, including: particulate matter, sulfur dioxide, hydrogen sulfide, nitrogen dioxide, carbon monoxide, ozone, and lead. Hawai'i air quality standards are comparable to the national standards except those for nitrogen dioxide and carbon monoxide, which are more stringent than the national standards.

Although there is very little air quality data available from the Department of Health for the island of Kaua'i, the present air quality of the project area appear to be reasonably good. Based on the information available, it appears likely that all national air quality standards are currently being met, although occasional exceedances of the more stringent state standards for carbon monoxide may occur near congested roadway intersections.

Potential Impacts

Short-Term Impacts. Short-term direct and indirect impacts on air quality could potentially occur due to project construction. Direct impacts could include: 1) fugitive dust from vehicle movement and soil excavation; and 2) exhaust emissions from on-site construction equipment.

Fugitive dust emissions from demolition and construction activities are difficult to estimate because of their elusive nature of emission and because the potential for its generation varies greatly depending upon the type of soil at the construction site, the amount of dirt-disturbing activity taking place, the moisture content of exposed soil in work areas, and the wind speed.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has provided a rough estimate for uncontrolled fugitive dust emissions from construction activity of 1.2 tons per acre per month under conditions of "medium" activity, moderate soil silt content (30 percent), and precipitation/evaporation (P/E) index of 50. The air quality assessment estimates

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

that uncontrolled fugitive dust emissions from construction of the Village at Po'ipū would likely be somewhere near this level. State of Hawai'i Air Pollution Control Regulations prohibit visible emissions of fugitive dust from construction activities at the property line.

On-site mobile and stationary demolition and construction equipment also will emit air pollutants from engine exhausts. The largest of this equipment is usually dieselpowered. Nitrogen oxides emissions from diesel engines can be relatively high compared to gasoline-powered equipment, but the standard for nitrogen dioxide is set on an annual basis and is not likely to be violated by short-term construction equipment emissions. Carbon monoxide emissions from diesel engines, on the other hand, are low and should be relatively insignificant compared to vehicular emissions on nearby roadways.

Indirectly, there could also be short-term impacts from construction equipment traveling to and from the project site, from a temporary increase in local traffic caused by commuting construction workers, and from the disruption of normal traffic flow caused by lane closures of adjacent roadways.

Long-Term Impacts. According to the air quality assessment, upon completion of construction activities, the Village at Po'ipū project should not have a significant impact on air quality. Air quality modeling predicts that with or without the project, concentrations of potential pollutants should remain well below both national and state standards.

Mitigative Measures

Mitigation measures will be implemented to minimize potential air quality impacts, as discussed below.

Short-Term Demolition and Construction Activities. All construction activities will comply with the provisions of HAR, §11-60.1-33 on fugitive dust. In compliance with these provisions, an effective dust control plan will be implemented.

Contractors will provide adequate measures to control fugitive dust emissions during various phases of construction. Such dust control measures include:

- Plan the different phases of construction so that the amount of dust-generating materials and activities are minimized, centralize on-site vehicular traffic routes, and locate potential dust-generating equipment in areas of the least impact;
- Provide an adequate water source at the site prior to start-up of construction activities for dust control;
- Landscape and cover bare areas as soon as possible, including slopes, throughout all phases of construction;

- Minimize dust from shoulders and access roads;
- Provide adequate dust control measures during weekends, after hours, and prior to daily start-up of construction activities; and
- Control dust from debris being hauled away from the project site.

Air quality impacts from slow-moving construction vehicles on roadways will be mitigated by moving heavy construction equipment during periods of low traffic volume. Likewise, the schedules of commuting construction workers can be adjusted to avoid peak hours in the vicinity.

Long-Term Operations. Due to landscaping and ongoing maintenance and the low traffic impact of the project site, long-term air quality impacts were considered to be extremely low and not significant. As a result, no long-term mitigation measures are proposed or warranted.

4.6 VISUAL RESOURCES

Existing Conditions

The project area *makai* of the railroad berm and adjacent to Po'ipū Road is visible from Po'ipū Road. Areas *mauka* of the berm are not visible from Po'ipū Road but are visible from Hapa Road and Kiahuna Plantation Road. The area is visually dominated by the existing haole koa scrub (*Leucaena leucocephala*). Along Kiahuna Plantation Drive, rows of royal palms border the roadway creating a tree-lined drive but looking east to the project site from Kiahuna Plantation Drive, the project site is covered by koa haole thickets and pasture scrubland. Views from the site are limited by the gradual slope of the property, vegetation, and nearby development. However, moderate to expansive panoramas are available from selected points. Figure 9 shows birds-eye aerial oblique photographs of the project site.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The nature of the site will change from overgrown scrub and pasture land to a residential community. The Knudsen Trust will provide a park and a landscape or natural buffer on their property along Po'ipū Road to soften views with greenery. Hapa Road will be developed into a pedestrian/bike path and will be landscaped. The historic rock walls along Hapa Road will be preserved in place or restored. In addition, detailed design guidelines have been developed by PBR HAWAII (August 11, 2004) that will dictate appropriate architectural and landscaping treatments for future development. Height limits prescribed in the design guidelines are equal to or less than those in the Kaua'i County Code. A Design and Architectural Review Committee must

approve all designs before construction may commence. Homes will be designed to address the roadways and public areas.

4.7 SOCIAL & ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS

The Hallstrom Group, Inc. prepared a market study, economic impact analysis, and public cost/benefits assessment for the Village at Po'ipū (see Appendix O). Key elements of the study and other social characteristics of the project area are summarized below.

4.7.1 Population

Existing Conditions

According to 2000 U.S. Census data as reported in the Hawai'i State Data Book for 2004, the County of Kaua'i had a total population of 58,463 persons, with 5,404 residents in the Kōloa and Po'ipū census tracts (DBEDT 2004). In 2004, the population for the County of Kaua'i rose to 61,929, a six percent increase over the 2000 Census figures (DBEDT 2005).

In addition to the resident population, for the year 2004, approximately 18,869 nonresidents were estimated to populate Kaua'i County on any given day. Combining resident and visitor populations, the de facto population of Kaua'i County was approximately 78,001 in July 2004 (DBEDT 2004).

Potential Impact and Mitigative Measures

Several population projections for Kaua'i and the Kōloa-Po'ipū area have been calculated by State and County sources. According to the State Department of Business Economic Development and Tourism (DBEDT), the population of Kaua'i is projected to increase to 65,900 persons by 2010, 74,750 persons by 2020, and to 83,900 persons by 2030 (DBEDT 2004). According to the Kaua'i General Plan, Kaua'i's population is estimated to reach 74,320 persons by 2020 (Kaua'i County 2000). Conservative projections indicate that between 4,800 (28 percent) to 7,700 (45 percent) of the 17,000 new Kaua'i residents will be housed in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area by 2025 (The Hallstrom Group 2005).

The Village at Po'ipū will provide single- and multi-family residences for both nonresidents and permanent residents. Based on the proposed 350-503 units at the Village at Po'ipū and the County's formula of 2.1 persons per multi-family unit and 3.5 persons per single-family residence, the de facto population for the Village at Po'ipū will be between 1,037 to 1,573 persons at full build-out. Based on projections prepared for the

Hallstrom market study, the average daily defacto population of the project is 1,145 persons with approximately half of these estimated to be full-time residents (The Hallstrom Group 2005). Both calculations are consistent with each other and provide a basis to estimate potential impacts from the proposed community.

Because only approximately half of Village at Po'ipū population is estimated to be permanent residents, the project is not expected to have a significant impact on population levels. Non-residents and part-time residents using their units as second homes are expected to exert less pressure on government services such as schools and infrastructure than would a community of full-time residents. However, it is noted that the State Department of Education will request a fair-share contribution for the project with which the developer will fully comply. The developer will also install all required infrastructure as discussed in other sections of this EIS (see other subsections of 4.0). However, it should be noted that both the resident and non-resident populations of Kaua'i are projected to grow independent of the Village at Po'ipū. The cumulative needs of a growing Kōloa-Po'ipū area population as projected by the General Plan and relating to larger traffic infrastructure, public services, and other issues will need to be addressed regardless of whether the Village at Po'ipū is built. As most of the proposed projects will be developed in phases, supporting infrastructure and services will also be phased and developed as needed.

4.7.2 Housing

Existing Conditions

According to the Hallstrom market study, the Po'ipū-Kōloa housing market is currently in a moderately to strongly undersupplied condition. There is not enough housing to meet demand. Development in the area has been limited since the 1980s, with very low vacancy rates, high market interest, and rapidly appreciating prices over the last several years. The total number of housing units in the Po'ipū-Koloa area is estimated to be approximately 1,400 units. Therefore, coupled with the projected population increase over the next 20 years, the actualization of a healthy and stable housing market in the Po'ipū-Koloa area will need 2,544 to 5,517 additional housing units by 2025 (Hallstrom Group 2005).

The median home price on Kaua'i was \$665,000 in May 2005, according to data from the Hawai'i Information Service (Pacific Business News 2005). Housing costs have been rising dramatically since 2000, when median home prices were under \$300,000 (Laney, 2004). The Hallstrom market study attributes the rapidly escalating per unit prices to the extremely limited inventory available for resale in the region.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū will contribute 134 multi-family units and 216 to 369 single-family residences to the Po'ipū-Kōloa housing market. The market study estimates that for a relatively healthy housing market for the Kōloa/Po'ipū region, roughly 42 percent of units required through 2025 should be priced for the affordable and moderate-gap group housing needs (below \$500,000) while the remaining 58 percent of potential purchasers would be seeking homes at the moderate to high market price levels (more than \$500,000). Virtually all of the subject inventory will be oriented towards the 58 percent of the purchasers seeking homes at the moderate to high market price levels (more than \$500,000). This segment of purchasers will require approximately 1,480 to 3,220 units over the next 20 years. The Village at Po'ipū needs only to capture a portion of this demand to achieve rapid absorption and be considered a meaningful source of residential inventory.

The Knudsen Trust is also working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to satisfy affordable housing requirements for the project. In satisfaction of the original 1977 State Land Use Boundary Amendment (Docket A76-418) which reclassified the lands *makai* of the railroad berm as well as lands to the west from the Agricultural District to the Urban District, a \$2,000,000 payment was made to the County of Kaua'i to fulfill its affordable housing obligation. This condition was confirmed as being satisfied by the LUC on October 16, 1995. Phase 1 and 2 of the Village at Po'ipū project are located in this area *makai* of the railroad berm and therefore do not have any affordable housing requirements to fulfill.

4.7.3 Community Character

Existing Conditions

Southern Kaua'i and the Kōloa District include both rural residential and premier resort communities. In the Kōloa-Po'ipū area, resort/vacation-oriented uses have been traditionally located *makai* of Po'ipū Road with resident-oriented single-family subdivisions located in *mauka* areas.

Although Kōloa is greatly influenced by the nearby coastal Po'ipū resort area, it has retained its quiet, rural character. Kōloa is Hawai'i's oldest plantation town. Sugar production began in the early-1800s and the area was once the commercial and business hub of the island. Many of the original buildings constructed in Kōloa during the plantation era still remain. Today, Kōloa Town has developed into a tourist-oriented destination depicting old Hawai'i, while still serving Kaua'i residents.

The Po'ipū resort area, located approximately three miles south of Kōloa Town, is one of Kaua'i's premier resort destinations. Po'ipū suffered major damage from Hurricane

'Iniki in 1992. Following the aftermath of the hurricane, Po'ipū was left with only a limited number of rentable hotel rooms and condominium rental units. Since 1992, the Po'ipū area has been steadily rebuilding the visitor and resort facilities. In addition, the proportion of single-family homes, including homes purchased by full-time residents, has increased in *makai* areas of Po'ipū. Today, Po'ipū is again a desirable resort and residential community.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū will be a natural in-fill within the planned urban expansion Kōloa-Po'ipū corridor. The proposed master plan maximizes the utilizations of urban infill/expansion lands by combining residential types, varying densities, and implementing planning and architectural standards in order to blend with the existing community. This is consistent with County policy and the General Plan to alleviate the unit shortage by permitting urban development of centrally located, vacant, feral or nominal agricultural lands. As noted earlier, the entire project site is designated as "Residential Community" by the County General Plan.

The Village at Po'ipū design guidelines will encourage the appropriate use of materials, colors, design standards, and landscaping in character with existing residential communities in the area. The Village at Po'ipū also creates opportunities to improve environmental resources by replacing existing alien and invasive species with native and non-invasive species and using bioswales and landscaping measures to improve the water quality of runoff. The project will also preserve and protect archaeological and cultural resources and enhance recreational opportunities through the inclusion of parks, open spaces, pedestrian/bicycle paths, and archaeological preserves.

4.7.4 Employment

Existing Conditions

Numerous job opportunities on Kaua'i, such as in construction and tourism, have led to a dramatically decreasing unemployment rate over the last ten years. According to the 2004 Hawai'i State Data Book, the unemployment rate on Kaua'i dropped from a high of 13 percent in 1993 to an estimated 3.3 percent in 2004 (DBEDT 2004). According to 2000 Census profiles for Kōloa and Po'ipū, the unemployment rates were 4.7 percent and 1.3 percent, respectively (DBEDT 2000).

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The construction of the Village at Po'ipū and its ongoing operations will create some 1,737 "worker years" of employment during the first ten years of its construction and use, generating approximately \$77.9 million in wages. On a stabilized basis, long-term

home and unit maintenance at the Village at Po'ipū will support approximately 29 fulltime equivalent on-site positions and an additional 12 off-site jobs, with total wages of \$1.2 million annually (The Hallstrom Group 2005).

4.7.5 Economic Factors/Government Revenues

Existing Conditions

The Po'ipū area is one of Kaua'i's major visitor destinations. Prior to Hurricane 'Iniki in 1992, there were over 1,500 hotel rooms in Po'ipū. Although the resort area suffered major damage from the hurricane, it has been steadily rebuilding its visitor plant and resort facilities since 1992.

Tourism is the primary sector of Kaua'i's economy. On average, the 1,020,921 visitors to the island of Kaua'i in 2004 spent \$159 per person per day. In 2004, the leisure and hospitality industry, including hotels, employed 8,400 persons in Kaua'i County, which represents nearly 30 percent of the total employed non-agricultural civilian labor force (28,100). As of 1999, 2.7 percent of families in Po'ipū Census Designated Place (CDP) and fell below the poverty level, compared with 16.7 percent in Kōloa CDP and 8.4 percent in Kaua'i County (DBEDT 2000). According to the *Hawaii State Data Book* 2004, median household income for Kaua'i was \$45,020 in 1999 and per capita income was \$22,646. DBEDT projects per capita income in Kaua'i County to rise to \$35,849 by 2025.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The development of the Village at Po'ipū community will generate activity and expenditures that will favorably impact the Kauai economy on both a direct and indirect basis, increasing the level of capital investment, capital growth and capital flow in the region. The project will add millions of dollars into South and Central Kauai, expanding the economy, widening the tax base and creating stable long-term employment opportunities.

At project built-out, the de facto population for the 350 to 503 units is estimated to be 1,037 to 1,573 persons, with approximately half of those full-time residents. The Hallstrom Group estimated that these full-time residents will have annual discretionary spending of \$56.7 million per year. Some of the resident and virtually all of the non-resident expenditures will be "new" dollars on Kaua'i, providing true economic expansion. In addition to expenditures, the project is estimated to add \$173 million in development capital and \$4.2 million in annual business operations into the Kaua'i economy. On a stabilized basis, project operations will support approximately 41 full-time equivalent on- and off-site jobs, with total annual wages of \$1.2 million.

The State of Hawai'i and County of Kaua'i will also directly benefit from the project and its operation over time from real property taxes, gross excise tax receipts, and state income taxes. The State of Hawai'i is estimated to receive \$43.8 million in primary tax receipts during the first 10 years of development, and \$4.8 million annually thereafter. The County of Kaua'i would receive \$10 million during the first 10 years and \$1.3 million per year thereafter. In no year does the State or County suffer a revenue shortfall (expenditures exceeding receipts) relative to the project.

The total direct, local impact to Kaua'i (dollars flowing into the island market) is estimated to be \$341.7 million during the initial decade of construction and operation, and stabilize at \$62 million annually thereafter. As these dollars move through the island market, they will have a multiplier effect increasing the economic impact of the Village at Po'ipū to Kaua'i during its first ten years to some \$683.3 million.

4.8 INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES

A preliminary engineering report was prepared for Village at Po'ipū by Kodani and Associates. Preliminary cost estimates for the order-of-magnitude costs are provided in Section 2.4 and in Table 4. Key elements of the report are summarized in the following sections. The complete report is included in Appendix P.

4.8.1 Water Systems

The Village at Po'ipū site is located within the County of Kauai's Department of Water (DOW) existing Kōloa-Po'ipū Water System. The service area of this system consists of a concentration of resorts along the Po'ipū coastline and residential communities clustered near the coast and around Kōloa Town. The Kōloa-Po'ipū Water System is divided into a 366-foot pressure zone and 245-foot pressure zone. The five wells that serve the system have a total capacity of about 3,560 gallons per minute (gpm). Total available storage for the water system is 4.25 million gallons.

Potable water for domestic use by the residential units in the Village at Po'ipū development will be supplied by the DOW. The water facilities constructed for this project will be built to DOW standards and will be dedicated to the DOW prior to connection. A second non-potable water system is proposed for irrigating landscaped common areas, multifamily residential, and the larger single family lots. The non-potable system would be a private system operated by the developer and later transferred to the homeowner's association.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

Potable Water Demand. Potable water used by the home sites in the Village at Po'ipū will be supplied by DOW. Based on an average demand of 500 gallons per day (gpd) for single family units and 350 gpd for multifamily units, the full build-out of the project would generate an average demand of about 231,400 gallons per day.

Within the 245-foot service zone, the DOW has agreed to supply water from its existing sources to the 50 single-family units that make up Phase I of the Village at Po'ipū project. Water for the remainder of the development within the 245-foot service zone will become available when Well "F" is completed. The Village at Po'ipū proposes to meet its source requirements by entering into an agreement with the DOW to pay a prorata share of the total cost to develop and outfit Well "F". The development of the units within the 366-foot service zone is not expected to begin until about 2015. By that time, the DOW expects to develop additional sources that can be used by the Village at Po'ipū. The developer will pay its fair share of the cost to serve the units in this service zone.

Water Reservoir Storage. The Trust will be providing their fair-share contribution to water storage requirements for the project. The DOW has preliminarily agreed to provide storage for the areas of the Village at Poipu project within the 245-foot service zone. In exchange, the Trust will be responsible for constructing a 400,000-gallon storage tank once construction moves into the 366-foot service zone.

Non-Potable Water. A separate non-potable irrigation system is planned for use on all landscaped common areas, including roadways, parks, archaeological preserves, multifamily units, and the Hapa Road pedestrian/bicycle path. It will be developed for the project to reduce potable water requirements. Additional lines will be installed to serve the larger residential lots. Non-potable water for irrigation use will be supplied by a private system constructed and operated by the developer and eventually transferred to the future homeowners' association. Non-potable water will be provided by two sources: 1) Grove Farm's Waita Reservoir and 2) two onsite wells. Dual systems are also planned for the larger lots to further reduce potable water demand for irrigation purposes. With the installation and use of dual water systems, the overall demand on potable water resources is reduced.

4.8.2 Wastewater System

Wastewater generated by the Village at Po'ipū project would be collected and routed to the Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility (PWRF) for treatment. The treatment plant is a privately owned secondary treatment plant whose effluent is used to irrigate the adjacent Kiahuna Golf Course. An upgrade and expansion of the wastewater plant was initiated in 2004. The first phase of improvements has been completed and included a new biological process, capable of treating up to 1,000,000 gallons per day of wastewater. With the completion of this phase, the Po'ipū Reclamation Facility has sufficient capacity to treat all the wastewater that will be generated by the Village at Po'ipū.

The second phase of improvements is estimated for completion at the end of 2005 and includes tertiary filtration and ultraviolet (UV) disinfection. When the second phase of improvements is completed, the treatment plant will meet R-1 standards, which is the highest level of effluent quality regulated by the State of Hawai'i.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

Based on a 250-gpd per multi-family unit generation rate and a 400-gpd per singlefamily generation rate, the proposed project would produce roughly 181,100 gpd at full build out. As noted above, all of the effluent generated by the Village at Po'ipū will be routed to the PWRF. It is expected that the effluent will be used by the neighboring Kiahuna Mauka Partners to irrigate the common areas of their development as well as the Kiahuna Golf Course. This will increase reuse of wastewater and reduce potable water requirements for irrigation in the region.

An onsite sewer collection system consisting of sewer manholes and 8-inch pipelines will also be constructed. The developer will construct a sewer pump station and install sewer lines off-site to convey the wastewater to the treatment facility, as needed.

4.8.3 Drainage System

Existing terrain within the Village at Po'ipū site is generally consistent, with the topography being level to undulating and rocky in places. Elevations run from 18 feet above mean sea level (msl) at the *makai* boundary along Po'ipū Road to approximately 200 feet above msl along its *mauka* border near the intersection of Hapa Road and Weliweli Road. There are no wetlands or impaired waters of Hawai'i onsite.

Under existing conditions, runoff on the project site collects in natural swales and drainage ways and flows *makai*, in the general direction of Po'ipū Road. The flows cross under Po'ipū Road through two sets of existing culverts near Hapa Road and near Kipuka Street before making its way through downstream properties to the ocean. Surface flows from the northernmost portion of the Village at Po'ipū site flow to the Kiahuna Golf course.

Under existing conditions, peak discharge rates for a 100-year, 24-hour storm are estimated to be 519 cubic feet per second (cfs) through the series of five culverts near the Po'ipū Road/Hapa Road intersection and 277 cfs through the culvert near Kipuka Road, and 170 cfs from the northernmost portion of the Village at Po'ipū site.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\mathrm{U}}$

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The development of the Village at Po'ipū will result in the construction of impermeable areas such as roads and homes that will affect runoff. Drainage patterns will change slightly from the existing conditions as the runoff pattern is revised to follow the new roadways.

Peak discharge rates with the Village at Po'ipū project are estimated to be 466 cfs through the series of five culverts near Hapa Road, 332 cfs through the culvert near the Po'ipū Road/Kipuka Road intersection, and 157 cfs from the northernmost portion of the site. Drainage flows through the series of five culverts and from the northernmost portion of the site will decrease with the proposed project. However, the flow rate is estimated to increase by 55 cfs over the existing peak discharge through the culvert near the Po'ipū Road/Kipuka Road intersection.

The County of Kaua'i requires that for new developments, the peak discharge rate for the future condition be maintained at exiting levels. To meet this requirement, the developer proposes to construct detention basins near Po'ipū Road. Table 5 compares the existing peak discharge rates with future peak discharge rates with and without the detention basins.

			Future Peak	
	Existing Peak Discharge Rate	Future Peak Discharge Rate	Discharge Rate After Detention	
Drainage Area	(cfs)	(cfs)	(cfs)	
Kipuka Road	277	332	172	
Culvert (No. 2)		002	172	
Hapa Road Culverts	510	166	166 (No Dotontion)	
(No. 1 and 3)	519	400	400 (INO DELEIILIOII)	
Mauka Area (No. 4)	170	157	157 (No Detention)	

 Table 5: Comparison of Existing and Future Peak Runoff Conditions

Because the Village at Po'ipū will be completed in three phases, a temporary detention basin will also be necessary during construction. To maintain the pre-development peak discharge rate throughout all three phases of construction, a temporary detention facility will be constructed upstream of the culvert openings at Po'ipū Road. Following construction of the upstream areas and the permanent detention facilities, the temporary detention basin can be removed.

The on-site drainage collection system for the Village at Po'ipū will consist of drain inlets, manholes, swales, and drainage pipes estimated from 18" to 60" in diameter,

which will be installed along the planned roadways of the development. Runoff will be collected and routed to detention basins before being discharged to the culverts crossing Po'ipū Road. Drainage improvements may also include the construction of bioswales, which use landscaping improvements to help filter and slow runoff, improving the water quality of the runoff before it hits the drainage systems and eventually the ocean.

With the construction of the proposed drainage system and detention basins, peak discharge rates of runoff to neighboring areas will not exceed existing rates. In fact, they will be reduced. Furthermore, the use of bioswales and biofiltration should help slow runoff and improve the water quality of the runoff. Therefore the development will not create an unreasonable risk to adjacent and downstream properties.

4.8.4 Electrical and Communications Systems

Kaua'i Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC) supplies electrical power for residential, commercial, large power, and street lighting uses throughout the island. Major load centers are in Kapa'a-Wailua, Līhu'e, and Kōloa-Po'ipū. KIUC generates power from a 96-megawatt (MW), diesel-fired power plant located at Port Allen. The utility also purchases non-firm power from Island Coffee and the Gay & Robinson sugar mill.

The Village at Po'ipū site is within the Kalāheo-Po'ipū-Kōloa service area. The region is served by four transmission circuits, one extending east from Pt. Allen and another extending south from Kaumuali'i Highway. There is a switchyard in Kōloa and a substation in Lāwa'i.

Hawaiian Telcom (formerly Verizon Hawaii) provides telephone and other communications services to Kaua'i. Oceanic Time Warner Cable provides the cable television and internet service for Kaua'i.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The annual electrical demand of the project when fully developed is expected to reach approximately 3 million kilowatt-hours (BD Neal 2005). Electrical power for the project will most probably be provided mainly by KIUC's oil-fired generating facilities located on Kaua'i. In order to meet the electrical power needs of the proposed project, power generating facilities will be required to burn more fuel and hence more air pollution will be emitted at these facilities. However, the estimated indirect emissions from project electrical demand amount to less than 1 percent of the present air pollution emissions occurring on Kaua'i and therefore have a relatively minor impact to air quality.

Electrical and communications improvements necessary to support the proposed development can be served by existing utility companies, with some off-site work required. The developer will install onsite and any off-site improvements required to serve the Village at Po'ipū should not have an adverse effect on the utilities' ability to service other areas.

Energy-efficient measures to reduce the maximum electrical demand will be considered in the design and operation of the Village at Po'ipū, where feasible. Design standards will specify low-impact lighting and will encourage energy-efficient building design such as covered porches, natural ventilation, and the use of solar energy.

Further efforts to minimize energy consumption may include incorporating select items from *Guidelines for Sustainable Building Design in Hawai'i: A planner's Checklist* (OEQC 1999), the County of Kaua'i's Building Energy Code, and the *Field Guide for Energy Performance, Comfort, and Value in Hawaii Homes* into the Village at Po'ipū design guidelines.

Where applicable, the following additional energy-saving methods and technologies will be considered:

- Use of site shading to reduce cooling load;
- Maximum use of day-lighting;
- Use of high efficiency compact fluorescent lighting;
- Exceeding Model Energy Code requirements;
- Roof and wall insulation, radiant barriers, and energy efficient windows;
- Use of solar parking lot lighting;
- Use of light color or "green" roofs;
- Use of roof and gutters to divert rainwater for irrigating landscaping;
- Use of landscaping for dust control and to minimize heat gain to area; and
- Use of photovoltaics, fuel cells, and other renewable energy sources.

All utilities and infrastructure related to electrical and communication systems will be installed underground. This will reduce visual and safety impacts that would have resulted from overhead utilities.

4.8.5 Solid Waste

The County of Kaua'i, Department of Public Works (DPW) maintains an island wide solid waste collection and disposal system. The Kekaha Landfill Phase II is the primary disposal site for solid waste on Kaua'i. As of FY1999, the landfill accepted approximately 67,590 tons of solid waste. The County also operates four refuse transfer stations, one of which is located in Hanapēpē. The Hanapēpē station also accepts green waste.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

As the resident and visitor population on Kaua'i grows, demand on the Kekaha Landfill Phase II will increase irrespective of where new development occurs. The *Kaua'i General Plan* projects that a new landfill site will need to be developed by 2020 to meet future island-wide solid waste generation by all Kaua'i residents and visitors.

Construction. The Village at Po'ipū will generate solid waste during the construction of backbone infrastructure and as the project achieves build-out. The quantity of solid waste generated will vary with different construction activities, and some wastes may require separate and special disposal methods. As much as practical, construction plans will specify the use of products with recycled content and the use of locally produced products.

During construction, a job-site waste management and recycling program will be implemented to maintain clean construction sites, maximize material recycling, and minimize disposal truck traffic impacts. This recycling program will incorporate the "Three Rs" of effective waste management:

- <u>Reduce</u> by preventing waste before it happens through efficient design;
- <u>Reuse</u> by using materials removed during demolition (such as rocks) on-site; and
- <u>Recycle</u> by separating recyclable materials from non-recyclable materials and supplying these recyclable materials to a recycler for use as new products.

Post-Construction Operations. Once the site is fully developed, the maximum population of the project is not expected to exceed 1,574 residents. It is estimated that solid waste from the project will amount to about 6.5 lbs per person per day. Thus, solid waste generated by the proposed development when fully completed and occupied is not expected to exceed about five tons per day (BD Neal 2005).

This is a relatively small amount in comparison with the total waste generated island wide. Further, it is likely that a significant number of the future Village at Po'ipū residents already reside on Kaua'i. Although the Village at Po'ipū will introduce new residents to Kaua'i, it is not expected to greatly impact landfill capacity. A new landfill will have to be developed regardless of the proposed project.

As for secondary impacts, all solid waste on the island is buried at the Kekaha Landfill. Thus, assuming this continues to be the method for solid waste disposal, the only associated air pollution emissions that will occur will be from trucking the waste to the landfill and burying it. These emissions are expected to be relatively minor (BD Neal).

4.9 PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES

As discussed in Section 4.7.1, the defacto population for the Village at Po'ipū will be 1,037 to 1,573 persons at full build-out, with approximately 595 full-time residents. Because roughly half of the population will be full-time residents, demand on government services and funds will be less than a community of full-time residents, as visitors typically do not rely on the full range of government services that full-time residents require. However, all property owners at the Village at Po'ipū will pay property taxes on a full-time basis and excise taxes when they purchase goods and services on the island.

During the first ten years of build-out and operation, the Village at Po'ipū is projected to generate approximately \$10 million in taxes for the County of Kaua'i; and approximately \$43.8 million for the State of Hawai'i. After build-out, annual taxes generated from the community are project to be approximately \$1.3 million for the County and approximately \$4.8 million for the State. In no year will the State or the County suffer a revenue shortfall due to the Village at Po'ipū (Hallstrom 2005).

4.9.1 Police Protection

Existing Conditions

The Kaua'i Police Department has three stations, located approximately 25 miles apart. The main station and administrative headquarters are in Līhu'e at the new facility on Kapule Highway. There is a substation on Po'ipū Road in the Po'ipū Kai Resort located one-half mile east of Village at Po'ipū. Satellite stations at Waimea and Hanalei are co-located with fire stations.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Hallstrom Study (2005) estimated the number of additional officers required to serve the proposed Village at Po'ipū project. Using a base cost of \$140 per hour for a responding officer (wages and benefits for responding/support/administrative personnel, overhead, capital costs, and amortized equipment), the annual additional police enforcement cost to Kaua'i County on a stabilized basis after project build-out was estimated to be about \$159,040. This additional demand of 1,136 hours (at \$140/hour) is the equivalent to 56.8 percent of one new officer position. (One new officer position was estimated at 2,000 total hours per year.) The estimated increase in tax receipts to the County of Kaua'i will more than cover any added cost to public services as a result of the population at the Village at Po'ipū.

4.9.2 Fire Protection

Existing Conditions

The Kaua'i Fire Department has a main station and administrative headquarters in Līhu'e. There are six additional fire stations serving the island. The closest fire station to the proposed project is on Po'ipū Road at the Lāwa'i Road intersection, approximately two-thirds of a mile west of the project site.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The public costs/benefits assessment included in the Hallstrom market study estimates that the Village at Po'ipū may require two "minor" fire/rescue events per month, requiring one crew for a total of three hours, and one "major" fire/rescue event every two months requiring two crews for a total of eight hours each. Cost estimates are based on a crew cost of \$800/hour (four to five fire fighters, wages, benefits, overhead and amortized equipment). Using this method, the annual additional costs to Kaua'i County resulting from the Village at Poipu is \$134,400 per year at full build-out. According to the Hallstrom report, the increase in tax receipts to the County of Kaua'i will more than cover any added cost to public services as a result of the population at the Village at Po'ipū.

Furthermore, fire protection systems including fire hydrants and adequately sized water mains will be installed for the project. The system will be designed to accommodate the proposed residential neighborhoods and will comply with Department of Water standards. Road widths, dead-ends, and cul-de-sacs will be designed to ensure maneuverability of fire apparatus within the community. Before construction can commence, all subdivision plans must be reviewed approved by the County of Kaua'i Public Works and will be designed to meet their requirements.

4.9.3 Schools

Existing Conditions

The Village at Po'ipū is located in the State Department of Education's Kaua'i Complex. Students living in the proposed community and attending public school would attend Kaua'i High School, Chiefess Kamakahelei Middle School, and Kōloa Elementary. Official enrollments and school capacities (based on design enrollments plus additional facilities/portables) for these schools are shown in the following table.

	Capacity	Official Enrollment (Students)				
School Name	(Students)	2001-2002	2002-2003	2003-2004	2004-2005	
Kōloa Elementary	449	245	210	198	184	
Chiefess Kamakahelei Middle	1,271	1,036	1,074	1,043	1,023	
Kaua'i High School	1,493	1,236	1,249	1,285	1,282	
Source: State of Hawai'i, Department of Education (http://doe.k12.hi.us/)						

Table 6: Kaua'i Complex Schools, Capacity and Enrollments

According to the Department of Education (DOE), these schools have capacity for some increase in students. Enrollment at Kōloa Elementary has steadily declined during the past several years; although the DOE projects that this trend may reverse in the next year or two. Enrollments at Chiefess Kamakahelei Middle School and Kaua'i High have remained relatively steady averaging annual enrollments of about 1,040 students and 1,260 students, respectively.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The Village at Po'ipū residential development is expected to directly increase demand on these schools. Using DOE Multipliers for single-family residential developments, an estimated 154 to 187 students are projected for this project.³ However, it is estimated that a portion of new homeowners will be part-time residents and would thereby reduce the estimated demands on the schools. The market study prepared for the project estimates that the Village at Po'ipū will have 149 school-aged children, 98 of whom will attend public schools (The Hallstrom Group 2005).

The State Land Use Commission will determine a school fair-share contribution for the Village at Po'ipū. The developers will fully comply with the Commission's determination. Should the DOE determine that a new facility is necessary to serve students from the Kōloa-Po'ipū area, Knudsen Trust's contribution will help offset the costs to provide school land and facilities.

4.9.4 **Recreational Facilities**

Existing Conditions

There are a number of existing recreational facilities, parks, and open spaces in the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo area, including the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club adjacent to

³ Unit Type	Elementary	Middle	High
Single Family	0.279	0.143	$0.1\bar{5}4$
Multi-Family/Ohana	0.109	0.04	0.069

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

the project site, Po'ipū Beach and Manokalanipo Park to the south, Weliweli Park to the east, and the Kōloa Neighborhood Center just north of the proposed community.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

As a residential development, the Village at Po'ipū is expected to directly increase demand on these recreation facilities. However, archaeological preserves, parks, and other amenities will be provided in the Village at Po'ipū and will exceed the County park dedication requirements.

Based on the County of Kaua'i's Subdivision Ordinance formula for calculating park dedication requirements,⁴ the estimated population for the 350-503 dwelling units proposed for the Village at Po'ipū ranges from 1,038 to 1,574. According to the County's Land Dedication Formula, 1.82 to 2.76 acres of parks would be required for the project.

The Village at Po'ipū will provide parks and open space areas (12 acres) and archaeological preserves (over 23 acres), as well as an extensive network of pedestrian paths including a shared bike and pedestrian path in Hapa Road. The amount of space allocated to parks and archaeology preserves in the proposed master plan far exceed County park dedication requirements.

In addition to the parks and preserves, a network of pedestrian/bicycle paths will weave throughout the project site, linking the different neighborhoods and archaeological preserves to one another and encouraging residents to walk or bike to various destinations around the area such as the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, Kōloa Town, Po'ipū Beach, and the Po'ipū Shopping Village.

A 40-foot buffer will also be provided on the eastern edge of the property from Po'ipū Road to the railroad berm as required by condition of Kaua'i County ordinance. This was originally set aside for the eastern bypass road. However, since the preferred alignment shifted east to where Ala Kinoiki Road is, the area will remain as open space and will be either integrated into the pedestrian/bicycle path network or included as a landscape easement where it overlaps proposed residential lots. Regardless of the final outcome, this 40-foot buffer area will remain as part of the open space network of the Village at Po'ipū.

The above facilities should more than meet the future parks and recreation demand generated by the project.

⁴ Kaua'i Subdivision Ordinance §9-2.8

4.9.5 Health Care Services

Existing Conditions

There are three major hospitals on Kaua'i and several medical clinics. The three hospitals include Wilcox Memorial Hospital in Līhu'e, Kaua'i Veterans Memorial Hospital in Waimea, and the Samuel Mahelona Hospital in Kapa'a. Wilcox Memorial Hospital is the closest hospital to the project site and provides 71 acute care beds and emergency room service. Garden Island Health Care operates within the second and third floors of the Wilcox Memorial Hospital to provide 110 long-term care beds. Together the three hospitals on the island provide four advanced life support ambulances. The closest medical clinic is located in Kōloa Town and is operated by the Wilcox Health System's Kaua'i Medical Clinic.

Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures

The proposed Village at Po'ipū community will require health care services and will increase demand on Kaua'i's health care facilities. However, many of the residents of the community are expected to be from Kaua'i and will therefore not affect existing needs for medical services by a proportional amount.

The public costs/benefits assessment included in the Hallstrom market study estimates that the Village at Po'ipū may require an average of four emergency medical calls per month. According to the Hallstrom report, the increase in tax receipts to the County of Kaua'i will more than cover any added cost to public services as a result of the population at the Village at Po'ipū. Road widths within the project site will be designed to meet County standards, facilitating access for EMS vehicles in the case of a medical emergency.

5.0 RELATIONSHIP TO LAND USE PLANS, POLICIES, AND CONTROLS

The processing of various permits and approvals are prerequisites for the construction of Village at Po'ipū community. Relevant State of Hawai'i and Kaua'i County land use plans, policies, and ordinances are described below.

5.1 STATE OF HAWAI'I

5.1.1 Chapter 343, Hawai'i Revised Statutes

Compliance with Chapter 343, HRS is required as described earlier in Section 1.1.5.

5.1.2 State Land Use Law, Chapter 205, Hawai'i Revised Statutes

The State Land Use Law (Chapter 205, Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS)), establishes the State Land Use Commission (LUC) and provides this body the authority to designate all lands in the State into one of four districts: Urban, Rural, Agricultural, or Conservation. These districts are defined and mapped by the State Land Use Commission in order to ensure compatibility with neighboring land uses and protection of public health.

The existing State Land Use Districts for the project site are shown in Figure 5. There are both Agricultural and Urban Districts within the project site. The area *makai* of the railroad berm is within the Urban District. Most of the land *mauka* of the railroad berm is within the Agricultural District, except for a narrow strip of land that is designated as Urban and also zoned R-4 by the County. Within the project site, approximately 124.7 acres are within the Agricultural District and approximately 78.3 acres are within the Urban District. A State Land Use District Boundary Amendment (SLUDBA) will be required to reclassify the Agricultural District and is currently being petitioned with the LUC (Docket A05-761). An additional 2.7-acre portion of Hapa Road is also within the Agricultural District and will be included in the SLUDBA petition per the LUC request and with permission of the County of Kaua'i.

5.1.3 Coastal Zone Management Act, Chapter 205A, Hawai'i Revised Statutes

The Coastal Zone Management Area as defined in Chapter 205A, HRS, includes all the lands of the state. As such, the project site is within the Coastal Zone Management Area. However, it is not located along a shoreline. The project site is located outside the Special Management Area (SMA) (see Figure 8). The SMA is the area extending inland from the shoreline that has been designated for special protection to help

preserve coastal resources. The County must approve any development within the SMA and a permit issued depending upon the type of development. The project site is outside of the SMA and thus, will not require a SMA Permit.

The objectives of the Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Program are to provide the public with recreational opportunities, protect historic and prehistoric resources, protect scenic and open space resources, protect coastal ecosystems, provide facilities for economic development, reduce hazards, and manage development. Program objectives applicable to the Village at Po'ipū are discussed below.

Recreational Resources

Objective:

(*A*) *Provide coastal recreational opportunities accessible to the public.*

Policies:

- (B) Provide adequate, accessible, and diverse recreational opportunities in the coastal zone management area by:
 - *(i) Protecting coastal resources uniquely suited for recreation activities that cannot be provided in other areas.*
 - *(iii) Providing and managing adequate public access, consistent with conservation of natural resources, to and along shorelines with recreational value.*
 - *(iv) Providing an adequate supply of shoreline parks and other recreational facilities suitable for public recreation.*
 - (vii) Developing new shoreline recreational opportunities, where appropriate, such as artificial lagoons, artificial beaches, and artificial reefs for surfing and fishing.
 - (viii) Encouraging reasonable dedication of shoreline areas with recreational value for public use as part of discretionary approvals or permits by the land use commission, board of land and natural resources, and county authorities; and crediting such dedication against the requirements of section 46-6.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is inland of the coastline and will not impact access to coastal recreational opportunities. It does, however, include extensive pedestrian/bicycle paths which will encourage non-vehicle transportation between *mauka* and *makai* areas such as Po'ipū Beach and Kōloa Town.

Historic Resources

Objective:

(A) Protect, preserve, and where desirable, restore those natural and man made historic and prehistoric resources in the coastal zone management area that are significant in Hawaiian and American history and culture.

Policies:

(A) Identify and analyze significant archaeological resources;

- (B) Maximize information retention through preservation of remains and artifacts or salvage operations; and
- (C) Support state goals for protection, restoration, interpretation, and display of historic resources.

Discussion: Extensive archaeological inventory studies, as well as data recovery and preservation plans have been and will continue to be conducted for the project. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation to date as well as those recommended for possible preservation will be protected. Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. In total, these areas set aside for archaeological sites and preserves constitute over 23 acres. See Figure 3.

The vehicular and pedestrian circulation networks will be designed to provide both visual connections and direct access to the sites. In most cases, the roadways will run adjacent to the sites to support public access so that cultural practitioners, researchers and other interested persons may easily access the sites. Appropriate interpretive signage will be provided at the archaeological preserves. In addition, the signs will instruct visitors of the care and respect required to preserve the sites for future generations. Native plants will be used to landscape the preserves.

Scenic and Open Space Resources

Objective:

(*A*) *Protect, preserve, and where desirable, restore or improve the quality of coastal scenic and open space resources.*

Policies:

- (B) Ensure that new developments are compatible with their visual environment by designing and locating such developments to minimize the alteration of natural landforms and existing public views to and along the shoreline.
- (C) Preserve, maintain, and where desirable, improve and restore shoreline open space and scenic resources.
- (D) Encourage those developments that are not coastal dependent to locate in inland areas.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is located away from the shoreline, outside the Special Management Area. Overall, views of the shoreline from the site vicinity are limited by the gradual slope of the property, vegetation, and nearby development. Views into the site will also be mitigated by the natural or landscaped buffers along Po'ipū Road and the Weliweli Subdivision and the bicycle/pedestrian improvements on Hapa Road. Height limits prescribed in the design guidelines for the community are equal or less than those in the Kaua'i County Code and will minimize any impact to coastal views.

Coastal Ecosystems

Objective:

(A) Protect valuable coastal ecosystems, including reefs, from disruption and minimize adverse impacts on all coastal ecosystems.

Policies:

- (A) Exercise an overall conservation ethic, and practice stewardship in the protection, use, and development of marine and coastal resources.
- (B) Improve the technical basis for natural resource management.
- (C) Preserve valuable coastal ecosystems, including reefs, of significant biological or economic importance.
- (D) Minimize disruption or degradation of coastal water ecosystems by effective regulation of stream diversions, channelization, and similar land and water uses, recognizing competing water needs.
- (E) Promote water quantity and quality planning and management practices that reflect the tolerance of fresh water and marine ecosystems and maintain and enhance water quality through the development and implementation of point and nonpoint source water pollution control measures.

Discussion: Through the use of bioswales and biofiltration and detention basins, the Village at Po'ipū project will reduce peak discharge rates and clean runoff to downslope areas and the ocean compared to existing conditions. During construction activities, best management practices and erosion control measures will also be implemented. Proposed drainage and erosion control measures are further discussed in Sections 3.3 and 4.8.3 respectively.

Economic Uses

Objective:

(A) Provide public or private facilities and improvements important to the State's economy in suitable locations.

Policies:

- (B) Ensure that coastal dependent development such as harbors and ports, and coasted related development such as visitor industry facilities and energy generating facilities, are located, designed, and constructed to minimize adverse social, visual, and environmental impacts in the coastal zone management area.
- (C) Direct the location and expansion of coastal dependent developments to areas presently designated and used for such developments and permit reasonable long-term growth at such areas, and permit coastal dependent development outside presently designated areas when:
 - *(ii) Adverse environmental effects are minimized.*

Discussion: Coastal-related economic uses in the Po'ipū area primarily consists of activities related to the visitor industry. The Village at Po'ipū project is located *mauka* of the primary Po'ipū resort area and is expected to contain a mix of full-time and part-time residents. Its close proximity to the existing visitor-related facilities in Po'ipū is expected to support existing businesses and improve *mauka-makai* transportation by providing a new *mauka-makai* road and a network of pedestrian and bicycle paths. The proposed Village at Po'ipū is consistent with the County General Plan as it is designated as "Residential Community" *mauka* of the coastal Po'ipū resort area.

Coastal Hazards

Objective:

(A) Reduce hazard to life and property from tsunami, storm waves, stream flooding, erosion, subsidence, and pollution.

Policies:

- (B) Control development in areas subject to storm wave, tsunami, flood, erosion, hurricane, wind, subsidence, and point and nonpoint source pollution hazards.
- (C) Ensure that developments comply with requirements of the Federal Flood Insurance Program.
- (D) Prevent coastal flooding from inland projects.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is not anticipated to be affected by coastal hazards as it is located away from the shoreline and outside the tsunami evacuation zone (see Figure 13). The project area is also located outside of the floodway as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map. The project site is located in Zone X, which designates areas determined to be outside the 500-year flood plain (Figure 14).

Managing Development

Objective:

(A) Improve the development review process, communication and public participation in the management of coastal resources and hazards.

Policies:

- (A) Use, implement, and enforce existing law effectively to the maximum extent possible in managing present and future coastal zone development;
- (B) Facilitate timely processing of applications for development permits and resolve overlapping or conflicting permit requirements.
- (C) Communicate the potential short- and long-term impacts of proposed significant coastal developments early in their life cycle and in terms understandable to the public to facilitate public participation in the planning and review process.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will be in conformance with all applicable laws, regulations, and requirements. The State Land Use District Boundary Amendment, EIS and subdivision approval processes provide for agency review and public comments, as well as opportunities for the public and decision-makers to ask for more information.

In addition, the residential uses of the Village at Po'ipū are consistent with County General Plan and zoning designations for the property. As such, residential uses on the property have been thoroughly considered and approved through the processes involved with these designations.

Public Participation

Objective:

(A) Stimulate public awareness, education, and participation in coastal management.

Policies:

- (A) Promote public involvement in coastal zone management processes.
- (B) Disseminate information on coastal management issues by means of educational materials, published reports, staff contact, and public workshops for persons and organizations concerned with coastal issues, development, and government activities.
- (C) Organize workshops, policy dialogues, and site-specific mediations to respond to coastal issues and conflicts.

Discussion: This EIS reports on the anticipated short- and long-term impacts of the Village at Po'ipū project. Prior to and throughout the preparation of this EIS (and preceding EISPN), various agencies, individuals, and community organizations were consulted (see Section 0 for complete consultation list). In addition, as noted above, the EISPN, this EIS, and the required permitting process, provide numerous opportunities for public comments and participation.

Beach Protection

Objective:

(*A*) Protect beaches for public use and recreation.

Policies:

- (A) Locate new structures inland from the shoreline setback to conserve open space, minimize interference with natural shoreline processes, and minimize loss of improvements due to erosion.
- (C) Minimize the construction of public erosion-protection structures seaward of the shoreline.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is located away from the shoreline, outside the Special Management Area, and will not encroach upon any beaches or interfere with natural shoreline processes.

Marine Resources

Objective:

(A) Promote the protection, use, and development of marine and coastal resources to assure their sustainability.

Policies:

- (A) Ensure that the use and development of marine and coastal resources are ecologically and environmentally sound and economically beneficial.
- (B) Coordinate the management of marine and coastal resources and activities to improve effectiveness and efficiency.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is not expected to have an impact on marine and coastal resources. Proposed drainage improvements will be implemented to lower future discharge rates below existing levels. Improvements may include the construction of bioswales, which use landscaping improvements to help filter and slow runoff, improving the water quality of the runoff before it hits the drainage systems and eventually the ocean. See Section 4.8.3 for further discussion of the proposed drainage system.

5.1.4 Hawai'i State Plan, Chapter 226, Hawai'i Revised Statutes

The Hawai'i State Plan (Chapter 226, HRS) establishes a set of goals, objectives and policies that serve as long-range guidelines for the growth and development of the State. The sections of the Hawai'i State Plan directly applicable to the Village at Po'ipū, along with a discussion of how the project conforms to the State Plan, are discussed below.

The Hawai'i State Plan lists three "Overall Themes" relating to: 1) individual and family self-sufficiency; 2) social and economic mobility; and 3) community or social well-being. These themes are viewed as "basic functions of society" and goals toward which government must strive (§226-3). To guarantee the elements of choice and mobility embodied in the three themes, the Plan states three goals:

- 1) A strong, viable economy, characterized by stability, diversity and growth that enables fulfillment of the needs and expectations of Hawaii's present and future generations.
- 2) A desired physical environment, characterized by beauty, cleanliness, quiet, stable natural systems, and uniqueness, that enhances the mental and physical well-being of the people.
- 3) Physical, social and economic well-being, for individuals and families in Hawaii, that nourishes a sense of community responsibility, of caring and of participation in community life (§226-3).

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū contributes to the attainment of the three goals by providing direct and indirect short and long-term employment opportunities for the present and future residents of Kaua'i, generating increased State and County tax revenues, and contributing to the stability, diversity, and growth of local and regional economies as discussed in Section 4.7. It will also provide a desired physical environment by replacing the existing landscape of non-native and invasive scrub vegetation with a residential community that preserves and protects significant historical and archaeological resources and contains a network of parks, pedestrian and bicycle paths that are landscaped with native plants. Wastewater will be treated at the PWRF and reused for irrigation on neighboring properties. Onsite common areas, multifamily areas and larger single family lots will also be irrigated with non-potable water sources to minimize impacts to domestic water demand. Residents and visitors will be encouraged to walk or bike along landscaped streets and socialize with neighbors from their front porches.

Part I. Overall Theme, Goals, Objectives and Policies

Section 226-5 Objective and policies for population:

- (a) It shall be the objective in planning for the State's population to guide population growth to be consistent with the achievement of physical, economic, and social objectives contained in this chapter.
- (b) To achieve the population objective, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Manage population growth statewide in a manner that provides increased opportunities for Hawaii's people to pursue their physical, social, and economic aspirations while recognizing the unique needs of each county.
 - (2) Encourage an increase in economic activities and employment opportunities on the neighbor islands consistent with community needs and desires.
 - (3) Promote increased opportunities for Hawaii's people to pursue their socioeconomic aspirations throughout the islands.
 - (7) Plan the development and availability of land and water resources in a coordinated manner so as to provide for the desired levels of growth in each geographic area.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will provide 134 multi-family and 216-369 singlefamily residences in an area with a moderately to strongly undersupplied housing market. The project is consistent with the County of Kaua'i's vision of accommodating growth as it designated as "Residential Community" on the County's General Plan Land Use Map for the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District. The site is envisioned to fill a large portion of Kaua'i's south shore residential growth requirements over the next fifteen years. It is adjacent to existing infrastructure, roads, and urban development and is expected to support increased economic activities and employment opportunities in the area.

Section 226-6 Objective and policies for the economy – in general:

- (a) Planning for the State's economy in general shall be directed toward achievement of the following objectives:
 - (1) Increased and diversified employment opportunities to achieve full employment, increased income and job choice, and improved living standards for Hawaii's people.
- (b) To achieve the general economic objectives, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (6) Strive to achieve a level of construction activity responsive to, and consistent with, state growth objectives.
 - (9) Foster greater cooperation and coordination between the government and private sectors in developing Hawaii's employment and economic growth opportunities.
 - (14) Promote and protect intangible resources in Hawaii, such as scenic beauty and the aloha spirit, which are vital to a healthy economy.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū site is currently pastureland for cattle and horses and vacant scrubland and generates minimal economic benefit for the State. As proposed, the Village at Po'ipū will help to meet the strong demand for resident- and visitor-oriented residential opportunities in the region while preserving historic and cultural resources, thus ensuring sensitive economic growth for both State and County governments and Kaua'i residents.

Economic impacts associated with the Village at Po'ipū include (Hallstrom Group 2005):

- \$43.8 million income in taxes for the State of Hawai'i and \$10 million in taxes for the County of Kaua'i during the first ten years of project build-out and operation.
- \$4.2 million annual income in stabilized taxes for the State and \$1.3 million annually for the County after the first ten years.
- 1,737 "worker years" during the first ten years of build-out and operation and 41 full-time equivalent jobs, on a stabilized basis, following the first ten years.
- \$77.9 million in wages during the first ten years.
- \$1.2 million in stabilized annual wages after the first ten years.

Section 226-8 Objective and policies for the economy – visitor industry:

- (a) Planning for the State's economy with regard to the visitor industry shall be directed towards the achievement of the objective of a visitor industry that constitutes a major component of steady growth for Hawaii's economy;
- (b) To achieve visitor industry objective, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Support and assist in the promotion of Hawai'i's visitor attractions and facilities.
 - (2) Ensure that visitor industry activities are in keeping with the social, economic, and physical needs and aspirations of Hawaii's people.
 - (4) Encourage cooperation and coordination between the government and private sectors in developing and maintaining well-designed, adequately serviced visitor industry and related development which are sensitive to neighboring communities and activities.
DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

(7) Foster a recognition of the contribution of the visitor industry to Hawaii's economy and the need to perpetuate the aloha spirit.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is expected to provide housing opportunities for both existing Kaua'i and Hawai'i residents as well as non-residents interested in purchasing second homes in Hawai'i. The proposed conceptual master plan encourages future residents and visitors alike to walk and bike to various destinations in and around the proposed project. Significant historic resources will be preserved and protected and made accessible to the public. Interpretive signage will be installed to educate both *kama'aina* and visitors about the rich history of the site. Existing invasive species will be removed and native plants will be used to landscape common areas and archaeological preserves improving potential habitats of the endangered Kaua'i cave wolf spider and amphipod.

Section 226-11 Objectives and policies for the physical environment – land-based, shoreline, and marine resources:

- (a) Planning for the State's physical environment with regard to land-based, shoreline, and marine resources shall be directed towards achievement of the following objectives.
 - (2) *Effective protection of Hawaii's unique and fragile environmental resources.*
- (b) To achieve the land-based, shoreline, and marine resources objectives, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Exercise an overall conservation ethic in the use of Hawaii's natural resources.
 - (2) Ensure compatibility between land-based and water-based activities and natural resources and ecological systems.
 - (3) Take into account the physical attributes of areas when planning and designing activities and facilities.
 - (4) Manage natural resources and environs to encourage their beneficial and multiple use without generating costly or irreparable environmental damage.
 - (6) Encourage the protection of rare or endangered plant and animal species and habitats native to Hawaii.
 - (8) Pursue compatible relationships among activities, facilities, and natural resources.
 - (9) *Promote increased accessibility and prudent use of inland and shoreline areas for public recreational, educational, and scientific purposes.*

Discussion: As discussed, the Village at Po'ipū is located in an area envisioned by the County to accommodate projected residential growth and is adjacent to similar residential communities. Significant historic and archaeological resources will be preserved, protected, and made accessible for cultural practitioners and those interested in learning about them. Proposed infrastructure improvements will better control peak discharge and clean runoff by using bioswales, biofiltration, and detention basins. No threatened or endangered species or species of concern are known to exist on the site. However, native plants will be planted in common areas, parks and archaeological preserves and encouraged on private lots which may improve habitat conditions for the endangered Kaua'i cave wolf spider and amphipod. Extensive pedestrian and bicycle

path networks are planned for the community encouraging residents and visitors to bike or walk throughout the proposed community and to neighboring commercial and retail areas, communities and beach areas.

Section 226-12 Objective and policies for the physical environment – scenic, natural beauty, and historic resources:

- (a) Planning for the State's physical environment shall be directed towards achievement of the objective of enhancement of Hawaii's scenic assets, natural beauty, and multicultural/historical resources.
- (b) To achieve the scenic, natural beauty, and historic resources objective, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Promote the preservation and restoration of significant natural and historic resources.
 - (3) Promote the preservation of views and vistas to enhance the visual and aesthetic enjoyment of mountains, ocean, scenic landscapes, and other natural features.
 - (4) Protect those special areas, structures, and elements that are an integral and functional part of Hawaii's ethnic and cultural heritage.
 - (5) Encourage the design of developments and activities that complement the natural beauty of the islands.

Discussion: As discussed above, this EIS identifies physical, archaeological, and cultural attributes of the proposed project, identifies potential impacts, and proposes mitigation measures. Extensive archaeological studies, as well as data recovery and preservation plans have been conducted for the entire property. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation to date as well as those recommended for possible preservation will be protected. Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. In total, these areas set aside for archaeological sites and preserves constitute over 23 acres.

Based on interviews with people knowledgeable with the Kōloa-Po'ipū area and the Village at Po'ipū site, primary cultural concerns pertain to preservation of identified and potential archaeological sites and protection of environmental resources. As discussed above, the Village at Po'ipū will preserve and protect significant archaeological resources while allowing continued public access to the sites.

The Village at Po'ipū is located away from the shoreline, outside the Special Management Area. Overall, views of the shoreline from the site vicinity are limited by the gradual slope of the property, vegetation, and nearby development. All common areas and public streets will be landscaped. Natural and landscaped buffers will be provided along Po'ipū Road and Weliweli Tract. Hapa Road will be improved as landscaped bicycle/pedestrian path. Height limits prescribed in the design guidelines for the community are equal or less than those in the Kaua'i County Code and will minimize any impact to coastal views.

Section 226-13 Objectives and policies for the physical environment – land, air, and water quality:

- (a) Planning for the State's physical environment with regard to land, are, and water quality shall be directed towards achievement of the following objectives:
 - (1) Maintenance and pursuit of improved quality in Hawaii's land, air and water resources.
- (b) To achieve the land, air, and water quality objectives, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (2) *Promote the proper management of Hawaii's land and water resources.*
 - (3) Promote effective measures to achieve desired quality in Hawaii's surface, ground, and coastal waters.
 - (5) Reduce threat to life and property from erosion, flooding, tsunamis, hurricanes, earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, and other natural or man-induced hazards and disasters.
 - (6) Encourage design and construction practices that enhance the physical qualities of Hawaii's communities.
 - (7) Encourage urban developments in close proximity to existing services and facilities.
 - (8) Foster recognition of the importance and value of land, air, and water resources to Hawaii's people, their cultures and visitors.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū is not expected to have significant adverse long-term effects on the land, air, or water quality as design, construction, and operation will incorporate measures to maintain, and in some cases improve, existing environmental conditions on the project site and vicinity. Runoff that eventually enters the ocean from the project site will be better managed with the proposed onsite detention basins and bioswales filtering and slowing runoff through biofiltration. The Village at Po'ipū site is located away from the shoreline, outside the Special Management Area and is not anticipated to be at risk from tsunami or flooding. The site is no more subject to the risk of hurricane, earthquake, or volcanic hazard than any other location on Kaua'i. The project site is located in close proximity to existing infrastructure and resort and residential communities. The proposed project is not expected to adversely impact air quality as discussed in Section 4.5.

Section 226-15 Objectives and policies for facility systems – solid and liquid wastes:

- (a) Planning for the State's facility systems with regard to solid and liquid wastes shall be directed towards achievement of the following objectives:
 - (1) Maintenance of basic public health and sanitation standards relating to treatment and disposal of solid and liquid wastes.

Discussion: As discussed in Section 4.8.2, the Kōloa-Po'ipū region is not currently serviced by a County wastewater treatment system. Wastewater generated by the Village at Po'ipū project would be collected and routed to the privately-owned Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility (PWRF) for treatment which has sufficient capacity to serve the Village at Po'ipū. The PWRF has a one million gpd capacity and is being upgraded

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

to R-1 effluent. It is expected that the effluent will be used for irrigating landscaping at the neighboring Kiahuna Mauka development as well as the Kiahuna Golf Course, which increase reuse of wastewater and reduce potable water requirements for irrigation in the region. Solid wastes generated by the project are not expected to significantly add to existing waste generation and construction activities will be encouraged to recycle and reuse as much material as economically feasible and available. Further discussion is provided in Section 4.8.5.

Section 226-16 Objective and policies for facility systems – water:

- (a) Planning for the State's facility systems with regard to water shall be directed towards achievement of the objective of the provision of water to adequately accommodate domestic, agricultural, commercial, industrial, recreational, and other needs within resource capacities.
- (b) To achieve the facility systems water objective, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Coordinate development of land use activities with existing and potential water supply.

Discussion: As discussed in Section 4.8.1, a dual water system is planned for the Village at Po'ipū project. To reduce domestic potable water demand, a non-potable water system will be developed for irrigating common areas, street landscaping, the multifamily community and the larger single family lots. This will be a private system, sourced from two on-site wells and Grove Farm's Waita Reservoir. Potable water will be provided by existing and planned DOW water sources. Additional storage facilities may need to be developed to serve the *mauka* portions of the project planned for the last phase of development.

Section 226-17 Objectives and policies for facility systems – transportation:

- (a) Planning for the State's facility systems with regard to transportation shall be directed towards the achievement of the following objectives:
 - (2) A statewide transportation system that is consistent with and will accommodate planned growth objectives throughout the State.
- (b) To achieve the transportation objectives, it shall be the policy of the State to:
 - (6) Encourage transportation systems that serve to accommodate present and future development needs of communities.
 - (12) Coordinate intergovernmental land use and transportation planning activities to ensure the timely delivery of supporting transportation infrastructure in order to accommodate planned growth objectives.

Discussion: A TIAR was prepared for the Village at Po'ipū project and is discussed in detail in Section 4.3. The project will be built-out over three phases. Traffic impacts directly associated with the proposed project are minimal compared with other proposed developments in the area. However, mitigative measures recommended by the TIAR for the Village at Po'ipū project will be implemented during each phase of

development. In addition, the development of Hapa Road as a *mauka-makai* pedestrian and bicycle path will encourage residents and visitors in the area to reduce car trips.

Section 226-19 Objectives and policies for socio-cultural advancement – housing:

- (a) Planning for the State's socio-cultural advancement with regard to housing shall be directed toward the achievement of the following objectives:
 - (1) Greater opportunities for Hawaii's people to secure reasonably priced, safe, sanitary, livable homes, located in suitable environments that satisfactorily accommodate the needs and desires of families and individuals, through collaboration and cooperation between government and nonprofit and for-profit developers to ensure that more affordable housing is made available to very low-, low- and moderate-income segments of Hawaii's population.
 - (2) The orderly development of residential areas sensitive to community needs and other land uses.
- (b) To achieve the housing objectives, it shall be the policy of this State to:
 - (1) Effectively accommodate the housing needs of Hawaii's people.
 - (3) Increase homeownership and rental opportunities and choices in terms of quality, location, cost, densities, style, and size of housing.
 - (5) Promote design and location of housing developments taking into account the physical setting, accessibility to public facilities and services, and other concerns of existing communities and surrounding areas.
 - (6) Facilitate the use of available vacant, developable, and underutilized urban lands for housing.
 - (7) Foster a variety of lifestyles traditional to Hawaii through the design and maintenance of neighborhoods that reflect the culture and values of the community.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will create both single- and multi-family residential opportunities for a range of purchaser types, including mid- to upper-income Kaua'i residents, in-migrating households, second home/vacation buyers, and investors; with emphasis on the first two categories. Because the project is located near the existing Po'ipū resort area, the expected mix of residents are expected to be split roughly in half between full-time and part-time residents. The Village at Po'ipū project site is located in a logical in-fill/expansion area of urban lands as visualized by the County General Plan Further, the site has direct access onto main arterials in the community; access to nearby existing utility systems; and is adjacent to primary retail, restaurant, services, and recreational amenities.

Section 226-23 Objectives and policies for socio-cultural advancement – Leisure:

(a) Planning for the State's socio-cultural advancement with regard to leisure shall be directed towards achievement of the objective of the adequate provision of resources to accommodate diverse, cultural, artistic, and recreational, needs for present and future generations:

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will provide parks and open space areas (12 acres) and archaeological preserves (over 23 acres), as well as an extensive network of pedestrian paths including a shared bike and pedestrian path in Hapa Road. This network will encourage residents and visitors to walk or bike to various destinations in and around the project site such as the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, Po'ipū Beach, Kōloa Town, and the Po'ipū Shopping Village. The amount of space allocated to parks and archaeology preserves in the proposed master plan far exceed County park dedication requirements.

Part II. Planning, Coordinating and Implementation

Part II of the Hawaii State Plan pertains to the administrative structure and implementation process of the Plan. As such, comments are not deemed appropriate.

Part III. Priority Guidelines

The Priority Guidelines section of the Hawaii State Plan establishes overall priority guidelines to address areas of Statewide concern. The Hawaii State Plan notes that the State shall strive to improve the quality of life for Hawai'i's present and future population through the pursuit of desirable courses of action in five major areas of Statewide concern which merit priority attention: 1) economic development, 2) population growth and land resource management, 3) affordable housing, 4) crime and criminal justice; and 5) quality education. The priority guidelines applicable to the Village at Po'ipū are discussed below.

Section 226-103 Economic priority guidelines:

- (a) Priority guidelines to stimulate economic growth and encourage business expansion and development to provide needed jobs for Hawaii's people and achieve a stable and diversified economy.
 - (1) Seek a variety of means to increase the availability of investment capital for new and expanding enterprises.
 - (A) Encourage investments which:
 - *(i) Reflect long term commitments to the State;*
 - (*ii*) Rely on economic linkages within the local economy;
 - (iii) Reinvest in the local economy;
 - (iv) Are sensitive to community needs and priorities; and
 - (v) Demonstrate a commitment to provide management opportunities to Hawaii residents.
 - (5) Streamline the building and development permit and review process, and eliminate or consolidate other burdensome or duplicative governmental requirements imposed on business, where public health, safety and welfare would not be adversely affected.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will make a significant contribution to the economic growth of the Kōloa-Po'ipū region by meeting the demands of the underserved residential and visitor-oriented housing market. At project built-out, the de facto population for the 350 to 503 units is estimated to be 1,037 to 1,574 persons, with approximately 595 full-time residents, with annual discretionary spending of \$56.7 million per year. Some of the resident and virtually all of the non-resident expenditures will be "new" dollars on Kaua'i, providing true economic expansion. In addition to expenditures, the project is estimated to add \$173 million in development capital and \$4.2 million in annual business operations into the Kaua'i economy.

The multiple County and State approvals and permits required for the Village at Po'ipū represents opportunities for government to consolidate public hearings and provide concurrent processing of applications, thereby streamlining the building and development permit and review process and eliminating burdensome, duplicative government requirements without adversely affecting public health, safety, and welfare.

Section 226-104 Population growth and land resources priority guidelines:

- (a) Priority guidelines to effect desired Statewide growth and distribution:
 - (1) Encourage planning and resource management to insure population growth rates throughout the State that are consistent with available and planned resource capacities and reflect the needs and desires of Hawaii's people.
- (b) Priority guidelines for regional growth distribution and land resource utilization:
 - (6) Direct future urban development away from critical environmental areas or impose mitigating measures so that negative impacts on the environment would be minimized.
 - (12) Utilize Hawaii's limited land resources wisely, providing adequate land to accommodate projected population and economic growth needs while ensuring the protection of the environment and the availability of the shoreline, conservation lands, and other limited resources for future generations.

Discussion: Because the site is designated as "Residential Community" on the General Plan's Land Use Map for the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District, this area is envisioned by the County to fill a large portion of Kaua'i's south shore residential growth requirements. The de facto population of the Village at Po'ipū is estimated to be 1,037 to 1,574 persons, approximately half of who are anticipated to be full-time residents.

The Village at Po'ipū is a logical use of the property as it has direct access onto main arterials in the community; access to nearby existing utility systems; and is adjacent to primary retail, restaurant, services, and recreational amenities. Significant historic resources will be preserved and protected in the proposed plan. Further, the Village at Po'ipū site is not expected to negatively impact the shoreline, conservation lands, or other limited resources.

Best management practices will be employed during construction to mitigate runoff, erosion, and other activities that have the potential to impact air and water quality. Mitigation measures for these and other potential impacts resulting from this project are identified in Sections 3.0 and 4.0.

5.1.5 State Functional Plans

The Hawai'i State Plan directs State agencies to prepare functional plans for their respective program areas. There are 13 state functional plans that serve as the primary implementing vehicle for the goals, objectives, and policies of the Hawai'i State Plan. The functional plans applicable to the Village at Po'ipū, along with each plan's applicable objectives, policies, and actions are discussed below.

Employment

The Employment Functional Plan focuses on the preparation of Hawai'i's workforce for the global, information-based 21st-century economy. It takes a multi-agency approach in providing job training and education services, implementing job placement services, improving the quality of the work environment, and coordinating employment information, analysis, and planning.

Discussion: In the short-term, the Village at Po'ipū is expected to create 1,737 "worker years" and \$77.9 million in wages during the first ten years of building and use. On a stabilized basis, the Village at Po'ipū will generate 29 on-site and 12 off-site permanent full-time equivalent jobs. Wages associated with these positions are estimated to total \$1.2 million per year. Additional discussion is provided in Section 4.7.4.

Energy

The Energy Advisory Committee highlights three major concerns for Hawai'i in its Functional Plan: 1) the State's over dependency on oil and fossil fuels; 2) the need for an integrated approach to energy development and management; and 3) energy emergency preparedness.

Discussion: Energy-efficient and conservation measures to reduce the maximum electrical demand will be considered in the design and operation of the Village at Po'ipū, where feasible. Design standards will specify low-impact lighting and will encourage energy-efficient building design and site development practices. Other energy conservation measures, as detailed in Section 4.8.4, will also be considered.

Historic Preservation

The long-term philosophy of the Historic Preservation Functional Plan highlights the importance of maintaining a record of Hawai'i's unique history. History enriches our social, intellectual, aesthetic and economic lives with insights from the past. With the rapid change and development of our island state, our historical resources are at risk. The Historic Preservation Functional Plan attempts to preserve these resources by focusing on three main issue areas: 1) preservation of historic properties; 2) collection and preservation of historic records, artifacts and oral histories; and 3) provision of public information and education on the ethnic and cultural heritages and history of Hawai'i.

Discussion: Extensive archaeological studies, as well as data recovery and preservation plans have been conducted for the entire property. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation to date as well as those recommended for possible preservation will be protected. Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. In total, the areas set aside for archaeological sites and preserves encompass over 23 acres or nearly twelve percent of the project area.

The vehicular and pedestrian circulation networks will be designed to provide both visual connections and direct access to the sites. In most cases, the roadways will run adjacent to the sites so that cultural practitioners, researchers and other interested persons may easily access the sites. Appropriate interpretive signage will be provided at the archaeological preserves. In addition, signage will instruct visitors of the care and respect required to preserve the sites for future generations. Native plants will be used to landscape the sites. Additional information on historic and cultural resources is provided in Sections 4.1 and 4.2.

Housing

The State Housing Functional Plan, prepared by the State Housing Finance and Development Corporation (now Housing and Community Development Corporation of Hawaii), addresses six major areas of concern: 1) increasing home ownership; 2) expanding rental housing opportunities; 3) expanding rental housing opportunities for the elderly and other special need groups; 4) preserving housing stock; 5) designating and acquiring land that is suitable for residential development; and 6) establishing and maintaining a housing information system. The majority of the objectives, policies, and implementing actions of the State Housing Functional Plan apply to the government sector.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will provide additional residential opportunities for both permanent and part-time residents in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area. The market study prepared for the Village at Po'ipū forecasts that this area of Kaua'i will require 2,544 to 5,517 new residential units over the next twenty years. It is anticipated that approximately half of the units built in the Village at Po'ipū will be occupied by full-time residents. While the target market for the proposed project is for buyers with higher incomes, increasing supply, whatever the price range, will reduce overall demand and competition for homes.

Recreation

The Recreation Functional Plan outlines the public and private sectors' roles in serving the recreation and open space needs of the public. It organizes objectives, policies, and actions into six major issue areas: 1) ocean and shoreline recreation; 2) mauka, urban, and other recreational opportunities; 3) public access to shoreline recreation areas; 4) resource conservation and management; 5) management of recreation programs, facilities, and areas; and 6) wetlands protection and management.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will positively impact provision of and access to recreational resources and open space in the Kōloa-Po'ipū region. The master plan for the community includes 12 acres of parks and open space and areas over 23 acres of archaeological preserves. In addition to the parks and preserves, a network of pedestrian/bicycle paths, including a shared bike and pedestrian path in Hapa Road, will weave throughout the project site, linking the different neighborhoods and archaeological preserves to one another and encouraging residents to walk or bike to various destinations around the area such as the Kiahuna Tennis and Swim Club, Po'ipū Spa and Fitness, Po'ipū Beach, and the Po'ipū Shopping Village. Runoff generated by onsite development will be mitigated through the use of landscaped bioswales and detention basins.

Transportation

The overall objective of the Transportation Functional Plan is to provide for the efficient, safe, and convenient movement of people and goods. The Transportation Functional Plan is implemented as a short- to mid-term action agenda by the DOT. It identifies four key issue areas as the most critical concerns relating to transportation in Hawai'i. They are: 1) congestion; 2) economic development; 3) funding; and 4) education.

Discussion: The Village at Po'ipū will be built-out over three phases. Traffic impacts associated with each phase have been identified by the Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) conducted for the project. Mitigative measures recommended by the TIAR will be implemented during each phase of development (see Section 4.3). In addition, the

development of Hapa Road as a *mauka-makai* pedestrian and bicycle path as well as other pedestrian/bikeways will encourage residents and visitors in the area to reduce local vehicle trips.

5.2 KAUA'I COUNTY

5.2.1 Kaua'i County General Plan

The General Plan of the County of Kaua'i is a policy document that is intended to help guide development for the enhancement and improvement of life on Kaua'i. The document provides the County's vision for Kaua'i and establishes the strategies to help achieve that vision.

According to the 2000 General Plan Update and the Kōloa-Po'ipū-Kalāheo Planning District Land Use Map, the entire Village at Po'ipū project area is designated as "Residential Community" (see Figure 6). Residential uses, excluding agricultural houselots, are allowed in areas with this General Plan designation. Residential Community is one of six Urban land use designations (Urban Center, Resort, Residential Community, Transportation, Military, and Parks). One of the key policies in the General Plan's framework for preserving Kaua'i's rural character is to promote growth and development where they are designated in the General Plan in these urban areas. The land uses proposed in the Village at Po'ipū master plan are consistent with this designation and the General Plan's vision for Po'ipū as a residential community.

5.2.2 Kaua'i County Zoning

Similar to the State Land Use Districts, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance for the County of Kaua'i regulates the type and location of development permitted on the island. However, land use classifications are more detailed than the State Land Use Districts and County designations are specific in terms of describing permitted land uses. For example, there are Residential, Resort, Agricultural, Commercial, Industrial, Open, Special Treatment, and Constraint Districts; many of these districts have subcategories based on a variety of development standards such as permitted lot size or structures. They also include development standards for each district and land use.

The existing Kaua'i County zoning for the Village at Po'ipū community includes a mix of Residential zoning R-4, R-6 and R-10 and the Open District (see Figure 7). The proposed residential development will conform to existing zoning.

5.3 APPROVALS AND PERMITS

A listing of anticipated permits and approvals required for the proposed project is presented below.

PERMIT/APPROVAL	RESPONSIBLE AGENCY
Chapter 343, HRS compliance	State Land Use Commission Office of Environmental Quality Control
State Land Use District Boundary Amendment	State Land Use Commission
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)	State Department of Health
Archaeological Data Recovery and Preservation Plans, Compliance with Chapter 6E, HRS	State Historic Preservation Division
Grading/Building Permits	Kaua'i County Department of Public Works
Subdivision Approval	Kaua'i County Planning Department

Table 7:	List of Anticipated	Permits and Approvals
----------	---------------------	-----------------------

(This page intentionally left blank.)

6.0 ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED ACTION

Under HAR, Section 11-200-10(6), Environmental Impact Statement Rules, the alternatives to a proposed action considered are limited to those that would allow the objectives of the project to be met, while minimizing potential adverse environmental impacts. The feasible alternatives must also address the project's economic characteristics while responding to the surrounding land uses that will be impacted by the project. In conformance with applicable regulations, the alternatives below have been identified and investigated.

As stated in Section 2.3.1, the objectives of the Village at Po'ipū are to:

- Create a high-quality residential community in an appropriate location in South Kaua'i to help satisfy the demand for this market;
- Preserve and protect cultural and historic archaeological resources for present and future generations of Hawai'i residents and visitors;
- Expand regional recreation opportunities by creating pedestrian and bicycle greenway networks, parks, open spaces, and archaeological preserves; and
- Provide for the logical and long-planned in-fill of urban expansion in the Po'ipū area.

6.1 NO-ACTION ALTERNATIVE

Under the "no-action" alternative, the project area would remain in its current undeveloped state and continue to be underutilized as pastureland. This alternative would not be consistent with the Kaua'i General Plan (2000) nor improve the undersupplied condition of the current housing market within the Po'ipū/Kōloa area.

According to the General Plan, the entire Village at Po'ipū project site is designated as "Residential Community" and is needed to support the growth projected for South Kaua'i. Based on the market study prepared for the project by The Hallstrom Group, the Po'ipū/Kōloa housing market is in a moderately to strongly undersupplied condition and is expected to require over 4,000 additional units over the next twenty years (Hallstrom 2005). This lack of supply is a major factor of escalating housing prices. The "no-action" alternative would not help South Kaua'i's housing shortage nor fulfill the policies of the County's General Plan. Other potentially inappropriate lands may be sought for residential development if this area is left undeveloped.

Further, the "no-action" alternative would deny the State, County, and general public of the potential public benefits associated with the Village at Po'ipū. Some of the benefits include:

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

- Investment of \$173 million in new construction capital that would increase the real property tax receipts collected by the County of Kaua'i.
- An increase in construction spending resulting in increased construction employment leading to increased consumer spending by construction workers within the local economy and increased income taxes and increased excise tax collection.
- Creation of employment opportunities in the construction industry during and after construction.
- Long-term protection of archaeological resources in over 23 acres of preserves, ensuring the preservation of cultural and historic resources for current and future generations.

6.2 OTHER ALTERNATIVES

Agriculture

One potential alternative to the proposed project is to convert the land to agricultural use as its current State Land Use District designation implies. However, based on the various soil studies (see Section 3.3), the project site contains soils that have severe limitations in terms of their productivity and would require extreme measures to make them suitable for cultivation. They are most suited for grazing and pasture, which are its current uses.

Park/Open Space

Similar to the agriculture and "no-action" alternatives, the project site could be developed into a lower intensity use such as a park or left as open space. However, given Kaua'i's need for housing and its designation as a "Residential Community" within the General Plan, this alternative would not provide the County with the highest and best possible use of the site.

Other Urban Uses

The site could also be developed for other urban land uses such as commercial uses. However, given the proximity of the Po'ipū Village Shopping Center, Kōloa Town, and the upcoming Kukui'ula commercial areas, the area may be saturated with commercial uses. The site would be unsuitable for higher intensity uses such as industrial given the surrounding residential and resort communities and significant archaeological sites.

All of the above alternatives are contrary to the County's vision and policies for the use of the area which has been specified as "Residential Community" in their 2000 General Plan. Furthermore, given the need for housing in South Kaua'i and its ideal location close to other residential areas, existing infrastructure, and roadways, the proposed project would be the best use for the site.

6.3 POSTPONING ACTION PENDING FURTHER STUDY

The alternative of postponing action pending further study may allow some of the objectives of the Village at Po'ipū to be met eventually; however, this alternative is not necessary for the following reasons:

- 1. This environmental impact statement and it related technical studies provide a thorough evaluation of the impacts of the Village at Po'ipū;
- 2. Permit processing for the Village at Po'ipū will include a State Land Use Boundary District Amendment, which provides for agency review and public comments, as well as opportunities for the public and decision-makers to ask for more information;
- 3. The Village at Po'ipū is consistent with the County of Kaua'i General Plan and County zoning designations, as well as the State Land Use Urban District designation on portions of the project site and adjacent properties on all four sides of the site. As such, residential uses on the property have been thoroughly considered and approved through the public processes involved with these designations.

(This page intentionally left blank.)

7.0 CONTEXTUAL ISSUES

Key issues within the context of the Villages at Po'ipū are presented in this section.

7.1 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE SHORT-TERM USES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND THE MAINTENANCE AND ENHANCEMENT OF LONG-TERM PRODUCTIVITY

Short-term uses and long-term productivity consist of the Village at Po'ipū's short-term construction phases and long-term benefits after construction. Short-term construction impacts can be mitigated while they occur. In the long-term, the creation of the Village at Po'ipū will contribute to substantial positive economic and other benefits as discussed throughout this EIS. The Village at Po'ipū will contribute to meeting strong demand for permanent and part-time residential opportunities in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area, helping the region grow in a well thought-out and sustainable manner.

7.2 CUMULATIVE AND SECONDARY IMPACTS

Cumulative and secondary impacts are impacts that may result from other reasonably foreseeable actions or projects within the area regardless of who initiates the action. Since the Village at Po'ipū community is included in the "Residential Community" as designated on the County of Kaua'i's General Plan, the General Plan provides the basis for reasonably anticipated impacts generated by the development and growth envisioned for the area.

According to Sections 6.4, 7.0, and 8.0 of the General Plan and available information from relevant agencies, several improvements to public infrastructure and services will be required in order to support the general growth of the Kōloa-Po'ipū area. These include:

- <u>Roadways</u>: Expansion of Kaumuali'i Highway into a four-lane divided parkway between Kōloa Road and Rice Street/Kūhiō Highway. Maluhia Road consists of two parallel tree tunnels with four traffic lanes between them the old tree tunnel and a new parallel tree tunnel roadway each carrying two lanes of one-way traffic. Construction of a new two-lane connector road between Port Allen and Po'ipū. Additional roadway improvements required to accommodate other known developments in the area are described in Section 4.3 and the TIAR.
- <u>Transit services</u>: Increased bus service in Koloa/Po'ipu.

- <u>Bikeways</u>: Development of bikepaths connecting Kōloa, Po'ipū and Kukui'ula.
- <u>Water</u>: Potable water sources for domestic use within the Kōloa-Po'ipū system are adequate. However, storage facilities will need to be improved and increased by 2020 according to the Department of Water's Water Plan 2020.
- <u>Wastewater</u>: The County has deferred plans for a regional system to serve the Kōloa-Po'ipū area. Instead, it has encouraged the development of separate, smaller private systems to be developed such as the expansion of the Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility and A&B's private system serving its Kukui'ula project.
- <u>Electrical Power</u>: No new facilities are anticipated as needed for the Kōloa-Po'ipū area.
- <u>Solid Waste</u>: Since the County's landfill in Kekaha serves the entire island, new landfill capacity is needed for island-wide services by 2020. A new transfer station is also proposed for Kōloa.
- <u>Police and Fire Safety</u>: The Kaua'i Police Department estimates that it needs 2.5 officers per 1,000 residents. With a potential population of 1,037 to 1,573 persons at full build-out, the Village at Po'ipū project would require between 2.5 and 4 additional officers. The Hallstrom market study calculates potential future police protection needs for the project based on the number of probable police incidents and estimates that only 56.8 percent of one new officer position would be required by the project. For fire protection, the General Plan does not foresee any need to increase facilities or staff to adequately serve the growth of the Kōloa-Po'ipū area by 2020.
- <u>Schools</u>: The Kōloa-Po'ipū communities are located within the Kaua'i High School complex. The schools serving the project are Kōloa Elementary, Chiefess Kamakahelei Middle, and Kaua'i High Schools. Kōloa Elementary has a capacity of 449 students and enrollment has been steadily declining from 310 students in 1999 to 184 in 2004-05. However, the DOE expects enrollments to increase in a few years Chiefess Kamakahelei Middle is a relatively new school built in with a capacity of 1,271 students. Student enrollments over the past three years are just over 1,000 students. Kaua'i High School has a capacity of 1,493 students with enrollment between 1,200 and 1,300 students in recent years. The DOE

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

notes that there is sufficient capacity for some enrollment increases at these schools. However, the LUC is expected to impose a fair-share contribution on the project with which the developer will fully comply.

In addition, the following information on other proposed Kōloa-Po'ipū projects from the Hallstrom market study is provided below.

Proposed Koloa-Po'ipu Projects

In recent years, various landowners and developers have proposed major new projects for the Po'ipū area. There are three major projects approved or proposed in the general vicinity of the Village at Po'ipū site: Kukui'ula, Kiahuna Mauka, and Po'ipū Beach Villas. These three market developments are all moving forward, and are already, or will be, in construction during 2005. The projects will provide a maximum of 2,555 total units (1,180 single family homes and 1,375 multi family units). However, it is unlikely that all of this inventory will be built, as master plans evolve over time and actual densities invariably fall short of maximum approvals. Further, it is unlikely that all of the product will be built within the same build-out timeframe as the Village at Po'ipū; as noted in the General Plan, "Master-planned projects such as...Kukui'ula typically take 30 years or more to build out."

A fourth project, Weliweli Expansion, is a long-planned State sponsored development now on hold. The project was first proposed for development in the 1970s, and was granted initial County entitlements. However, it has been on hold for many years, which no change in status likely in the near to mid-term despite the evident need for resident housing.

Other smaller scale residential developments, as well as office/commercial and resort projects are also planned in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area. These include, Kōloa Creekside, renovation of the Po'ipū Beach Hotel, Kōloa Marketplace, Historic Kōloa Village, Po'ipū Beach Villas, and expansion of the Sheraton Kaua'i Resort Hotel.

Cumulative Impacts

Cumulative and secondary impacts are impacts that may result from other reasonably foreseeable actions within the area, regardless of who initiates the action. Cumulative and secondary impacts resulting from the above projects are likely to include increased population and greater demands on public roadways, infrastructure systems and services. However, the population of Kaua'i, particularly in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area, is projected to grow and the needs of a growing population relating to traffic, infrastructure, public services, and other issues will need to be addressed regardless if some or all of these projects are built. The Village at Po'ipū is not expected to contribute substantially to negative cumulative impacts relative to, and combined with, other

proposed projects in the Kōloa-Po'ipū area. For those impacts that require mitigation, the developers will comply with these recommendations. These impacts are discussed in detail in Section 4.0 of the EIS.

Positive secondary and cumulative impacts associated with the Village at Po'ipū include:

- Economic "multiplier" impacts to the State and County of Kaua'i economies from increased property tax revenues, jobs, and related income taxes, and the Village at Po'ipū full- and part-time resident expenditures. These positive impacts will be infused into the economy and result in increased capital spending as business, government, and individuals allocate funds and spend discretionary income.
- The increase of the total housing supply in the region to decrease competition for housing opportunities, particularly in non-resort areas.

Impacts from other proposed South Kaua'i projects will contribute to incremental, cumulative impacts to regional infrastructure, public service systems and facilities, and area resources. However, all of these proposed projects will be subject to regulatory review to ensure compliance with applicable land use and other policies. Projects must have the appropriate State land use designation, the appropriate County zoning, and comply with other applicable regulatory review and approval procedures to ensure that each project will not have major adverse effects on infrastructure, public services, and the natural or socio-economic environment, or result in adverse cumulative and secondary impacts. Similar to the Village at Po'ipū project, developers of other projects in the region will be required to satisfactorily mitigate impacts of their projects before proceeding with development. Growth in the Kōloa-Po'ipū region is a natural progression. Careful planning will ensure that growth does not negatively affect and overburden infrastructure systems.

7.3 IRREVERSIBLE AND IRRETRIEVABLE COMMITMENTS OF RESOURCES

Use of resources related to the Village at Po'ipū is expected to be substantially similar or generally less than existing residential and resort uses in the project vicinity. Major resource commitments include the money, construction materials, labor, and energy required for the construction of the Village at Po'ipū and ongoing operations after construction. The impacts represented by the commitment of these resources, however, should be weighed against the positive socio-economic benefits that will be derived from the project versus the consequences of either taking no action or pursuing another less beneficial use of the property. All significant archaeological sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation will be preserved and protected onsite.

7.4 PROBABLE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECTS THAT CANNOT BE AVOIDED

Air Quality. In the short-term, construction of the Village at Po'ipū will generate fugitive dust. All demolition and construction activities will comply with the provisions of HAR, Chapter 11-60.1, Air Pollution Control, Section 11-60.1-33, "Fugitive Dust." In compliance with these provisions, an effective dust control plan will be implemented.

In the long-term, the air quality assessment conducted for this EIS concludes that after construction: 1) the Village at Po'ipū should have no significant long-term impacts on maximum air pollution levels in the area; and 2) it is unlikely that traffic associated with the Village at Po'ipū will cause any significant detrimental impacts on air quality in the area.

Noise. In the short-term, construction of the Village at Po'ipū will generate noise that may impact nearby residences. The dominant noise sources during construction will be from equipment such as bulldozers, excavators, and diesel trucks. Increased noise due to construction will be short-term, limited to daytime hours, and must comply with the State Department of Health noise regulations.

In the long-term, traffic-related noise levels are expected to decrease and no vehicularrelated noise impacts are anticipated due to the Village at Po'ipū. Regarding noise from post-construction operations, the design of the Village at Po'ipū will provide for the location and placement of stationary mechanical equipment (such as chillers, compressors, and air conditioning units) away from neighbors and residential units as much as is practical. Enclosed mechanical rooms may be required for some equipment.

7.5 RATIONALE FOR PROCEEDING WITH THE VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ NOTWITHSTANDING UNAVOIDABLE EFFECTS

In light of the above mentioned unavoidable effects, the creation of the Village at Po'ipū should proceed because relatively minor negative impacts will be offset by substantial positive impacts, including: 1) the increase in number and diversification of the Kōloa-Po'ipū area housing stock; 2) protection and documentation of significant archaeological sites and the creation of archaeological preserves including improvements for public access, clearing of invasive plant species and landscaping with native plants; 3) improved filtration and mitigation of surface water runoff from the existing site using bioswales, landscaping and native plants; 4) increased recreational facilities including parks, bicycle and pedestrian paths and the improvement of Hapa

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

Road as a mauka-makai shared path; 5) conformance with the County of Kaua'i General Plan and its vision for accommodating growth in South Kaua'i; and 6) the wages, taxes, and overall positive economic impacts of the Village at Po'ipū. The proposed project provides a balanced solution for providing housing in an area close to existing urban areas and designated by the County General Plan for residential community while protecting significant archaeological resources, improving runoff water quality and replacing alien plant species with native plants.

7.6 UNRESOLVED ISSUES

The Knudsen Trust is currently working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to fulfill any affordable housing requirement for the Village at Po'ipū. Please note that in satisfaction of the original 1977 State Land Use Boundary Amendment (Docket A76-418) which reclassified the lands *makai* of the railroad berm as well as lands to the west from the Agricultural District to the Urban District, a \$2,000,000 payment was made to the County of Kaua'i to fulfill its affordable housing obligation. This condition was confirmed as being satisfied by the LUC on October 16, 1995. Phase 1 and 2 of the Village at Po'ipū project are located in this area *makai* of the railroad berm and therefore do not have any affordable housing requirements to fulfill.

8.0 CONSULTATION

The preparation of this Draft EIS involved communicating with Federal, State, and County agencies, and individuals and community organizations, including those listed below.

Federal

- U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
- Michael Kato, Postmaster, Koloa Post Office

State of Hawai'i

- Department of Business Economic Development & Tourism (DBED&T) Land Use Commission
- Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR) Division of Forestry and Wildlife
- Mike Lauretta, DLNR Kaua'i Land Division
- Nancy McMahon, DLNR State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) Kaua'i Archaeologist
- Nathan Napōka, SHPD History and Cultural Branch
- Department of Health
- Darryl Yagodich, Department of Hawaiian Homelands Planning Office
- Department of Transportation
- La France Kapaka-Arboleda, Office of Hawaiian Affairs, Community Resource Coordinator, Kaua'i/Ni'ihau Island Burial Council
- Heidi Guth, Office of Hawaiian Affairs

Kaua'i County

- Planning Department
- Department of Water
- Department of Public Works
- County Council
- Mayor Bryan Baptiste

Individuals and Community Organizations

- 'Ahahui o Ka'ahumanu Kaua'i Chapter
- Manuel Andrade, Rancher
- Edward Halealoha Ayau, Hui Mālama I Nā Iwi o Hawai'i Nei
- Debra Badua, Principal, Kōloa Elementary School
- Elizabeth Bukoski, Koloa Resident
- Rick Bundschuh and Dain Spore, Pastors, Kaua'i Christian Fellowship
- Stella Burgess, Hyatt Hotels & Resorts Cultural Specialist

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

- Albert Carbonel, Queen Lili'uokalani Children Center
- Jim Case, President, Po'ipū Beach Rotary Club
- David Chang, Koloa Historian
- George Costa, General Manager, Embassy Vacation Resort Po'ipū Point
- Chris Dibble, Administrator, Saint Raphael's Catholic Church
- Malvin Dohrman, President, Kaua'i Historical Society
- Reginald Gage, Kaua'i Historical Society
- Jerry Gibson, General Manager, Hyatt Regency Kaua'i Resort & Spa
- Edgar Gum, General Manager, Marriott Waiohai Beach Club
- Nani Higa, Halau Hula o Nani
- Nani Hill, Head Pastor, Koloa Union Church
- Dick Holtzman, President, Kukui'ula Development Company
- Noe Hoʻokano, General Manager, Lāwaʻi Beach Resort
- Louis Jacinto, Koloa Resident, former Koloa Sugar Company Employee
- Reverend Kosen Ishikawa, Pastor, Koloa Jodo Mission
- Niles Kageyama, Pastor, Kōloa Missionary Church
- Isaac Kaiu, Kupuna
- Billy Kaohelauli'i, Kama'āina of Koloa
- Lionel Kaohi, Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs-Kaua'i Council
- Chris Kauwe, Cultural Practitioner, Kanaka Maoli, Hui Mālama Kāne I Olo Uma
- James Kimokea, Kama'āina
- Sheryl Keli'ipio, Ho'o Lāhui
- Carol Lovell, Director, Kaua'i Museum
- Abel Medeiros, Koloa Resident, Rancher
- Manuel Medeiros, Kōloa Resident
- Beryl Moir, Resident
- Owen Morgan, General Manager HOA, Po'ipū Kai Resort
- Ron Morin, General Manager, Kiahuna Plantation Outrigger
- Moana Palama, President, Koloa Community Association
- Margy Parker, Executive Director, Po'ipū Beach Resort Association
- Henry Perez, Former General Manager, Lāwa'i Beach Resort
- Warren Perry, Royal Order of Kamehameha, Kaumuali'i Chapter No. 3
- Mary Requilman, Managing Director, Kaua'i Historical Society
- Mike Roberts, Vice President, DMB
- Rupert Napopoloakāne Rowe, Kama'āina of Koloa, Puni Family
- Abby Santos, General Manager & Co-owner, No Ka'oi Plants
- Myles Shibata, Vice President, TAK Hawai'i, Inc.
- Tom Shigemoto, Vice President, A&B Properties
- Charldon Thomas, Former General Manager, Sheraton Kaua'i Resort
- Roy Thompson, General Manager, Kiahuna Plantation Castle
- Buff Toulon, President, Po'ipū Ocean View Resorts
- Rick Tsuchiya, Kaua'i Historic Preservation Review Commission
- Angela Vento, General Manager, Sheraton Kaua'i Resort

9.0 LIST OF PREPARERS

The Draft EIS has been prepared by PBR HAWAII, 1001 Bishop Street, ASB Tower, Suite 650, Honolulu, Hawai'i, 96813.

Several key technical consultants were employed to provide specific assessments of environmental factors for this project. These consultants, their company affiliation, and their specialty are listed below:

Technical Consultants	Area of Expertise					
B.D. Neal & Associates	Air Quality Assessment					
Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, Inc.	Archaeological Studies					
Cultural Surveys Hawaiʻi, Inc.	Cultural Impact Assessment					
Kodani and Associates	Civil Engineering					
The Hallstrom Group, Inc.	Market Study, Economic Impact					
	Analysis and Public Cost/Benefit					
	Assessment					
Phil Bruner	Faunal Studies					
Char & Associates	Flora Studies					
D.L Adams Associates, Ltd.	Noise Impact Assessment					
Austin Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc.	Traffic Impact Assessment					

(This page intentionally left blank.)

10.0 REFERENCES

- Austin, Tsutsumi & Associates, Inc. (2003) *Traffic Impact Analysis Report for Village at Po'ipū*. Po'ipū, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. Prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust, December 8, 2003.
- Baker, H.L. et al. (1965) *Detailed Land Classification, Island of Kauai.* L.S. Land Study Bureau, University of Hawai'i.
- BD Neal and Associates. (2005) "Air Quality Study for the Proposed Village at Po'ipū." Prepared September 2005. Kailua-Kona, Hawaii.
- Bruner Phil. (2002) Avifaunal and Feral Mammal Survey of Knudsen Trust Property at Po'ipū, Kaua'i. Po'ipū, Hawai'i.
- Char and Associates. (2002) Botanical Survey Po'ipulani Project, Po'ipū, Kōloa District, Kaua'i. Honolulu, Hawai'i.
- Esh, Kelley S. and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2004) Data Recovery Plan for the Knudsen Trust Lands, Village at Po'ipū, State Site 50-30-10-947 Railroad Berm, Kōloa Ahupua'a, Kaua'i Island. Prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, September 2004.
- Freeman, Sallee D.M. and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2004) Interim Protection Plan for the Knudsen Trust Lands Portion of the Village at Po'ipū, Koloa Ahupua'a, Kona District, Kaua'i Island. Draft report prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust September 2004, by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i.
- The Hallstrom Group (2005). *Market Study, Economic Impact Analysis and Public Cost/Benefits Assessment of the Proposed Village at Po'ipū; to be located at Poipu, Kauai, Hawaii.* Draft report prepared for The Knudsen Trust, April 2005.
- Hammatt, Hallett H. (1991) Data Recovery and Preservation Plan for the Po'ipulani Development Area. Prepared for: Po'ipulani Development Corporation by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i. January 1991, Revised July 1991.
- Hammatt, Hallett H., William H. Folk, Mark Stride (1991) Archaeological Inventory Survey of the Proposed Po'ipulani Golf Course and Residential Development, Koloa, Kaua'i. Prepared for: Po'ipulani Development Corporation by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i. September 1990, Revised July 1991.

- Hawai'i State Department of Agriculture (1977) Agricultural Lands of Importance to the State of Hawai'i. Honolulu, Hawai'i.
- Hawai'i State Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism. (2004) *State of Hawai'i Data Book 2004.* Available at: http://www3.hawaii.gov/DBEDT/index.cfm?section=READ_Databook1075.
- ------ (2005) "2004 County Population Estimates, Table 1: Annual Estimates of the Population for Counties of Hawaii: April 1, 2000 to July 1, 2004 (CO-EST2004-01-15)" Source: Population Division, U.S. Census Bureau. Available: http://www3.hawaii.gov/DBEDT/images/User_FilesImages/census/Files/Po p_Estimate/2004/County/CO-EST2004-01-15_a1575.pdf. Release Date: April 14, 2005
- ------ (2000). "Census 2000 Profiles Kauai County." Available at website: http://www.hawaii.gov/dbedt/census2k/profile-kauai/index.html
- ------ (2005). Hawaii State GIS Program website. Available at: http://www.state.hi.us/dbedt/gis/download.htm
- Hawai'i Department of Education. (2005) Department of Education website: http://doe.k12.hi.us/
- ------ (2005). "Trend Reports: Educational and Fiscal Accountability, School Report for School Year 2003-2004. Updated as of 04/20/2005. "Available at website: http://arch.k12.hi.us.
- Hawai'i Office of Environmental Quality Control. (1999) "Guidelines for Sustainable Building Design in Hawai'i: A Planner's Checklist." Adopted by the Environmental Council on October 13, 1999. Available at website: http://www.hawaii.gov/health/oeqc/guidance/sustainable.htm.
- Hill, Robert R., Todd Tulchin, Jon Tulchin, and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2005) *Archaeological Inventory Survey for an 8.633-Acre Parcel at Koloa*. Final report prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust, September 2005.
- Juvik, Sonia P. and James O. Juvik, eds. (1998) *Atlas of Hawai'i*. 3rd Edition. Honolulu: University of Hawai'i Press, Honolulu, Hawai'i.
- Kaua'i County. (2000) Kaua'i General Plan 2000 Update. Līhu'e: Kaua'i County Planning Department, Hawai'i. Available on the Kaua'i County website: http://www.kauaigov.org/planning/generalplan.htm.

- Kaua'i County, Department of Water. (2001) *Water Plan 2020*. Approved by the Water Board, March 21, 2001. Available on the Kaua'i Department of Water website: http://www.kauaiwater.org/ce_waterplan2020app.asp.
- Koch, Linda, June Harrigan-Lum and Katina Henderson, Hawaii State Department of Health Environmental Planning Office (2004). *Final 2004 List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii. Prepared under Clean Water Act* §303(*d*). Prepared June 16, 2004. Available online at the State Department of Health website: http://www.state.hi.us/health/environmental/envplanning/wqm/303dpcfinal.pdf.
- Kodani and Associates, Inc. (2005) "Village at Po'ipū Preliminary Engineering Report, August 15, 2005." Līhu'e, Hawai'i.
- Laney, Leroy O. (2004) *Economic Forecast-Kaua'i Edition 2004-2005*. First Hawaiian Bank, Hawai'i.
- Macdonald, Gordon A., Agatin T. Abbott, and Frank L. Peterson. (1983) *Volcanoes under the Sea: The Geology of Hawai'i*. University of Hawai'i Press, Honolulu, Hawai'i.
- Mitchell, Aulii, Rodney Chiogioji and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2005, draft) *Cultural Impact Assessment*. Draft report prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust, May 2005.
- Pacific Business News. (2005). "Kaua'i median home price: \$665,000." Reported June 9,2005.RetrievedJuly1,2005fromwww.bizjournals.com/pacific/stories/2005/06/06/daily27.html
- PBR Hawaii. (2004) Village at Po'ipū Landscape Master Plan. Prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust. August 11, 2004.
- Tulchin, Todd and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2003) Archaeological Assessment of a Portion of the Eric Knudsen Trust Lands, Koloa Ahupua'a, Kona District, Island of Kaua'i (TMK 2-8-14:19 portion). Prepared for Eric Knudsen Trust by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i. March 2003.
- ------ (2005) Archaeological Literature Review and Field Inspection for a 8.5-acre Knudsen Trust Parcel, Kōloa Ahupua'a, Kona District, Island of Kaua'i. Prepared fro Eric Knudsen Trust by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i.
- United States Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service. (1972) Soil Survey of Islands of Kauai, Oahu, Maui, and Lanai, State of Hawai'i. Issued August 1972.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IPŪ

- United States Department of the Interior Fish and Wildlife Service (2003). "Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and Plants; Designation of Critical Habitat for the Kauai Cave Wolf Spider and Kauai Cave Amphipod; Final Rule." Federal Register 50 CFR Part 17, Vol. 68, No. 68, pp. 17430-17470, April 9, 2003. Website: http://www.fws.gov/pacific/pacificislands/CHRules/kauaicavefinal.pdf
- United States Census Bureau. (2000). *Census Report*. Internet. Available at: www.census.gov.
- University of Hawai'i Economic Research Organization. (2004). *Kaua'i Economic Outlook*. June 2004.
- Van Ryzin, Karl and Hallett H. Hammatt. (2004) Archaeological Data Recovery of a Portion of the Eric A. Knudsen Trust Lands Koloa Ahupua'a, Kona District, Island of Kaua'i. Prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, November 2004.
- Yorck, Jesse, Jonus Madeus, Sallee D.M. Freeman, John E. Dockall, and Hallett H. Hammatt (2005). Archaeological Inventory Survey for Makai Portion of Parcel 19 of the Eric A. Knudsen Trust Lands, Koloa Ahupua'a, Kona District, Kaua'i. Prepared for Eric A. Knudsen Trust by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, February 2005.

O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Draft EIS-03 10-30-05.doc

11.0 COMMENT LETTERS ON THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT PREPARATION NOTICE AND RESPONSES

The following is a list of agencies and individuals to whom the EISPN was mailed for comment and the date of their comment letters. The comment letters and responses are attached in their entirety on the following pages.

		DATE	COMMENT
		EISPN	LETTER
NO.	AGENCY/INDIVIDUAL	MAILED	DATED
	STATE		
1	Office of Environmental Services	7/23/05	8/3/05
2	Land Use Commission	7/23/05	
3	Department of Agriculture	7/23/05	
4	Department of Accounting and General Services	7/23/05	7/27/05
5	State Department of Business Economic Development and Tourism (DBEDT)	7/23/05	
6	DBEDT Strategic Industries Division	7/23/05	7/29/05
7	State DBEDT Office of Planning	7/23/05	8/9/05
8	Department of Defense	7/23/05	
9	Department of Education	7/23/05	8/23/05
10	Department of Hawaiian Homelands	7/23/05	7/28/05
11	Department of Health-Environmental Planning Office	7/23/05	8/18/05
12	Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR)	7/23/05	
13	State Historic Preservation Division	7/23/05	8/29/05
14	State Historic Preservation Division - Kaua'i	7/23/05	
15	Department of Transportation	7/23/05	
16	Office of Hawaiian Affairs	7/23/05	8/15/05
17	UH Environmental Center	7/23/05	
18	UH Water Resources Research Center	7/23/05	
	FEDERAL		
19	US Fish and Wildlife Service	7/23/05	
20	US National Marine Fisheries Service	7/23/05	
21	US Army Corps of Engineers	7/23/05	8/12/05
22	US Army Corp of Engineers-Regulatory Branch		9/30/05

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT VILLAGE AT PO'IP $\bar{\rm U}$

		DATE	COMMENT
		EISPN	LETTER
NO.	AGENCY/INDIVIDUAL	MAILED	DATED
	COUNTY OF KAUA'I		
23	Fire Department	7/23/05	8/2/05
24	Planning Department	7/23/05	
25	Police Department	7/23/05	
26	Department of Public Works	7/23/05	
27	Kaua'i County Office of Community Assistance- Transportation Agency	7/23/05	
28	Department of Water	7/23/05	8/25/05
	LIBRARIES		
29	Kōloa Public and School Library	7/23/05	
30	Līhu'e Public Library	7/23/05	
31	Kaua'i Community College Library	7/23/05	
	NEWSPAPERS		
32	Honolulu Advertiser	7/23/05	
33	Honolulu Star Bulletin	7/23/05	
34	Garden Island Newspaper	7/23/05	
	ELECTED OFFICIALS/UTILITIES		
35	Kaipo Asing, County Council Chair	7/23/05	
36	KIUC	7/23/05	
	COMMUNITY		
	Terrie Hayes	7/23/05	
	Comment Letter from Llewelyn Kaohelauli'i,		8/23/05
37	Rupert Rowe, Terrie Hayes, Tessie Kinnaman,		
	Leslie Pool, Andy Siegel, and members for Hui		
	Malama O Kane I Olo Uma		
38	Alan Souza (received with letter #38)		8/23/05
39	Chris Kauwe	8/16/05	
40	Tom Conlon		8/22/05
41	Joel Canzoneri		8/23/05

January 27, 2006	Ms. Genevieve Salmonson, Director Office of Environmental Quality Control State of Hawai'i 235 South Beretania Street, Suite 702 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813	 RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Ms. Salmonson: 	Thank you for your letter dated August 3, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	 An analysis of potential impacts and mitigative measures related to the expansion of the Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility is provided in Section 4.8.2 of the Draft EIS. The preliminary engineering report provides a full description of the expansion plans and is attached as an appendix to the EIS. 	2. A market study for the Villages at Po'ipū project has been prepared and it includes a social impact assessment of population, affordable housing, public services, and other important socio-economic factors. An analysis of potential socio-economic impacts and mitigative measures is provided in Section 4.7 of the Draft EIS, and the full market study report is included as an appendix.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS. Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	M. Associate cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust o:\Job22/2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS/Reports/EIS/Draft EIS/Response Letters/OEQC.doc
PBR	LAND FLANING LANDSCAPE ARCHTEGTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA	Симаким Thomas S. WITTER, ASLA Puezdent R. Stan Uncent, ASLA Executing Vice Puesdent Russill XI, Olivie, ASLA Execution Vice Distances	ALCOURT NET ALLOW AND ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL AL	Свыят Мизьками, АСР Хвача Аквосия Том ScareLI, АСР Авуосии Калчово Н. Вик, АSLA	Kavin Nisinawa, ASLA Associan	Howaria. Overca non howar Strain ANT Towar, Strate 60 Howaria, Howari 961 5-3444 Tang 1805 251 560 Ext. Syndroff Ophravial, com	Hato Orocsa (1) Arreade Stratt (2) Arreade Stratt Hato, Hanore Peer Bodd Hato, Hanori Peer Dadd Part, perdated hanaus Part, perdated hanaus (2) 213 Atomot Stratt (2) 24 Atomot S
LINDA LINGLE LINDA LINGLE GOVERNOR OF HAVAII	STATE OF HAWAII OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY CONTROL 235 SOUTH BERETANIA STREET HONOLULI TARKANI 59613 TELEPHORE(BOS) 586-4165 F. Cashiki (Bos) 586-4165 E-mail: cocy 69/health state.hus	August 3, 2005 Mr. Anthony Ching, Executive Officer State Land Use Commission 235 South Beretania Street, 4th Floor Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813	Dear Mr. Ching: Subject: EISPN for Poipu Village	Thank you for the opportunity to review the subject document. We have the following comments. 1. Please fully analyze all the impacts of expanding the Poipu Water Reclamation Facility. 2. Please consider conducting a social impact assessment to analyze the impacts of this proviect on nonvolution characteristics. affordable housing, public services and other	factors important to the community. Should you have any questions, please call Jeyan Thirugnanam at 586-4185. Sincerely.	Content of the second of the s	

January 27, 2006	Mr. Ernest Y. W. Lau, Public Works Administrator Department of Accounting and General Services State of Hawai'i P.O. Box 119 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96810	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Villace at Povini Kanavi	TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Mr. Lau:	Thank you for your letter dated July 27, 2005 regarding the Village at Povini	Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to you comments.	We appreciate the information that the proposed project does not directly impact any Department of Accounting and General Services' projects or existing facilities, and that you have no comments to offer at this time.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.	PBR HAWAII	Aller Solution	Kimi Yuen'	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\DACS.doc
PBR	LAND FLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHTECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WA. FRANDT, FASLA CHARMAN	THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT	R. STAN DUNCAN ASLA Executive Vice-President Russell YJ. Chung, ASLA Executive Vice-President	VINCENT SHIGEKUNI PRINCIPAL	JAMES LEONARD, AICP PREVCIPAL HILO OFFICE	GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP SENIOR ASSOCIATE TON SCINELI, AICP TON SCINELI, AICP	RAYMOND T. HIGA, ASI A ASSOCIATE KEVIN NSHKAWA, ASI A ASSOCIATE			Howaru Orrac 1011 Basar Syaar ABI Towa Sime (50 Howaru, Hwar1 968) 3484 Fac (808) 523-5461 Fac (808) 523-1402	HAAAL sysadiant@pohtawan.com Hato Orners Strutt 10 Accord Casers Strutt 210 Hato Lacord Casers Strutt 210 Tax, (800) 961-3133 Pax: (800) 961-3433 Pax: (800) 961-3433 Pax: (800) 961-3433 Pax: (800) 961-3433	WALING OFFICE TALING OFFICE ALING HART OFFICE TALING HART OFFICE TALING OFFICE ALING OFFICE FAULT OFFICE FAULT OFFICE FAULT OFFICE FAULT OFFICE
UN 2 8 (U) KATERNE H. THOMASON	AWAII (P)1213.5 ND GENERAL SERVICES 9, HAWAII 96810	2005				paration Notice (EISPN) bers: 2-8-13:01, 2-8-14:01-04, 19, 37 and	s prior to the subject project's EISPN. This Accounting and General Services' projects tents to offer at this time.	ennett of the Planning Branch at 586-0491.	Jy,	ST Y. W. LAU Works Administrator	ission	
INGLE	STATE OF HI DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTING AN P.O. BOX 119, HONOLULU	- AUL 27 1	Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Rishon Street Suite 650	Honolulu, Hawaii 96813	Dear Ms. Yuen:	Subject: Environmental Impact Statement Prej Village at Poipu, Kauai, TMK Numb Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments project does not directly impact any Department of or existing facilities. Therefore, we have no comme	If you have any questions, please call Mr. Bruce Be	Sincere	ERNES	BB:jp c: Mr. Anthony Ching, State Land Use Commi Ms. Genevieve Salmonson, OEQC Ms. Stacey Wong, Eric A. Knudsen Trust	

LINDA LINGLE GOVERNOR

PBR Hawaii July 29, 2005 Page 2	Other references which you may find useful include the Field Guide for Energy Performane, Comfort, and Value in Hauvaii Homes at <u>http://www.hawaii.gov/dbedt/ert.fieldguilde/fieldguide.html</u> and the sustainability guidelines at <u>http://www.hawaii.gov/dbedt/ert/rebuild/pdfs/momisustainable.pdf</u> . If you need claififeation of any of the above. please do not hesitate to contact me.	Singerely,	Chief Technology Officer	c: Eric A. Knudsen Trust OEQC State Land Use Commission										
Image: Section Secting Sectind Section Section Section Section Section Section Sectio	Weblisher. www.hawaiu.gov/obed/eff	July 29, 2005	PBR Hawaii ASB Tower, Suite 650 1001 Bishop Street U2024-1-1 Encoded 16691	rionoluu, riawan 20013 Attn: Kimi Yuen Dear Ms. Yuen:	 Re: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN) Village at Poipu, Kauai Tax Map Key: 2-8-13:01, 2-8-14:01, 2-8-14:02, 2-8-14:03, 2-8-14:04, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:37 and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) 	In response to your July 23, 2005, notice, thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the EISPN for the Village at Poipu, Kauai. We note that this is a 203.3 acre proposed residential development with an estimated 216-369 single family units and 134 multi- family units. We also note that you included a discussion of selected sustainable site and building design techniques from the <i>Guidelines for Sustainable Building Design in Hawa'i: A Planner's Checklist</i> in your document.	The mandate for consideration of energy efficiency is found in Chapter 344, HRS ("State Environmental Policy") and for efficient energy resource use in Chapter 226 ("Havaii State Planning Act"). In particular, we would like to call your attention to HRS 226 18(c) (4) which includes a State objective of promoting all cost-effective energy conservation through adoption of energy-efficient practices and technologies. You indicated that you will be addressing sections of the Havaii State Plan and discussing how the project conforms to the State Plan in your DEIS. We look forward to receipt of your DEIS and the discussion of how your project incorporates energy efficiency technologies and practices. In this regard, we would like to refer you to the County of Kauai's Building Energy Code which is available from the Kauai Building Division at 808-241- 6650.							
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS, THE TWO FILM MARKANDESCONDINCE DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM PROFESSION OF THE PROFESC	OFFICE OF PLANNING 235 South Beretaria Street, 6th Floor, Honolulu, Haw aii 96813 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, Hawaii 96804	Ref. No. P-11054 August 9, 2005	Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawii	1001 Bisnop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813	Dear MS. Yuen: Subject: Village at Poipu	Eric A. Knudsen Trust Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN) (State Land Use Commission Docket No. A05-761)	We have received the subject EISPN and offer the following comments.	It is our understanding that the Eric A. Knudsen Trust (Applicant) is proposing to develop a master planned single-family and multi-family residential community consisting of approximately 216 to 369 single-family (SF) and 134 multi-family (MF) residential units. At maximum buildout, assuming 350 dwelling units (216 SF and 134 MF units), the defacto population is estimated to be 1,145 persons, comprised of 695 full-time residents and 550 second		The EISPN states that the median home sales price on Kauai was \$665,000 in May 2005. According to the preliminary draft of the Applicant's market study, the Poipu-Koloa housing market is currently in a moderately to strongly undersupplied condition and that 2,544 to 5,517	additional housing units are needed by 2025. The market study should estimate the proposed selling prices for the residential units and should explain how the affordable housing requirements of the County of Kauai will be met.	The Kauai Department of Water (DOW) has stated that the proposed 350 to 503 units estimated for the subject project would generate an average demand of about 175,000 to 251,500	gallons per day (based on per average demand for 500 gallons per unit per day). The DOW further states that the Koloa-Poipu Water System does not have sufficient capacity to serve the	
--	--	---	--	---	--	---	--	--	---	---	--	--	---	--
January 27, 2006 Mr. Maurice H. Kava, Chief Technology Officer	Strategic Industries Division Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism State of Hawai'i	235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building, 5 th Floor Honolulu, Hawai'i 96804	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kauaʻi TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Mr. Kaya: Thank you for your letter dated July 29, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū	Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	We understand that the mandate for consideration of energy efficiency is found in Chapter 344, HRS (State Environmental Policy) and for efficient energy resource use is in Chapter 226 (Hawaii State Planning Act). The discussion of the Hawai'i State Plan is provided in Section 5.1.4 of the Draft EIS.		Also, thank you for your recommendations regarding HRS 226 18(c) (4), the County of Kaua't's Building Energy Code, the <i>Field Guide for Energy Performance, Comfort, and Value in Havaii Homes,</i> and the sustainability guidelines on the DBEDT website. We will forward this information to our client who is considering energy efficient designs for the project.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.	Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	All have been a second and the second s	Associate	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\DBEDT SID.doc

PBR

LAND PLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES

WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA Chairman

THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT

R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA Executive Vice-President

RUSSELL YJ. CHUNG, ASLA Executive Vice-President

JAMES LEONARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE VINCENT SHIGEKUNI PRINCIPAL

GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP SENIOR ASSOCIATE

TOM SCINELL, AICP ASSOCIATE

RAYMOND T. HIGA, ASLA ASOCATE KEVIS NISHKAWA, ASLA ASOCATE ASOCATE

Havoutua Orstes 1001 Bases strate ASB Towas, Nitra 659 Harenaau, Mawari 9681-3445 Fra: 6805 523-1461 Kore (2005 523-1461 Abat: syndiame@perioreati.com

Into Orrect 101 Aurou Synter 101 Aurou Synter Hao I Auson Synter Hao I Auson Synter Parage 1933 Fara (1983) 501 4985 Fara (1983) 501 4985 Fara (1983) 501 4985 Fara (1983) 501 4985

WALKE ODDCA 2123 Konty STREET WARDER, HOMPT 9793-2204 TRE (500) 242-2502 FAULT (500) 242-2502 E-Mut. Johnnal@hov.net

	PBR	January 26, 2006
ant should provide more information on the availability f the aquifer.	LAND PLANDHO LANDSAPP ARCHTECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES	Ms. Laura H. Thielen, Director Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism Office of Planning
ered Kauai Cave Wolf Spider and Kauai Cave	WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA <i>Chairman</i>	r.O. box 2359 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96804
delineating the full extent of the Lava tubes.	THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA President	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice
ises should also include the proposed Kukuula and the types and selling prices of the residential units in	R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT	Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)
uqu.	RUSSELL Y.J. CHUNG, ASLA Executive Vice-President	Dear Ms. Thielen:
o provide triese continents. Shourd you have any ision at 587-2842.	VINCENT SHIGEKUNE PRINCIPAL	Thank you for your letter (Ref. No. P-11054) dated Anonet 9 2005 recerding the
Sincerely,	JAMES LEONARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE	Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments. Excerpts from your letter which hear resonance are indicated
Alima 1000	GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP SENIOR ASSOCIATE	below:
Laura H. Thielen Director	TOM SCHWELL, AICP Associate	The market study should estimate the proposed selling prices for the residential units and should evulate how the advertable bounded and should evulate the second structure of the second structure of
	RAPMOND T. HICA, ASLA Associate	be met.
	KEVIN NSHRAWA, ASLA Asociate Asociate	Response: The market study prepared for the Village at Po'ipū includes estimated selling prices for the residential units and is summarized in Section
		to the EIS. One of the market study is included in its entirety as an appendix to the EIS. One of the major reasons for the dramatic increases in recent median home sales mrices in K_{anad} ; is the lock of constants and k_{anad} .
	However Ornes	housing supply. The Village at Polipi seeks to increase housing supply in an annound supply in an
	1.021 BISHOP STREET ASB TOWER SUTE 650 HUMBLID, HAWAT 96313 3484 TO PROVE 71 6431	depending the Knucken Trust is also working with the Country of Kaua'i University Action of Kaua'i University Action of Kaua'i
	Exercise 233-1402 Exercise 233-1402 E.Marr: systemin@phybawaii.com	will include this information in the EIS if the agreements for the project and will include this information in the EIS if the agreements can be reached before
	Hiro Orres	comprenon or the rinal Eds. Please note that the Knudsen Trust fulfilled its affordable housing requirements as part of the original 1977 State Land Use
	101 AUTON STREET Hint LACON CONTRA SUTT 310 HING HAWN 90239-4262 The 0009 404 1333 The 0009 404 1303	Boundary Amendment granted by the LUC (Docket No. A76-418, confirmed by the LUC on October 16, 1995). This area includes Phases 1 and 2 of the proposed Village at Povini project located model of the million of the mi
	FAX: (2015) 501-9289 E-MAR: prifillo@lava.net	The provide the provent of the railing of the raili
	WALTAN OPPER WALTAN OPPER 2325 KARR STRANG WALLAN (1969) 2214 That (1968) 242 555	the applicant should provide more information on the availability of water such as the sustainable yield of the aquifer.
	PAN. (868) JAJ 2302 E-Mair, phynami@lawa.net	

Ms. Yuen Page 2 August 9, 2005

project's proposed demand. The applica of water such as the sustainable yield of

The critical habitat of the endang Amphipod should be protected by first (

The discussion of surrounding u development to the west of Poipu Road comparison to the subject Village at Poi

Thank you for the opportunity to questions, please call the Land Use Divi

Page 2 Ms. Laura H. Thielen January 26, 2006 Response: Section 4.8.1 of the Draft EIS provides more information on the water systems proposed for the project and the availability of the water. A preliminary engineering report was prepared in November 2005 and includes a water system master plan for the project. The preliminary engineering report is included in the EIS as an appendix. It states: "The Village at Po'ipū is located within the County Department of Water's Köloa-Po'ipū Water System. The service area of this system consists of a concentration of resorts along the Po'ipū coastline and residential communities clustered near the coast and around Köloa town. The Köloa Po'ipū Water System is divided into a 366-foot pressure zone and a 245foot pressure zone and is currently supplied by five wells with a total capacity of about 3,560 gpm. Total available storage for the water system is 4.25 million gallons." In addition, a separate non-potable water system will be developed for irrigating the landscaping in common areas such as the parks and archaeological preserves, the multi-family residential and the larger single family residential lots. This non-potable system will be supplied by a private system, sourced from two onsite wells and Grove Farm's Waita Reservoir. Further discussion of the water system and the complete preliminary engineering report are included in the EIS. The critical habitat of the endangered Kauai Cave Wolf Spider and Kauai Cave Amphipod should be protected by first delineating the full extent of the Lava tubes.

Response: The archaeological inventory survey prepared for the project site in 1991 delineated the full extent of the lava tubes and this is shown in Figures 3 and 16 of the Draft EIS. The critical habitat unit areas as shown in Figure 15 were established by the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). Fifty-foot buffers will be provided around the delineated lava tubes as shown in the conceptual master plan for the project and will be protected as archaeological preserves in which no buildings will be constructed. In addition, native plants will be planted within these areas to improve potential habitat conditions for the two endangered species.

The discussion of surrounding uses should also include the proposed Kukuiula development to the west of Poipu Road and the types and selling prices of the residential units in comparison to the subject Village at Poipu. Response: The Draft EIS will include Kukuiula in its discussion of surrounding uses. While selling prices of the residential units at Kukuiula are not known at this time, Kukuiula is a luxury development while much of the Village at Po'ipü is expected to target the moderate and high market priced housing segment. As noted above, the Knudsen Trust is currently working with the County of Kaua'i

Page 3 Ms. Laura H. Thielen January 26, 2006 Housing Agency to meet its remaining affordable housing requirement for the project.

Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.

Sincerely,

PBR HAWAII

Kimi Yuen Associate

Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust

ÿ

O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\OP.doc

LINDA LINGLE GOVERNOR



PATRICIA HAMAMOTO SUPERINTENDENT

9

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION P.O. BOX 2360

HONOLULU, HAWAI'I 96804

OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

August 23, 2005

Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Dear Ms. Yuen:

Subject: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice for Village at Po'ipu Koloa, Kauai TMK: 2-8-13: 01, 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37 and Lot 19-B The Department of Education (DOE) has reviewed the Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN) for Village at Po'ipu in Koloa, Kauai. The DOE's only comment is that with an estimate of 369 single-family units and 134 multifamily units, we estimate that there would be roughly 158 students eventually residing in the project. Currently, there is sufficient facility capacity for some increase in students at Koloa Elementary, Kamakahelei Middle, and Kauai High schools. However, we are not certain about the impact of other residential developments on the schools. Koloa Elementary's enrollment has declined during the past few years but enrollment projections estimate its enrollment to begin growing in the next year or two. The DOE will ask the State Land Use Commission to impose a school fair-share contribution on the project to help offset the costs the DOE will incur to provide school land and facilities to the residents of the Village at Po'ipu.

Although some of the initial homeowners within the project will be part-time residents, there are indications that part-time residents enroll their children in public schools during their residency. The DOE has only one opportunity to request this school condition when agricultural land is reclassified to urban uses. The Villages of Po`ipu are expected to house residents and their students for several generations.

AN AFFIRMATIVE ACTION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

Ms. Kimi Yuen Page 2 August 23, 2005 There is no certainty that the residents will be part-time residents or full-time residents, but it is certain that if they have children, the DOE must plan to provide them with a public education.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the EISPN. If you have any questions, please call Rae Loui, Assistant Superintendent of the Office of Business Services, at 586-3444 or Heidi Meeker of the Facilities Development Branch at 733-4862.

Very truly yours,

Fatricial

Patricia Hamamoto Superintendent

PH:hy

cc: Rae Loui, Asst. Supt., OBS Daniel Hamada, CAS, Kapaa/Kauai/Waimea Complex Area Anthony Ching, SLUC Genevieve Salmonson, OEQC

AUG U 2 2005 AUG U 2 2005 I GAT I DATE AND MICHAR MANUAL MANUAL INFORMATION I GAT I DATE AND MICHAR MANUAL	STATE OF HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF RELAMANE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS P.0. BOX 1879 PONDLULU, HAWAII 96805 HONDLULU, HAWAII 96805	July 28, 2005	en	Street Suite 650 awaii 96813	en:	you for the opportunity to review the Environmental ement Preparation Notice report for the Village at ct on Kauai. The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands ents to offer.	you have any guestions, please call the Planning 808) 586-3836.	Aloha and mahalo,	Banere Jayar	Micah A. Kane, Chairman Hawaiian Homes Commission	>		
LINDA LINGLE COVENSOR STATE OF INAMA			Ms. Kimi Yu PBR Hawaii	1001 Bishop ASB Tower, Honolulu, H	Dear Ms. Yu	Thank Impact Stat Poipu proje has no comm	Should Office at (
January 26, 2006	Ms. Patricia Hamamoto, Superintendent State of Hawai'i Department of Education P.O. Box 2360 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96804	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Poʻipū, Kauaʻi TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Ms. Hamamoto:	Thank you for your letter dated August 23, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	The Hallstrom Group has conducted a market study for the Villages at Po'inū	project, which includes a social impact assessment of population, affordable housing, public services, and other important socio-economic factors, such as public schools. This analysis takes into account the cumulative impacts of other known planned and proposed residential developments in the area. The full market study report will be included as an appendix in the EIS.	We recognize that the Department of Education will ask the State Land Use Commission to impose a school fair-share contribution on the Village at Poripū	project. Our client will fully comply with the Commission's determination.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.	Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	Associate	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacev Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	C:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\DOE.doc
PBR	LAND FLANNING LAND FLANNING ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES	THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT RESIDENT ASLA R. STAN DUVCAN ASLA	EXECUTIVE VICE-FRESIDENT RUSSELL YJ, CHUNG, ASLA Eventener Vice Demontre	LARCOURT FULL-FRANKER VINCERT SHIGERUN PRINCIPAL JAMES LEONARD, AICP	nuo OFPICE	GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP SENOR ASCOLARS TAM SCHWEL, AICP ASCOLAR R. CANON J. HIGA, ASLA ASCOLARS	KRVIN NISHIKAWA, ASLA ASOCATE ASOCATE			HOMMALIU OPTICE 1010 Bissiere STREET ASD TOWNS, STITTE 600 ASD TOWNS, STITTE 600 HOMMALIN, HAMMAT 90013, 3484 The - (908) 521-3631	Park (2003) 323-3402 Mult: sysadhuni @phrhawari.com Illitot Obriton Illitot Obriton Inter Of Annyo Sysadir	Have, Hawes 9670-4362 Thu, 6008-961-4363 Fux, 1005-961-4360 6.Mar. poministration	WALLING OFFICA 2125 KAORE STREFT MALES HAMOL 19679-2304 The 6603 342 358 FAX 6603 342 3002 EAMAL PROFINE FAX 940

Page I of I	From: sysadmin Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2005 8:44 AM To: Kini Yuen	Subject: FW: Attn: Ms. Kimi Yuen, Re: EISPN for Village at Polipu	From: Jiacai Liu [mailto:JLiu@eha.health.state.hi.us] Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2005 4:38 PM To: sysadmin Subiset: Athr: Ms. Kimi Yusn. Re: FISDN for Villane at Dolinu.	Dear Ms. Yuen, Thank you for allowing us to review the subject project. We offer Standard Comments at: http://www.state.hi.us/health/environmental/env-planning/landuse/landuse.html or clicking (Standard Comments). We are looking forward to seeing the DEIS and please send the document to our office at:	Environmental Planning Office Department of Health 919 Ala Moana Blvd., Room 312 Honolulu, Hawaii 96814 Thank you.	Jiacai Liu Land Use Review Coordinator Environmental Planning Office /DOH (808) 586-4346			
	January 27, 2006	Mr. Micah A. Kane, Chairman Hawaiian Homes Commission Department of Hawaiian Homelands	P.O. Box 1879 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96805	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Mr. Kane: Thank you for your letter dated July 28, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we acknowledge that you have no comments to offer at this time.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS. Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	All My Hits Kimi Yuen Associate	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\DHHL.doc
		LAND PLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE BIVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WM. FRANKT BRANDT, FASLA	CHARMAN THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA President	R. STAN DURCAN, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT RUSSELL YJ. CHUNG, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT VINCENT SINGERUNI VINCENT SINGERUNI	Javies Leonaux, AICP Proceeding frito OFFICE Graver Mureacaura Ton Scientics Ton Scientics	RAWKOND T. HIDA, ASI, A Asoczarf KRVIS NIBIRZAWA, ASI, A Asoczarł Asoczarł	Howara, Osnos 1001 Baues Svar NB Theory Solar Acto Howara, Howy Solar Acto	The (a) SELESS1 FOC (a) SELESS1 A(A), Synamming portawari com Hino Orners (a) Angeles Stream (b) Angeles S	WALLAN OPTICE TILLS KANE STREET MALLEN HANDER 1993, 2204 TILL (1983) 242, 2902 FAX: (1983) 242, 2902 FAX: (1983) 242, 2902

Page 1 of 1

8/18/2005

of Concern
/ Area
s
nment
E
ŭ
rd
la.
ğ
12
- CO
್ಷ
E
0
þ
ij
ī
2
-
ta]
E.
Ĕ
Ē
20
- i -
- 🗄
_

Updated 9/15/05

The Environmental Planning Office (EPO) is responsible for several surface water quality management programs mandated by the federal Clean Water Act or dictated by State policy. (http://www.state.hi.us/doh/eh/epo/wqm/wqm.htm). Among these responsibilities, EPO:

- maintains the List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii Prepared under Clean Water Act §303(d) (http://www.state.hii.us/doh/eh/epo/wqm/303dpcfinal.pdf);
- develops and establishes Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) for listed waters (suggesting how much existing pollutant loads should be reduced in order to attain water
 - quality standards, please see http://www.epa.gov/owow/tmdl/intro.html);
 writes TMDL Implementation Plans describing how suggested pollutant load reductions can be achieved; and
- conducts assessments of stream habitat quality and biological integrity.

Standard Comments / Areas of Concern

To facilitate TMDL development and implementation, and to assist with our assessment of the potential impact of proposed actions upon water quality, pollutant loading, and biological resources in receiving waters, we suggest that environmental review documents, permit applications, and related submittals include the following standard information and analyses:

Waterbody type and class

 Identify the waterbody type and class, as defined in Hawaii Administrative Rules Chapter 11-54 (http://www.state.hi.us/health/about/rules/11-54.pdf), of all potentially affected water bodies¹.

Existing water quality management actions

- 2. Identify any existing National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits and related connection permits (issued by permittees) that will govern the management of water that runs off or is discharged from the proposed project site or facility. Please include NPDES and other permit numbers; names of permittees, permitted facilities, and receiving waters (including waterbody type and class as in 1. above); diagrams showing drainage/discharge pathways and outfall locations; and note any permit conditions that may specifically apply to the proposed project.
- Identify any planning documents, groups, and projects that include specific prescriptions for water quality management at the proposed project site and in the potentially affected waterbodies. Please note those prescriptions that may specifically apply to the proposed project.

Pending water quality management actions

- Identify all potentially affected water bodies that appear on the current *List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii Prepared under Clean Water Act §303(a)* including the listed waterbody, geographic scope of listing, and pollutant(s) (See Table 5 at http://www.hawaii.gov/health/environmental/env-planning/wqm/303dpcfinal.pdf).
- If the proposed project involves potentially affected water bodies that appear on the current *List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii Prepared under Clean Water Act §303(d)*, identify and quantify expected changes in the following site and watershed conditions and characteristics:
- surface permeability
- hydrologic response of surface (timing, magnitude, and pathways)
- receiving water hydrology
- runoff and discharge constituents
- pollutant concentrations and loads in receiving waters
 - aquatic habitat quality and the integrity of aquatic biota

Where TMDLs are already established they include pollutant load allocations for the surrounding lands and point source discharges. In these cases, we suggest that the submittal specify how the proposed project would contribute to achieving the applicable load reductions.

Where TMDLs are yet to be established and implemented, a first step in achieving TMDL objectives is to prevent any project-related increases in pollutant loads. This is generally accomplished through the proper application of suitable best management practices in all phases of the project and adherence to any applicable ordinances, standards, and permit conditions. In these cases we suggest that the submittal specify how the proposed project would contribute to reducing the polluted discharge and runoff entering the receiving waters, including plans for additional pollutant load reduction practices in future management of the surrounding lands and drainage/discharge systems.

Proposed Action and Alternatives Considered

We suggest that each submittal identify and analyze potential project impacts at a watershed scale by considering the potential contribution of the proposed project to cumulative, multiproject watershed effects on hydrology, water quality, and aquatic and riparian ecosystems. We also suggest that each submittal broadly evaluate project alternatives by identifying more than one engineering solution for proposed projects. In particular, we suggest the consideration of "alternative," "soft," and "green" engineering solutions for channel modifications that would provide a more environmentally friendly and aesthetically pleasing channel environment and minimize the destruction of natural landscapes. If you have any questions about these comments or EPO programs, please contact Jiacai Liu at 586-4346.

January 26, 2006	Mr. Jiacai Liu State of Hawai'i Department of Health Environmental Planning Office 919 Ala Moana Boulevard, Room 312 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96814	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ípū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Mr. Liu:	Thank you for your e-mail dated August 18, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	1. Waterbody type and class: The proposed project does not contain any wetlands, streams or known waterbodies onsite. The project site is over 1,000 feet upslope of the Pacific Ocean and runoff from the project site may affect marine waters.	2. National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES): A NPDES permit is required for this project. The need for this permit is stated in Section 5.3 (Approvals and Permits) of the Draft EIS. The preliminary engineering report includes a drainage master plan and is attached as an appendix to the EIS.	3. Water quality management: The drainage master plan for the project is described in the preliminary engineering report and is attached as an appendix to the EIS. The proposed drainage system includes detention basins and bioswales to help mitigate and filter runoff generated onsite. The drainage system is summarized in Section 4.8.3 of the Draft EIS.	 Impaired Waters of Hawai': No water bodies on the current 2004 List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii Prepared under Clean Water Act §303 (d) are expected to be impacted by the proposed project. 	5. See Response to Item 4 above.	
PBR	LAND PLANSING LAND PLANSING ENVIRONMERTIAL STUDIES ENVIRONMERTIAL STUDIES WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA CHMBMA THOMAS S, WITTEN, ASLA	PRESIDENT R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA Exectitive Vice-President Russell YJ. Chung, ASLA Exectitive Vice-Presidentia Vineder Generation	JAMES LEONARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE	GRAFT MURAAAAAI, AICP SENIOR ASSOCUTS TON SCHWALL, AICP ASSOCUTS RAYMOND T, HIGA, ASI A ASSOCUTS	Ketors Name, ASLA Associate	Howara Orycz (101 Basers Starte AB Towara, Starte St Howara, Howara, Starte St Tar, 1688, 523-1407 Dave (808) 523-1407 Dave (808) 523-1407 Dave (808) 523-1407	Huo Onors Huo Charsos Statist Alto Laracos Cherna Strem 10 Huo Laracos Cherna Strem 10 Huo Laracos Cherna Statis Fiza: (1888) obj. 3 333 Fiza: (1888) obj. 3 333 Fiza: (1888) obj. 3 333 Fiza: (1888) obj. 3 333 Fiza: (1888) obj. 3 333	Warraci Owwe, 2123 Koon Sweet Warraci, Hoose, 9699-2304 Tax, 1000 30-2305 P.M.u.; promitélitos.and E.M.u.; promitélitos.and	
"Potentially affected waterbodies" means those in which proposed project activity would take place and any others that could receive water discharged by the proposed project activity or	water flowing down from the proposed project site. I hese waterboates can be presented as a chain of receiving waters whose top link is at the project site upslope and whose bottom link is in Pacific Ocean "oceanic waters," with all receiving waters named according to conventions established by Chapter 11-54 and the <i>List of Impaired Waters in Hawaii Prepared under Clean Water Act §303(d)</i> . For example, a recent project proposed for Nuhelewai Stream, Oahu (a tributary of Kapalama Canal) might potentially affect Nuhelewai Stream, Kapalama Canal, Honolulu Harbor and Shore Areas, and the Pacific Ocean.								

LINDA LINGLE DOTATIONAL CONTRACTOR CONTRACTO	TATE OF LAW II CONTRACT OF LAW I	August 29, 2005	Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813	And	Ms. Stacey Wong Eric A. Knudsen Trust P.O. Box 759 Kalaheo, Hawaii 96741	Dear Ms. Yuen and Mr. Wong:	SUBJECT: Chapter 6E-42 – Historic Preservation Review - EIS Preparation Notice Villages at Po ^r piu Koloa Ahupuaa, Koloa District, Kauai Island TMK: 2-8-13: 01; 2-8-14: 02, 03; 2-8-14: 04, 19, 37 & lot 19- <u>B (Hapa Road)</u>	Thank you for submitting this EIS Preparation Notice for your project at the Villages at Po'lpu, which we received on July 25, 2005. Section 5.1 of this Notice, discusses the cultural and archaeological concerns. Discussions have taken place with our staff on this project since 2002.	In 1990, Cultural Surveys Hawaii, surveyed most of the project area under the proposed Poipulani Development. Sites were agreed upon for preservation and the Knudsen Trust has continued to agree to preserve this sites. Archaeological work has been on going in Phase I of the Villages at Po'ipu. We believe that only the interim and long term preservation measures needed to be implemented and completed for this Phase of the project.	Additional survey work, data recovery and preservation plans are needed for the rest of the project area for the Villages at Po'ipu. Sites including the historic Hapa Road wall are not clearly presented as a site to be preserved in this preservation map (page 41). In addition, our office was questioned back in 1990 by the Kauai Planning Commission and the community for not preserving more sites. This led to a field trip with the Planning Commissioners and our staff archaeologist for Kauai sometime back in 1990-91. Their consensus was to also preserve Site 50-30-10-942, which is near Hapa Road wall and is a land commission award. After this the applicant then, Lorin Baxter withdrew his application and the project never moved forward.
	on that we identify and analyze potential project ection 4.8.3 of the Draft EIS and the preliminary proposed drainage systems which will include hat are consistent with your recommendation to n engineering solutions to mitigate runoff and project's potential impact on aquatic riparian	PN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.			Land Use Commission	Curce Caudsen Trust	tings\Sara Slovin\My Documents\PBR\Poipu\Letters\DOH EPO.doc			

Page 2 of 2 Mr. Jiacai Liu January 26, 2006

-

We acknowledge your suggestion impacts at a watershed scale. Sect engineering report describe the pr detention basins and bioswales tha implement alternative and green (improve water quality and the p ecosystems.

Thank you for reviewing the EISI

Sincerely, PBR HAWAII

Ally

kimi Yueh Associate

Mr. Anthony Ching/State Læ Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/C Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Kn ប្ល

C:\Documents and Set

January 27, 2006	Ms. Melanie Chinen, Administrator State Historic Preservation Division Department of Land and Natural Resources State of Hawai'i State of Hawai'i State of Hawai'i	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Ms. Chinen: Thank you for your letter dated August 29, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (FISPN). As the convertent	for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	We appreciate your summary of SHPD's understanding of the status of the Phase I portion of the Village at Po'pū project. The Trust will continue to work with your office on implementing the interim and long-term preservation measures for this phase of the project. The data recovery, data recovery plans, and interim protection plan for Phase I are summarized in Section 4.1 of the Draft EIS and attached as appendices to the EIS.	Since the EISPN, all remaining areas of the Village at Po'ipū project site have undergone archaeological inventory surveys and all reports have been submitted to SHPD for review. All but one report has been approved by SHPD to date. We have included a summary of the findings in Section 4.1 of the Draft EIS and attached the full reports and copies of the SHPD approval letters as appendices to the EIS.	Hapa Road will be improved as a pedestrian and bicycle path as mandated by the County of Kaua'i. The historic rock walls will be preserved in place where they are in good condition and restored where they have collapsed or have been damaged by stone robbing. Section 4.1 of the Draft EIS provides an expanded analysis of Hapa Road and its historic rock walls and has been added to Figure 16 which has been enlarged for improved legibility.	We acknowledge your suggestion that the applicant and archaeologist work with the Kaua'i Historic Preservation Review Commission to identify additional sites that may be preserved and will forward this information to our client.
PBR	LAND FLANKING LANDSCAFE ARCHITETTRE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDEE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDEE WAR FRANK BRANDT, FASS CHABADY	THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASL PRESDENT R. STAN DURCAN, ASL EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESDER RUSSEL YJ. CHURG, ASD EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESDER	VINCENT SHIGEKUNI PRINCIPAL JAMES LEONARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE	GRANT MURAKAMI, AICI Senior Associate	Ton Schratt, ACP Associate Rivinoiro T. Hida, ASL, Associate Krow Nishikaw, ASL, Associate	Roodata Orrect (00) Based Strans (00) Based Strans ABS Prens, Strans 64 Hostora, Hassar 96(1), 34 Par, (60) 523, 640 Crass, 660 523, 640 EMM, Systemergebulsen	Hiro OPERC 01 A0004 System Hiro Lawor Coren Syme Bian Lawor (1983) 403 700, 4889 401, 3333 Fax: 6889 401, 3439 E-Mill, philoiffaa and	WALLING OFFICE 2123 KANK STREF WALLED AND A 202 THE (803 242 202 E.MAL PHARMEDIA 248 E.MAL PHARMEDIA 248
Kini Vuan	Stacey Wong Page 2	The applicant and his consulting archaeologist have been informed that they should work with the Kauai Historic Preservation Review Commission (KHPRC) to identify additional sites that may be preserved. To date we do not believe that this has taken place. If you have any questions, please call Nancy McMahon at 808.742.7033.	Sincerely,	NM:jen	c: Ian Costa, Planning Department Kauai Historic Preservation Resource Commission Kauai Island Burial Council Anthony Ching, State Land Use Commission OEQC			

MELANIE A. CHINEN, State Historic Preserva Sincerely,

Page 2			
Ms. Melanie A. Chinen January 27, 2006	PHONE (808) 594-1838	FAX (808) 594-1865	10
Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.	STATE OF HAN	WALT WAST	
Sincerely,		RD, SUITE 500	
PBR HAWAII			
All Marth		HRD05/1965	
Associate	August 15, 2005		
cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	Kimi Yuen Associate PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813		
O: \Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\SHPD.doc	RE: Request for consultation on an Environmental for the proposed Village at Po'ipū, Köloa, Kaua'i	l Impact Statement Preparation Notice	
	Dear Kimi Yuen,		
	The Office of Hawaiian Affairs (OHA) is in receipt of on the above-referenced proposal, which would allow community within approximately 203 acres of land in of 127.4 acres from Agricultural to Urban. OHA offer	'your July 23, 2005, request for comments for the development of a residential south Kaua'i, requiring the reclassification ts the following preliminary comments.	
	Cultural Resources		
	We note that you have appropriately consulted with ou Coordinator, La France Kapaka-Arboleda, and with the They could better inform you of who else should be cc historical sites, events, practices and groups which sho respectively. Based on their recommendations, OHA i be on-site during all excavations and ground disturban	ur Kaua'i Community Resource te Kaua'i/Ni'ihau Island Burial Council. ontacted and of particular cultural and ould be considered and consulted, may request that an archaeological monitor nees for this project.	
	Despite the fact that extensive ground disturbance has and horse grazing, there are no assurances that cultural Therefore, OHA appreciates that, prior to construction with subsurface testing, will be conducted. Furthermo	already occurred in the area due to cattle il deposits do not exist in this large area. 1, an archaeological inventory-level survey, ore, should iwi kupuna or Native Hawaiian	

Almi Yuen Kimi Yuen Associate

August 15, 2005 Kimi Yuen Page 2 cultural or traditional deposits be found during ground disturbance or excavation, OHA requests that work will cease, and the appropriate agencies will be contacted pursuant to applicable law.

Because many known archaeological sites exist within this property, it is likely that more will be of natural and cultural resource preservation within the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions Thus, if this project goes forward, OHA suggests that efforts be made to incorporate the values found, and that the area is more of a cultural property than a property containing cultural sites. stewardship opportunities for the cultural properties, perhaps through an agreement with the for the proposed development. Also, cultural practitioners of the area should be provided Homeowners' Association. Further consultation also may show that view planes must be preserved between existing heiau and other cultural sites. This should be learned early so that proposed construction can be sure to avoid obstructing such view planes and sight lines.

Because this property has been described as one of the largest intact cultural sites in Hawai'i, OHA is gathering more information, particularly because there are a number of people in the information in the future, at least upon receipt of the Draft Environmental Impact Statement. community who have expressed concerns about this proposed project. We are collecting information from concerned beneficiaries at this time and would be happy to share that

Cultural and Traditional Access

purposes. OHA appreciates the planned access to cultural sites, with appropriate interpretive Equally, Native Hawaiians should be afforded reasonable access for cultural and traditional signage that details the history and the care requirements for the sites.

during and after construction activities. Recognized Native Hawaiian traditional gathering rights safety. If such safety-related restrictions are put in place, alternate public access routes must be and access should not be restricted - even during construction - except as necessary to ensure We note that consideration must be given to applicable cultural gathering and access rights provided.

Natural Resources

OHA commends the plans to non-potable or reclaimed water for irrigation, and further urges the project to use endemic and indigenous plants as much as possible in its landscaping efforts. The proposed use of native plantings whenever possible, instead of water-hungry introduced and exotic landscaping plants, will help to prevent the further expansion of alien species and to preserve and foster the return of native species to Hawai'i.

August 15, 2005 Kimi Yuen Page 3 We look forward to learning more about the existence and habitat of the endangered Kaua'i Cave buffer around the two lave tubes that are critical habitats for these endangered species, whether Wolf Spider and the Kaua'i Cave amphipod on site. OHA appreciates the planned 200-foot or not they are currently found in those tubes.

State Land Use District Boundary Amendment

income housing, or whether it only provides housing opportunities for people in the high-income When reviewing a petition to reclassify land, the State Land Use Commission shall specifically 205-17(3)(B)); and "Provision for housing opportunities for all income groups, particularly the tier? Kaua'i is facing a dire housing shortage for people of lower incomes, and OHA requests that their needs be adequately considered in this proposal. low, low-moderate, and gap groups" (HRS § 205-17(3)(F)). Has this project considered lowconsider, among other things, the impact of the proposed reclassification on six areas of State concern, including "Maintenance of valued cultural, historical, or natural resources" (HRS §

Thank you for the opportunity to comment, and we look forward to the opportunity to review the forthcoming Draft Environmental Impact Statement. If you have further questions or concerns, please contact Heidi Guth at 594-1962 or e-mail her at heidig@oha.org.

Sincerely, Clanu, Bm

Administrator

Community Resource Coordinator 3-3100 Kuhio Highway, Suite C4 La France Kapaka-Arboleda Lihue, HI 96766-1153 OHA - Kauai Office ÿ

Eric A. Knudsen Trust Kalāheo, HI 96741 Stacey Wong P.O. Box 759 Trustee

January 26, 2006	Mr. Clyde W. Nāmu'o State of Hawai'i Office of Hawaiian Affairs 711 Kapi'olani Boulevard, Suite 500 Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813	 RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) 	Dear Mr. Nāmu'o: Thank you for your letter dated August 15, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	Cultural Resources We appreciate your recommendations on who to contact with regards to important cultural resources. A cultural impact study was completed in August 2005 in support of this project and is included in the EIS.	We acknowledge your concern regarding cultural deposits on site and note that archaeological inventory surveys have been completed for the entire site. All but one of the survey reports have received approval from the State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD); the remaining report was completed in December 2005 and is currently being reviewed by SHPD. The inventory survey reports and the SHPD approval letters are included in the EIS. All sites recommended for preservation or possible preservation will be preserved and incorporated into the over 23 acres dedicated to archaeological preserves. These sites will remain accessible to the public and will be landscaped with native plants.	Furthermore, data recovery plans and data recovery studies as well as site protection plans will be completed for project and those that have been completed to date are also included in the EIS. As suggested, the EIS will include language that states, "Should iwi kupuna or	Native Hawaiian cultural or traditional deposits be found during ground disturbance or excavation, work will cease and the appropriate agencies will be contacted pursuant to applicable law."
PBR	LAND FLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHTEFTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WM. FRANCH, FASLA CHAIRAMN	THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT	NUSBELL 1. CHORV, AND AN INSBELL 1. CHORV, AND AN INSBELL 1. CHORV, AND	GRAFT MURAKAMI, AICP Sergen Associate TOM Scientia, AICP Associate Ramono T. Hiloa, ASI A Associate	Kryby Nismickada, ASLA Associats Associats Associats Associats Associats Associats Association Associa	HLO OFFICE III AND OFFICE IIII AND OFFICE HLD LARGEN STRIFT MI HLD LARGEN STRIFT MI The (2009 Sci 4303 The (2009 Sci 430	WALTAN OPTOR 2124 KAND SPIRO 2124 KAND SPIRO 2022 SPIRO
i Yuen ust 15, 2005	4 Anthony Ching Executive Director State Land Use Commission	P.O. Box 2359 Honolulu, HI 96804 Office of Environmental Quality Control	State Department of Heatin 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 702 Honolulu, HI 96813				

Kimi Yuen August 15, 2005 Page 4

Page 2 Mr. Clyde W. Nāmu'o January 26, 2006 We acknowledge and will forward to the client your suggestion to incorporate the values of natural and cultural resource preservation within the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) for the proposed development, and that appropriate cultural practitioners are provided opportunities for stewardship of the cultural properties.

We would appreciate any further information and recommendations you may have based on your ongoing efforts in the community. We will submit a copy of the Draft EIS to you for your review and comment. We would appreciate any information you can share with us regarding community concerns, so that we can address them directly.

Cultural and Traditional Access

We appreciate your positive comments on the planned access to cultural sites with appropriate interpretive signage that details the history and the care requirements for the site. We also acknowledge your concern regarding Native Hawaiian traditional gathering rights and access during and after construction. Alternate public access routes will be provided if safety-related restrictions to access are put in place during construction.

Natural Resources

We appreciate your positive comments regarding the use of non-potable or reclaimed water for irrigation and the use of endemic and indigenous plants. As noted in the EIS, the design guidelines and landscape master plan will encourage and implement as much as possible the use of native plants in the landscaping of the project. In particular, native plants will be planted within the archaeological preserves.

We also appreciate your comments regarding the critical habitats for the Kaua'i Cave Wolf Spider and Kaua'i Cave amphipod.

State Land Use District Boundary Amendment

We recognize OHA's concerns about Kaua't's housing shortage for people of lower incomes. The Village at Po'ipū will include a variety of housing options and opportunities, including single- and multi-family units. The Knudsen Trust is currently working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to meet affordable housing requirements for the project.

Page 3 Mr. Clyde W. Nāmu'o January 26, 2006 Mahalo for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.

Sincerely, PBR HAWAII

Kimi Yuef Associate

cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\OHA.doc

DBR January 26, 2006	H A W ATT Mr. James Pennaz, P.E., Chief Civil Works Technical Branch	LANDEAR AND ALLIN, C.E.Y.O.HE.CI LANDEAR ANTIECTURE Department of the Army ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES Department of the Army U.S. Army Engineer District, Honolulu Building 73	WM. FRANK FASLA Fort Shafter, Hawai'i 96858-5440	Tholacs S. WITTEN, ASLA RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Com Pessner Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Con PRENDER Extension Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i R. Stand Diversion TMKs: 2-8-13:.01, and 2-8-14:.01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 1 Executive Vice-Presiden RUSSEL Y1. Churo.ASLA Dear Mr. Pennaz: Dear Mr. Pennaz:	VINCENT SINGERUNI PRINCENT Thank you for your letter dated August 12, 2005 regarding the Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). JAME PLANALINATION Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). Import Frict A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to y	a. We recognize your review of USGS topographic maps, <i>Serves</i> Ascours the Nuclear Alternow Ascours <i>Serves</i> Ascours of the project. We have corresponded with Ms. Con	RAYMOND T. HOL, ASI.A Chief, Regulatory Branch, dated September 30, 2005 th Associate RAYNOND T. HOL, ASI.A Chief, Regulatory Branch, dated September 30, 2005 th development will not involve any discharge of dred material into jurisdictional waters of the US and that no D Army (DA) permit would be required for this project.	b. We appreciate your confirming the flood hazard inf EISPN.	Howard Orner Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included	Ast Draw Same son Howacius Hawarys (88): 344 The (88): 521-345 E-MAL: Systamon Science	PBR HAWAII	Huo Chortes Huo Lacrose Cherrer Struct Huo Lacrose Cherrer Struct The (1860) 561 3333 Free (1860) 561 3333 Free (1860) 561 3333 Free (1860) 561 3433 Kimi Yuen Associate	CC: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Matrix frame Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Assistances Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	E.M.G. physician action assessed E.M.G. physician action O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response L
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY U.S. ARMY ENGINEER DISTRICT, HONOLULU U.S. ARMY ENGINEER DISTRICT, HONOLULU FORT SHATTER, HAWAII 96855-540	RELATIO ATTENTIONORI, CEPOH-EC-T	August 12, 2005	Civil Works Technical Branch	Mr. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813	Dear Mr. Yuen: Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the Environmental	Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN) for the Village at Poipu Project, Kauai (TMKs 2-8-13: 1; 2-8-14: 1-4, 19, and 37). The following comments are provided in accordance with Corps of Engineers authorities to provide flood hazard information and to issue Department of the Army (DA) permits.	a. The proposed project may involve work in and/or placement of dredged and/or fill material into waters of the U.S. under our regulatory jurisdiction. A review of the USGS topographic maps indicates a potential water of the U.S. labeled as "flume" within the northern portion of the project. Therefore, a DA permit may be required although additional information is required in order to make a final determination. For further	information, please contact Ms. Connie Ramsey of our Regulatory Branch at (808) 438- 2039.	b. The flood hazard information provided on page 32 of the EISPN is correct.	Should you have any questions, please call Ms. Jessie Dobinchick of my staff at 438-8876.	Sincerely,	James Pennaz, P.E.	Chilet, Civil Works Technical Branch Encls	

January 26, 2006	Mr. George Young, P.E., Chief Regulatory Branch	Department of the Army U.S. Army Engineer District, Honolulu Fort Shafter, Hawaiʻi 96858-5440	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Final Determination of Department of the Army (DA) Jurisdiction Letter File No. POH-2005-416 Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i	1MKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Mr. Young:	Thank you for your letter dated September 30, 2005 regarding the final determination of the DA jurisdiction for the proposed Village at Po'fpū project which was sent in response to the Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). We appreciate your assistance with the final determination which states that the Corps has determined that the proposed development will not involve any discharge of dredged and/or fill material into jurisdictional waters of the U.S.; therefore, a DA permit will not be required for this project.	Thank you for letter. It will be included in the EIS. Sincerely,	PBR HAWAII Kimi Yuen	Associate cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22/2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\Army Engineer.doc
PBR	IIVMVH	LAND FLAND F	WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA CHARRAN THOMAS S. WTTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA	Executivę Vice-President Russell Y.J. Chung, ASLA Executive Vice-Prevident	VINCERT SHORKUN PENCERL JAMIS LEONAUL, AICP PENCERL HLO OFFICE GRANT MUSACAUL SERVER ASSOCUTE TON SCHWALL AICP ASSOCUTE	RATMOND T. HIGA, ASLA Associate KBUIN NISHIKAWA, ASLA Associate	Horonaua Orerra 101 Roberta Orerra 101 Rober Aventer 201 Rober Aventer	International In	E-Mart philoBino nea Warawa Orrect 2123 Anai Warawa Martana (Hawar Pons) 2234 Pase (1983) 242-2935 Ross (1983) 242-2935 Ross (1983) 242-2934 Mart philmatellina ant
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY U. S. ARMY ENGINEER DISTRICT. HONOLULU FT. SHAFTER, HAWAII 98889-5440	۴ September 30, 2005	File No. POH-2005-416	50	mination of Department of the Army (DA) jurisdiction for the proposed oloa, Kauai, TMK: (4) 2-8-13:1 and 2-8-14:1-4, 19, and 37	2, 2005 the Corps provided a preliminary jurisdictional determination 404 of the Clean Water Act in response to an Environmental Impact on Notice (EISPN) for the above-referenced project. Based on the initial atory project manager, more information was needed regarding a feature ne" on the USGS topographic quadrangle of the project area. On August 23 rd , ctronic copy of a report dated August 18, 2005 by Cultural Surveys Hawaii,	I information on the current condition of the "elevated plantation-era flume" erm portion of the project area, southeast of the intersection of Weliweli and 2-8-14:01). tates that the flume was part of an irrigation/mill system constructed by	any while the area was under sugar cultivation, but has since been abandoned pair. Based on the additional information provided, the Corps has proposed development will not involve any discharge of dredged and/or fill ctional waters of the U.S.; therefore, a DA permit will <u>not</u> be required for this	further assistance, please contact Ms. Connie Ramsey by phone at 438-2039, 4060, or by e-mail at <u>Connie L. Ramsey@usace.army.mil</u> . Please refer to the ag this project. Thank you for your cooperation with our regulatory program. Sincerely,	George P. Young, P.E. Chief, Regulatory Branch
	REPLY TO ATTENTION O	Regulatory Branch	Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii ASB Tower, Suite 6 1001 Bishop Street Honolulu, HI 96815	Subject: Final deter Village at Poipu, Ko	Dear Ms. Yuen: On August 1 pursuant to Section Statement Preparatii review by my reguls identified as a "flur you provided an elei	Inc., which provide located in the north Hapa Roads (TMK: The report st	Koloa Sugar Comp and fallen into disre determined that the material into jurisdi project.	If you need by facsimile at 438. file number regardii	

Bryan J. Baptiste Mavor



Fire Department Mo'ikeha Building 4444 Rice Street, Suite 295 Lihu'e, Hawaii 96766

August 2, 2005

ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813 Project Consultant 1001 Bishop Street PBR Hawaii Kimi Yuen

RE: Village at Po'ipū

Dear Ms. Yuen:

The Kauai Fire Department has some concerns with the upcoming Village at Po'pū. The EISPN submitted to our office for review does not address the installation of the fire hydrant systems or road widths. It is essential for the infrastructure to be in place prior to the construction of the residential units.

under Potential Impacts and Mitigative Measures? Consideration must be given to the new subdivision. The lower-end estimates of 350 units and 1145 persons for the area The amount of impact on the Fire Department will vary with the demographics of the population will need service in both EMS and fire calls. What does significant mean will have a definite impact on the nearby fire station. The transient and resident safety of both our residents and visitors.

travel along the thoroughfares. Dead-ends and cul-de-sacs shall be designed to insure The increase of population in the area will also increase the amount of vehicles on the surrounding roads. The added congestion may or may not have an effect on the response times during emergency calls. Minimum road widths are essential for safe maneuverability of the fire apparatus within the subdivision.

Robert F. Westerman Fire Chief

August 2, 2005

Page 2

area. The amount of water required for fire protection in the subdivision will vary with the use of the property. The minimum spacing of the hydrants will also depend on the zoning and occupancy. The hydrant system shall comply with Water Department The hydrant system shall be designed to accommodate the variety of zoning in the Standards.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, contact the Fire Prevention Bureau at 808-241-6511.

Sincerely,

Prevention Captain Russell Yee

Approved:

Robert Westerman Fire Chief

An Equal Opportunity Employer



LAND PLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA Chairman

THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PRESIDENT

R. STAN DUNCAN, ASLA Executive Vice-President RUSSELL YJ. CHUNG, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT VINCENT SHIGEKUNI PRINCIPAL

FRINCIPAL JAMES LEONARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE

GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP Semior Associate Tom Scinell, AICP Associate Raymond T. Hica, ASEA Associate

Associate Kevis Nishikawa, ASLA Associate

HONDARD OFFICE

Howaran Onwea Allo Base Smith and ABI Town Strin 650 ABI Town Strin 650 Addition Base 1 and Tax, 6603 533 442 Addition Barling Barlinwati com Had Obyet All Auros Synar and Auros Synar and Acons Osyme Sure 310 Had Acons Osyme Sure 310 Had Auros 904 3331 Fac. (603) 961 409 Fac. (603) 961 4

The (also) we starts free (also) we starts free (also) we also the starts and also we also also the starts free also the starts also the start

anuary 27, 2006

Mr. Russell Yee, Prevention Captain Robert Westerman, Fire Chief County of Kaua'i Fire Department Mo'ikeha Building 4444 Rice Street, Suite 295 Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Poʻipū, Kauaʻi TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)

Dear Mr. Yee and Mr. Westerman:

Thank you for your letter dated August 2, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'fpu Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.

We understand that the installation of fire hydrant systems must be in place prior to construction. The conceptual master plan shown in the EISPN and Draft EIS are preliminary plans for the Village at Po'ipū. As the project is phased and prepared for construction, subdivision plans will be prepared by engineers and submitted to the County of Kaua'i Department of Public Works for approval before construction can commence. These subdivision plans must meet County requirements including adequate fire hydrant systems, road widths, and cul-desac dimensions. We acknowledge your comment that the transient and residential population will impact the nearby fire station. Further analysis of this potential impact and mitigative measures is provided in Section 4.9.2 in the Draft EIS and included as part of the market study and public cost/benefit analysis report is attached in its entirety as an appendix to the EIS. We will incorporate your comments regarding traffic, road widths, dead-ends, and cul-de-sacs into the design plan to ensure maneuverability of the fire apparatus within the community in Section 4.9.2 of the Draft EIS. A Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) for the proposed project has been prepared for the project and is included as an appendix in the Draft EIS. Further information regarding the traffic impact of the proposed project on surrounding roads is also provided in Section 4.3 of the Draft EIS.

Page 2 Mr. Russell Yee and Mr. Robert Westerman January 27, 2006 The hydrant system will designed to accommodate the various zoning in the area, and will comply with Department of Water standards.

Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.

Sincerely, PBR HAWAII

Kimi Yuer Associate

cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\FIRE.doc

January 27, 2006	Mr. Gregg Fujikawa, Chief of Water Resources and Planning Department of Water County of Kaua'i 4398 Pua Loke Street P.O. Box 1706 Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766	 RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipu, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Mr. Fujikawa: 	Thank you for your letter dated August 25, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	A water master plan for the Village at Po'tpu project was completed in October 2005 and was approved the Department of Water (DOW) on November 17, 2005. Our client will implement the master plan as approved by the DOW. The discussion of the water system is provided in Section 4.8.1 of the Draft EIS and the preliminary engineering report is attached as an appendix to the EIS.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your letter will be included in the EIS.	Sincerely,	PBR HAWAII PBR HAWAII Kimi Yuen Associate	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\DOW.doc
PBR	LAND FLANNING LANDSCHERACHTECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES WAI FRANK BRANDT, FASLA CHARRIAN THOMAS S, WITTEN ASLA	President President R. Stan Dunca, ASLA Executing Vice-President Russell VJ, Churc, ASLA Executing Vice-President Vincert Shutakun	Ранстри. Јанев Јазимах АІСР Ранстии. Нило Обрист Gravit Микакамі, АІСР	ASMON ASSOCIATE TOM SERVEL, AICP ASSOCIATE RAVNOND T. HIDI, ASLA ASSOCIATE KROWI NEETAWA, ASLA			HANGLER OFFICE HORLER OFFICE (01) Bases STREE AND FORES, STREE (06) 51-551 FOR (06) 51-551 FOR (06) 51-402 FOR (06) 51-502 FOR	Hato Obrect Hato Obrect Shense Shenre Hato Lacoose Chernes Shenre Hato Lacoose Chernes Sherre 310 Hato Hacoose Chernes Sherre Hato (1988) 964:4090 FAVA. (1988) 964:4090 FAVA. (1988) 964:4090	WALKI OPPOR 128 Konto Shuft Markov 19679-2304 Tha. (869-342-2578 Has.: (809-342-2578 Has.: (809-342-2003 E-Mat.: premarking the article
ment of Mater has no substituteConserve it COUCE Numery of Kauai	August 25, 2005	Ms. Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813	Dear Ms. Yuen: Subject: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN) for "Village at Poi'rou" project, Poi'roū, Kaua'i	This is in regards to your July 23, 2005 letter. The subject project was required to complete a water master plan for full growth development of this area. The developer will be required to provide all necessary water system facilities as determined by the approved water master plan. The above information was not included in the EISPN.	If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Edward Doi at (808) 245-5417.	Sincerely	Gregg Fujikawa Chief of Water Resources and Planning	c: Mr. Anthony Ching State Land Use Commission P.O. Box 2359 Honolulu, HI 96804	4398 Pua Loke St. P.O. Box 1706, Lihue, HI 96766 Phone: 808-245-5400 Engineering and Fiscal Fax: 808-245-5813, Operations Fax: 808-245-5402, Administration Fax: 808-245-6828

	9.) Rubbish removal	10.)Traffic and roadways.	11.)Lack of recreational areas and the overuse of those in existence (i.e.: Po'ipu Beach Park).	12.)In the event of a natural disaster, evacuation on inadequate roadways would compound the disaster.	13.)Owls, Bats, Birds and other endangered species would potentially be eliminated with this development.	14)The intended water catchments area is in the medictoric omehichected. Due off	Would then run downhill, flowing over the highway and dump into the Kane I Olo Uma archeological site and estuary directly across Po'ipu Road.	15.) These unclassified ALISH Lands in this Ag Zoned proposal have been impeded by the cattle use and should be restored to agricultural production, as well as the Waikomo Stream ('Cultural Survey's Hawaii', Sept. 1990, page 31).	16.)The worldwide lack of natural resources, especially water and land, should dictate the meservation of onen snace and aoricultural land use zoning serverially on Kanai	17) The provided frank in the device of a solution of a solution of the provided of the provided frank in the solution of the provided the solution of the sol	residential development restoration development would not obtacht Adda residential developments" are proposed in Waimea/Port Allen areas with home costs from \$235,000 for 07 wing businesses processed in Waimea/Port Allen areas with home costs	News August 05 and August 12, 2005)		Manago in advance togy your response. (Ande, Duis Hay 1 3, Ladichtin.)	Llewelyn Kaohelauli'f, Rupert Rowe, Terrie Hayes, Tessie Kinnaman, Leslie Pool, Andy Siegel, and members of Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma	You may reach us at c.o.Llewelyn Kaohelauli'i 2249 Kuai Road Po'inu HI 06756	
August 23, 2005	Kimi Yuen	PBK Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street,	ASB 10wer, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813 FAX # (808) 523-1402	Re: Eric A. Knudsen Trust, Application Title of Project: Village at Po'ipu Location: Po'ipu	isiand: Kaua 1 District Koloa	Aloha Kimi Youn,	We are writing as residents, Kanaka Ma'oli, concerned citizens of Po'ipu and the island of Kaua'i regarding the application as referenced above, pertaining to Tax Map Key	Numbers: 2-8-13:01, 2-8-14:01, 2-8-14:02, 2-8-14:03, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:37 and LOT 19-B(HAPA ROAD), approximately 203 acres, Po'ipu, District of Koloa, Kauai, Hawaii and remain as "OPEN/SPECIAL TREATMENT PUBLIC" and "AGRICULTURAL LANDS."	Our questions and concerns pertaining to the TMK's above and are as follows:	1.) The indiginious peoples cultural rights(Garden Island August 03, 2005).	Ownership of Leasehold Lands. How and when did the title transfer to Knudsen Trust?	3.) Archeological Sites and Inventory and access to these for cultural practices. (Cultural Services Hawaii 1990, etc.)	4.) The damaged and destroyed sites and appropriate fines.	5.) Addressing the housing needs of low income, low moderate and gap groups within this project.	6.) The Kauai County Council recommendations for a Moratorium on re-zoning including these valuable ag lands (Garden Island August 12, 2005).	7.) With the rapid development on the south shore of Kauai, a comprehensive plan, not individual development plan, is needed prior to any further developements.	8.) Sewage and water run-off

p,

JANULIN IOLAINI

WEDNESDAY • AUGUST 3, 2005 • ONLINE: WWW.KAUAIWORLD.COM

IN THE NEWS SPORTS lrons gets a winat U.S. Open



Associated Press dy Irons reacts after winning e first place in men's division U.S. Open of Surfing in utington Beach, Calif.

WORLD/NATION

All passengers survive crash of jetliner Page A4 Median price of a house on O'ahu in July was \$599,000



For preservation: Instead of planned residences on land near Po'ipu Beach Park, Kanaka Maioli (indigenous people) Rupert, Rowe, James Kimokeo and Billy Kaohelauli'i, would like to see a cultural preserve on the Knudsen Trust property.

Unanian 1-1C

Lester Chang THE GARDEN ISLAND

Lester Chang PHE GAUDENTISANG TOTU -- With plans in cultural preserve, Kuoheinulti, James Kinokeo, all Kanaka Maoli, the indigenous people of Hawati, and non-Hawalians, have come out swinging against a proposal lands owned by Knudsen Trust itamly members. They have their wish, the project would be the first of its kinotic and the set of the they have their wish, the project would be the first of its kinotic and the set of the kinotic and the set of the they have their wish, the project would be the first of its kinotic and the set of the kinotic and the set of the kinotic and the set of the inotic and the set of the they have their wish, the project would be the first of its kinotic and project the past, pro-kinotic and the set of the the set of the furthers. The locar sets of created where sets of created where sets of created where for the Kundsen Trust, believes of the Kinika say the 1,2 creation is the first of the standard and stated for marcel, or an adjoining, eight, the rints feel justified in their stand because they feel the property is unique in Hawari's the

their stand because they feel the property is unique in Hawai'l: it

> see next page 2000

Anthony Ching-State Land Use Commission Honolulu, HI 96804 FAX # (808) 587-3827 P.O. Box 2359

ö

Office of Environmental Quality Control 235 South Beretania Street, Suite #702 Honolulu, HI 96813 FAX # (808) 586-4185 ö

the start and a start of the proposed refriged if a can come about, well preserve a part of important his-properties and the proposed regression of the properties of Hawaims. David Birge who is part Na-tive American and in the Hawai-tin said he feast the same way. He is descended from the Samt Mexico. Meta-Her remembers that leaders with the federal government with the federal government with the federal government in preservation, and never gave the meta-tion backs on the solution and where gave the meta-solution and government of preservation, and never gave the meta-solution of the solution and solution with the federal government of preservation, and never gave the meta-tion of the solution of the solution of preservation of the solution for and government of preservation of the solution with the solution of the solution with the solution of the solution with the solution of the solution where the model with the solution where the solution of the solution where the solution of the solution where the solution of the solution where the solution of the solution of the solution of the solution where the solution of the solution of the solution of the solution where the solution of the solution where the solution of the s "I am still locked in by cur-rent laws, land-use laws that al-low certain ownrestlip rights on protection ownrestlip rights with current private-ownership rights. Youn said a current rights with current private-ownership rights we will here an archeologist to identify it and inch meessarily polite ac-coss. Youn said hepersonally world volunteer his services to work with laders of the com-munity and courd your government in setting up a curredoxipp pro-gram of the rock foundulation. "We are tailoing four the rock foundulation. Lester Chang, staff writer, may be reacher writer, may be reacher and the occur And they are as a start that are and the occur And they are are and a Rawaiin much from Koola by the manue of the area and the preserve should be the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual protecting the preserve should be a top priority for members of a manual provent manual provent and moved to the West Coast of a top protecting the preserve should be to the start of the manual moved of cancer. So and moved to the West Coast of a start of the start coast of a start of the preserve and moved to the West Coast of the first time in 1988, Sigle should be the first time in 1988, Sigle should be the first time in 1988, Sigle should be the first time in the protect Kauri's transfer the mercure of reserves the work of the start (such of the preserve in whet Hawaii's should be pro-will be protect Kauri's transfer that a strength of the start, they are not the important and factor is to a strength of the protect Kauri's transfer that a strength of the start, they are not the start, hey are not the start, they are not the start, the start (such of the start) a strength of the start. The start is the protect Kauri's transfer that the start is the start is the stort of the start. The start is the stort of the start, they are not the start, for the start, for the start, stort a start is the start is the start is the star had given to courty leaders for deriven the courty leaders for dereptional uses that to future acceptional right. Acceptional right, see how they dereological destroyed courts areas, greates, and poinds, taro patches, and places that were used for griculture by my ancestors, Kämökure sard. The young aptould pre-sard. The young aptound flawa-ian elders) had set out to protect for them. He also worked as a mer-chant marine, traveling to ports in the Far East and Middle East. He also carned a boat-captain's years old. The eight acres were part of 20 acres Knudsen Trust officials Kimokeo said he left Kausi, for opportunity in 1935, and didn't return home until 1996. Diffing these years, he worked out of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers office in Portland, because he wanted to be closer to this Hawaian nots. Taik of the proposed preserve moti-vates him to make it a rehity "I want to do, and I will," he ticense. He returned to Kaua'i in 1996, said. Kaohelauli'i said the rampant said. As compensation for the un-permitted grubbing, Rowe and others edimanded the county in the the commercial permits French has to run the Nukumoi Starf Company business mext to Brencke's Base Barolia-That may not be a possibility, in a sthe permit process for that as the permit process for that and the current re-groups of the ling al grading had will not desirvy or excreding and will not desirvy or excredit on the two not said the at the Kind will not desirvy or excredit on within the 12 acress is in proposed within the 12 acress ing to him. His house is located weather a rook formation found within the 12 acress ing to him. His house is located when the edge of the proposed a preserve, and develop the will. On the edge of his property is to the edge of his property is is the only interf matanhing (Ha. v is the only interf matanhing (Ha. v to ulama sportug gareas in the unit of the area and protected by a liver with an encourage and have a liver set of the area was used by the strongs to f have. I farawy villages to do battle faraw vill differ area. The rock wall boasted an everated walkway, apparently a contract walkway, apparently a contract wards points for adheric based of the second and the activities such as graphing, the stressing physical strength, and the stressing physical strength activities such as graphing, the stressing physical strength activities such as graphing, the stressing physical strength activities and activi-tics area and a stressing physical strength activities such as graphing, the stressing physical strengther activities and strengther activities of the stressing physical strengther activities of a walter by from the rocks because they well and strength for the activi-be from the rocks because they well and strength for the activ-tion strength for the activ-be physical strength of a walter well and strength for use by the akit fulling chiefs, the scalar apparently chose the area because it offered what they needed for survival. "Peo-ple would come down here for recreation, and for shopping for recreation, facility and "There wore ferreaced farm senses no. Hawaiians Continued from AI tors. ageb

Ben and a second a

Cool

"00py" This mission although established later than the A. P. Mission in Kuhio Park (5 house structures and 4 LCAs) and, thirdly, extending this time a major exporting point for local agricultural produce. awards is found around Koloa Town with the A. P. Mission located here as the central focus of this settlement pattern. House lot and <u>lo'i</u> land awards extend <u>makai</u> from Koloa nearly continuously along both sides of Waikomo Stream to Koloa Landing which was by settlement patterns, besides voluminous documentary sources, is One of the best sources of information on mid-19th Century Koloa was a secondary center of settlement. It was founded in 1841 by Father Walsh and the present stone church was built in the 1850s (Judd, 1935:77). Two Land Court Awards makai of the and 1 LCA) around the A. P. Mission land behind present Prince associated with LCAs occur at Kukuiula Bay (9 house structures The pre-historic pattern of continuous settlement of all lands (LCA), major roads, some <u>'auwai</u>, and some taro and cane lands. the 1891 Monsarrat map of Köloa which shows Land Court Awards southeastward from Köloa Town to the Roman Catholic Mission. evident. The major concentration of house lots and ag land from the present site of Köloa Town to the shoreline is not Smaller secondary concentrations of <u>kuleana</u> and houses not severe drought the <u>'auwai</u> fed by the <u>mauka</u> ag waters would DXhibit church are within the present study area. (16/L)mg 21 Mid-to Late-19th Century continue to flow. OF THE PROPOSED PO'IPULANI GOLF COURSE ARCHAEOLOGICAL INVENTORY SURVEY AND RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT Po'ipulani Development Corporation Cultural Surveys Hawaii September, 1990 Revised January 1991 Revised July 1991 Hallett H. Hammatt, Ph.D. KŌLOA, KAUA'I William H. Folk, B.A. Mark Stride prepared for ą by

The earliest detailed archaeological site surveys were carried At least ten archaeological reports were generated from work were not clearly defined at that time. Archaeological sites were During the 1973-1974 State-wide Inventory of Historic Places Hawai'i, archaeological remains in the present project area (Site Marginal - can be destroyed with reservations; 4) Destroyed - all Survey of the Proposed Kiahuna Golf Village Area" (Hammatt, 1978) '78; Kikuchi '80; Landrum '84; Neller '81; Sinoto '75). Most of these documents are short "letter" reports detailing the results placed in Reserve status because they needed additional research sent project area, several sites were listed but not located and '80; Bordner '77a; Bordner '77b; Ching '74a; Ching '74b; Hammatt Although no sites were recorded as being definitely in the prein the Po'ipu-Köloa area in the 1970s and early 1980s (A.R.C.H. of walk-through reconnaissance surveys. By far the most ambitious of these projects was the "Archaeological and Biological performed by A.R.C.H. of the County of Kaua'i for the State of other categories. These included: 1) High Value - sites that and should be saved until they could be placed into one of the Reserve status. The exact location and extent of these sites traced obliterated. These categories are no longer in use in 50-30-10-85 and 86) were briefly evaluated and placed on the out by Kikuchi in 1961 and 1963 from Hanapepe to Māhā'ulepū. must be saved; 2) Valuable - sites that should be saved; 3) could possibly be near this study area. 8 State-sponsored surveys. " Copy" The earliest commercial sugar cane was grown by native Exhibit___ (22) (23)

Arch. Inv. Survey of the proposed of <u>191</u>) Po'IPULANI GOLF COURSE + Res. Den. KOLOA, HI The land west of Köloa Town is shown in cane as was the land <u>mauka</u> of Kukuiula Bay.

worked these lands to supply him with supplies to export but were blank space. All of these lands went to Kekuaiwa and included Kekuaiwa was the chief who probably controlled the bulk of the What of the lands from the shoreline to the town of Köloa the majority of the lot lands. We know this land was in full crop production in this peak period and his tenants lived and dense agricultural and habitation use? Monsarrat's map shows exports of food supplies in the 1850s and 1860s (Judd, 1935). production in the mid-19th Century as evidenced by the large which were all irrigated by <u>'auwai</u> and show archaeologically not claimants to it.

Commercial Sugar Period

and, after the California export boom, for food crops. Most of the mention sugar fields next to taro 10^{11} . The rocky terraced lands farmers in small plots as evidenced by the LCA testimonies which were avoided for large scale production partly because they were valuable for food crops and partly because of the labor involved abandoned in place and became Knudsen grazing land. The larger, irrigated fields were leveled and expanded for commercial sugar in laying out large fields. The larger irrigated fields were, however, put into cane when it was profitable to replace taro, Kīahuna project area and some of Kukuiula area were simply

ECTION D D NESDAY | August 3, 2005

[HONOLULUADVERTISER.COM/localnews]

Kaua'i's new courthouse High-tech building he dedicated Friday | B3

CITY EDITOR | FERNANDO PIZARRO E-mail: fpizarro@HonoluluAdvertiser.com | Telephone: 525-8094

urtle gets special pass into Hawai

rprising owner must be sure et toes the line

BY JAMES GONSER

Kobe may be one of the d terrapins in the world owner, Jason Ninomiya ele, couldn't bear to is 3-year-old diamond-trapin behind when he back to Hawai'i this sumthe made special travel ements, jumped through bureaucratic hoops and scure accommodations home to be allowed to e turtle into the state. special," Ninomiya said Finch-long turtle. "He is friendly. He will follow and. The red-ear sliders trun away from you. rday, the state Board of for Kobe to live in Ha-the several restrictions. parents, Andy and I



The state has given its blessing to Kobe the terrapin to follow his owner to Hawai'l even if the species is usually restricted. But Kobe must stay confined, undergo health exams and remain a lifelong bachelor.

sparents, Andy and Myr-aomiya, were all smiles working on his pediatric resi-gs as they left the hearing. dency at Loyola University Med-e's sage began three years ical Center in Maywood, Ill. hen Ninomiya found the tret at a reptile farm out-therapin is restricted in Hawa'it, Kobe would spend in quaran-he started the paperwork in tine, Ninomiya decided to drive

from Chicago to Seattle rather than fly, stopping on the way to show the little guy Mount Rush-more and Yellowstone National

SEE TURTLE, B4

25,000 acres on Big Isle set for preservation

Congress OKs \$3.4 million to buy Wao Kele 'o Puna

Associated Press Congress has approved \$3.4 million for the purchase of more than 25,000 acres of forest on the Big Island that had once been at the center of protests over geothermal power. The Wao Kele 'o Puna forest

could become the third purchase in Hawai'i under the federal Forest Legacy Program, begun in 1990. The other projects are two conservation easements bought for \$3.3 million in South Kona.

for \$3.3 million in South Kona. The proposed purchase will both help preserve valuable nat-ural resources and finally resolve the issues that generated protests decades ago, said County Coun-cilman Bob Jacobson. "The is the backing of a smart 'This is the healing of a great

Ins is the heating of a great ill," he said. Currently owned by Campbell Estate, Wao Kele 'o Puna had been at the center of protests in the late 1980s over a company's plan to harness steam from a volcanic rift zone to generate electricity

Wyoming-based True Geo-

thermal, however, had failed to find the steam resource on the tract needed on the land for

tract needed on the land for commercial development. The estate originally intended to use its land at Kahaualea for the project. Those lands were covered by lava from neighbor-ing Kilauea's eruption beginning in 1983 in 1983.

ing Klauea's eruption beginning in 1983. Two years later the state Board of Land and Natural Resources approved the trade of the Ka-haudea lands for the state-owned wato Kele' o Puna, which includ-ed the Puna Forest Reserve. The tract lowland forests in fawari'i, according to the last fawari'i, according to the last fawari'i, according to the Irst for Public Land, which is helping to coordinate the acquisition. This also a critical seed bank for regenerating plants in areas cov-rered by Klauea's eruptions and represents one-fifth of the wa-tershed feeding the island's lauea's the trust stai. The funding for the purchase was included in the Department of Interior's budget for the fiscal year beginning Oct. 1, said Anne Stew-bat, Legislative director for U.S. zep. Ed Case. The sinden Bush is expected to sign the bill.

sign the bill.

Developer envisions up to 500 homes at Poipu

A large Kaua'i landowner is proposing to develop 350 to 500 homes in Po'ipù in an effort that would help ease part of the Island's high housing demand by converting mostly pasture and scrub land into residential subdivision at the resort area

The Eric A. Knudsen Trust is seeking government approvals to develop the homes on 203 acres it owns between the Kiahuna Golf Club and the Weliweli subdivision mauka of the Marriott Waiohai Beach Club time-share.

The project, named Village at Poipū, is projected to contain 216 to 369 single-family homes on about 150 acres, and 134 mul-tifamily homes on nine acres.

About 12 acres would be made into parks. And about 20 acres would be maintained as archaeological preserves, including areas around two lava tubes designated critical habi-tats for the endangered Kaua'i cave wolf spider and Kaua'i cave amphipod. Stacey Wong, trustee for the

developer, said the project is in an area that was slated for residential growth 30 years ago and is being filled out by nearby projects such as Wubnithe and Kinhung Ment Kukui'ula and Kiahuna Mauka subdivisions

The Knudsen trust, in an en-



Poriod Road

Po'ipū Brenacke Seach The Honolulu Advertis

vironmental impact statement preparation notice recently filed with the state, said the project isn't likely to have a significant negative impact on natural or cultural resources, and fits with the designated residential use of the land on

Miles

the County General Plan. The project site was once part of a network of taro fields ditches and living settlements, which by the 1930s were out of use. Most of the property was not converted for sugar cultivation, and reverted to pasture

County zoning on the site is a mix of residential and open zoning, the latter of which allows a variety of uses including agriculture and single-family homes.

Wong said construction of an initial phase of 50 lots for single-family homes on resi-dential-zoned land should start in the next couple of months. The lots are being sold to a company planning to build roughly 2,000-square-foot plantation-style houses That sale has not been completed, so Wong said it was premature home sales in the area, the

to identify the buyer. The Knudsen trust expects it will take at least two years to gain approvals to develop the rest of the property, including 124 acres of the 203-acre site

that are in the state's agricultural district and would need state and Use Commission reclassification for urban use. The trust recently petitioned the LUC for such reclassification.

The total development cost for infrastructure of Village at Po'ipū is estimated at \$34 million. Wong said that given recent

trust expects a majority of Village at Po'ipū buyers to be from off island, with a sizeable group of Kaua'i residents. "It's really hard to tell what the final mix will be," he said.

Kaua'i's major private landowners, with about 4,000 acres of mostly agriculture and open-zoned property in Köloa and Po'ipū. The trust was es-tablished in the early 1920s in the name of former territorial legislator, rancher, author and storyteller Eric A. Knudsen,



The Knudsen trust is one of

who died in 1957.



not need to rezone any resort lands, today," Asing said.

Asing said in deriving numbers to support his resolution, he realized the numbers on vacation rentals and other resort units were "huge," but did not feel compelled to mention them in his resolution.

Yukimura said there is a danger that affordable housing units could be put on the open market one day, and they would contribute to the problem Asing's resolution attempts to ddress. That is why, she said, the number of affordable houses should also be considered in the equation.

Asing said his resolution is only the first step of many to control resort development on the island.

"If we don't do this, could it be worse?" Asing asked. "The answer is yes. Do something now, hold and just wait."

Asing said he hopes his resolution sends a clear message to the Kaua'i County Planning Department to "be careful on what you do, reassess everything and look at the problems.

Yukimura said a part of the problem deals with not addressing population growth in the past.

She said the first general plan for the county was developed in 1970, when the island's population was 30,000. The plan projected a population of 90,000 some day, she said.

"At every General Plan update, we never addressed that issue (population numbers) she said. /Is 90,000 really what we want, and where do we want that growth? We didn't address that issue in 2000 (when the plan was updated) and that is why we are here today."

Furfaro said a partial solution may be for the county to catch up with its infrastructure needs, building more roads and adding more water capacity.

"The long-term issue here is that this council needs to focus

on infrastructure issues that affect the entire island, as these lands are, in fact, identified for development," Furfaro said. "We need to evaluate the infrastructure and really catch up."

Furfaro said he plans to propose a separate resolution to accelerate the updating of the comprehensive zoning ordinance.

The same resolution, he said, would ask that the review of the county's General Plan be done in 2020 instead of 2010.

That way, work on that plan would coincide with any work on Kaua'i Water Department's 2020 plan to upgrade the island's public water system and the state Department of Transportation's road plan for Kaua'i.

This strategy would result in better planning for the island for generations go come, Furfaro said.

Lester Chang, staff writer, can be reached at 245-3681 (ext. 225) and lchang@ kauaipubco.com.

that was highlighted by the



ļ



Waimea Plantation Village: 56 units coming soon

Kaua'i Business Report

WAIMEA — Kikiaola Land Company recently announced the most recent phase of its Waimea Plantation community master plan.

Waimea Plantation Village will WAIMEA PLANDATION encompass 56 single- and multi-VILLAGE family units adjacent to Waimea town and located on a 5-acre parcel between the West Kaua'i Technology and

Visitor Center and the West Kaua'i Medical Center.

With unit prices expected to start at \$325,000, Waimea Plantation Village will consist of a mix of three-bedroom and fourbedroom homes and two-bedroom and threebedroom townhouses that will be constructed



with a modern, plantation-style architecture including a recreational center and swimming pool. "Kikizola Land Company is

excited to offer these residences to the community," said Linda Fayé Collins, President and CEO of Kikiaola Land Company. "We recognize that Waimea town has a

rich history and culture. Waimea Plantation Village will perpetuate these values in every aspect of its homes and the residential community that we're going to create. Waimea Plantation consists of 626-acres

extending one and one-half miles from Kikiaola Harbor to Waimea. The Kaua'i General Plan Update designations for Waimea Plan-See WAIMEA, Page 5



modern, plantation-style architecture

August 12, 2005 Keuge telenet

og owner fined in tot's death

The owner of a beagle-Labrador mix that killed a 17month-old child last year pleaded no contest last week to owning a dangerous dog, and prosecutors will recommend a \$500 fine with no jail time.

Farmer Buenaventura 'Ben" Failao, 59, of Lihu'e, eral dogs chained for

Alexander & Baldwin said

ment overlooking Port Allen Harbor on Kaua'i that will

The condominium portion

of the development is named

Kai Olino and will include

two- and three-bedroom

feature a 75-unit multistory condominium project and 60

single-family homes.

last week it will build a 17-acre residential develop-

security near the border of his Moloa'a farm lot, where he grew papayas and ba-nanas. The farm is adjacent to a farm operated by the parents of young Trusten Heart Liddle.

The child apparently wandered unnoticed away from his parents on Feb. 21, 2004, and into the range of

\$550,000. The single-family development, called

three-bedroom homes in sev-

eral models on lots that will

average 6,000 square feet.

Pricing has yet to be deter-

mined.

Keala'ula, will consist of

The family found him motionless, being bitten on the face and body by the stillchained dog.

The animal, an unneutered male that reportedly had not previously bitten anyone, was destroyed. Ednilao's sentencing is scheduled for



units ranging from 1,000 square feet to 1,300 square feet. Prices are expected to run from \$325,000 to

Full Time & Part Time We are seeking friendly, outgoing individuals that have the aloha spirit and a commitment to customer service.

Nite Ow

Please apply at: 7-ELEVEN HANAMAULU 3-4340 Kuhio Hwy.

7-ELEVEN LIHUE 3-3152 Kuhio Hwy

WE OFFER OUR EMPLOYEES:



et Allen fa

CAON FROM THE NEW IN MARINA CENTER

35-6110 or toll free 888-430-9907

January 27, 2006 M.T.Llewelyn Kaohelauli'i Members of Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma Wentu sruots 2249 Kuai Road Po'ipū, Hawai'i 96756	REBARDER: FASLA R.E. Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice CMARKAD Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i 5. WITTER, ASLA Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Ros PREMONT TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Ros Vinne, ASLA PREMONT Dear Mr. Kaohelauli'i and the Members of Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma: Vinne, ASLA VICE-PREMONT Dear Mr. Kaohelauli'i and the Members of Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma: Vinne, ASLA VICE-PREMONT Thank you for your letter dated August 23, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'i BartSHORT Forough the consult PRESERVENT Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consult Prevention for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments	 We appreciate your concern about the cultural rights of Native Hawaiia theorem. We appreciate your concern about the cultural rights of Native Hawaiia theorem. Special care will be taken during and after construction to preserve Nat Hawaiian traditional gathering rights and access to archaeological a cultural sites, which will be protected in preserves as part of this projout stream. Across Associate Autoriative public access routes will be provided during construction safety-related restrictions to access are put in place. The project site was part of a single 6,500-acre property purchased Autoriant Sinclair Knudsen in 1872. She later gave most of the lation function gail of Village at Po'ipū to her two sons, Eric A. and Aug Knudsen, in the early 1920s to hold in trust. 	 Section 4.1 of the Draft EIS includes a discussion and analysis of archaeological inventory surveys, data recovery and protection planewsman prepared for the proposed project. Complete copies of all archaeologi reports are attached as appendices to the EIS. A cultural impact analytics is summarized in Section 4.2 of the Draft E The final report is also attached as an appendix to the EIS. All signific sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation will preserved and maintained as archaeological preserves. Native Hawai traditional gathering rights and access to the sites will be preserved and archaeological preserves. Native Hawai traditional gathering rights and access to the sites will be preserved and arter construction. 	 A) Our client and the lessees of the properties upon which archaeologi sites were damaged or destroyed have been working with SHPD approval appropriate corrective action. The agreement is awaiting final approval tecorresticate systems 5) We appreciate your concerns about the housing needs of low income, low statements and gap groups. Village at Po'ipu will include a variety housing options and opportunities, including single- and multi-farry housing options and opportunities.
i recorded 583 archaeological features in a survey of 460 i including the <u>makai</u> portion of the present study area west	The results of the Klahuna survey show intensive prehistoric WM. RAWK ication of the rocky landscape into an almost continuous Themes. Ex of irrigated agricultural fields interconnected with <i>R</i> . STANK [] (ditches) and thickly scattered with habitation sites on <i>R</i> . STANK <i>r</i> ground around the fields. This complex, all irrigated by <i>R</i> . RUSSEL V. RUSSEL	known distance. Since sugar cane cultivation and housing distance. Since sugar cane cultivation and housing have altered much of the area, the irrigated fields have have altered much of the area, the irrigated fields fields for the tone-lined ditches can only be traced eastward to the west arry of the present study area. Clearly, the remnant of this have take arry of the present study area. Clearly, the remnant of this have take arry of the present study area. Clearly, the remnant of this have take arry of the present study area. I are outstanding have the area area are of the outstanding have are area area area are area area are	resent study area. He provides rough locations and brief How with the free to a proposed corridor of the How with the free to ' ipu Bypass Road. ' In 1981 Dr. William Kikuchi conducted an archaeological how with a free free free free free to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders the present project area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders'') and ' Hu with the borders'' with the borders'' and ' Hu with the borders'' area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with the borders''') and ' Hu with the borders''' area to the east (Kikuchi, ' Hu with ' Hu with the borders'''') and ' Hu with the borders'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''	 Kikuchi recorded a number of <u>lauwal</u>, terraces, walls and ation sites in this tract which had been extensively bulldo- Wu There were enough site remnants present to conclude that (31) (54)

Page 3 Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma January 27, 2006	11) We acknowledge your concerns about the overuse of existing recreational facilities in <i>Po'</i> ipū. As shown on the Conceptual Master Plan (Figure 3 of the EISPN), the Vilhage at <i>Po'</i> ipū will provide 12 acres of parks and open spaces and over 23 acres of archaeological preserves, as well as an extensive network of pedestrian paths, including the restoration of Hapa Road as a shared bike and pedestrian path. This far exceeds the County requirements for a project of this size and will help support recreational needs for the <i>Po'</i> ipū-Kõloa area.	12) We recognize your concerns regarding evacuation routes in the event of a natural disaster. The proposed roadways for the project will increase the number of mauka-makai evacuation routes for the community and all roads will be designed to meet County standards.	 13) A fauna study has been conducted to identify existing wildlife and determine the impact of the proposed project on any faunal communities. Preliminary findings concluded that the proposed Village at Po'pti may actually positively impact the migratory Pacific Golden Plover and endangered Hawaiian Hoary Bat. The two USFWS critical habitas for the endangered Hawaiian Hoary Bat. The two USFWS critical habitas for the endangered Hawaii. Cave Wolf Spider and Amphipod have been integrated into the conceptual master plan for the project and buffers have been created around the two lava tubes which will be preserved a stribatogical preserves and landscaped with mative plans. The complete fauna study is included as an appendix to the Draft EIS and discussed in Section 3.6. 14) We appreciate your concern about a prehistoric amphitheater. Although there was a modern amplitheater planned for construction in a previous development scheme in the location of the proposed detribution basin, all of the archaeological inventory surveys performed for the site indicate that there is no net increase in peak runoif offsic. 14) We appreciate your concern the proper provided in the site indicate that there were no prehistoric amphitheaters at this location. Please refer to the archaeological inventory survey spectromed for the site indicate that there the archaeological inventory survey reports provided in the approvise of the EIS. As discussed in comment #8 above, mitigation measures will be implemented to ensure that there is no net increase in peak runoif offsic. 15) We acknowledge your comment #8 above, mitigation measures will be implemented to ensure that there is no net increase is provided in the project and slow. Yuse Proposal be restored to agricultural use. Several studies rate the productivity of soils in Hawai'i for agriculture for Conservation Services Soil Survey indicates that the soils on the site have severe limitations for cultivaburse soils on the site have severe limitation f	
Page 2 Hui Malama O Kane I Olo Uma January 27, 2006	housing. A market study conducted for the Village at Po'ipū identifies the project's impact on housing opportunities on Kaua'i. The Knudsen Trust is working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to meet its remaining affordable housing requirements for the project. The affordable housing requirements of the area makai of the railroad berm have been satisfied. Please refer to Section 4.7.2 for further analysis. The full market study is included as an appendix in the EIS.	6) The existing Kaua'i County zoning for the project site is a mix of different Residential zones (R-4, R-6, and R-10) and Open District. The proposed Village at Po'ipū project will conform to this zoning and no zone changes will be sought.	 We understand your concern about the cumulative impacts of development on the south shore of Kaua'i. The Draft EIS will include a discussion of regional impacts created by the Village at Po'ipi project and other surrounding uses. The technical reports used to assess the project's impact cover all known projects in the surrounding area and incorporate them into their analysis. In addition, the County of Kaua'i updated its General Plan (GP) in 2000. The General Plan Update was a community-based effort that established planning goals and visions for the five regions of kaua'i including the Kolon-Po'ipit-Kalaheo Planning District. The Land Use Maps generated for the five districts provide comprehensive plans for the appropriate growth and future needs of the regions. The proposed Village at Po'ipit project is located in an area designated as a "residential community" in the General Plan Land Use Map for the Kolon-Po'ipit-Kalaheo Planning District and is therefore comprehensive plans for the region. Sections 4.8.2 and 4.8.3 of the Draft EIS provide full analysis of the wastewater and drainage plans proposed for Village at Po'ipit project. The drainage master plan includes detention basins and bioswales that will help slow and filter runoff using native plan metades distington masures are expected to improve existing drainage conditions and impacts on downstream areas. Section 4.8.5 of the Draft EIS provides information on solid waste disposal facilities, and the impact of the project. The site. The detention basins will ensure that no net increase in peak runoff will occur. These mitigation masures are expected to improve existing drainage conditions and impacts on downstream areas. Section 4.8.5 of the Draft EIS provides information on solid waste disposal facilities, and the impact of the project. The full Traffic Impact of the project is attached as an appendix in the Draft EIS. 	

Au 6457 23, 2005	Dear State Use Land Commission, This letter is related to tax map key numbers: 2-8-13:01, 2-8-14:01, 2-8- 14:02, 2-8-14:03, 2-8-14:04, 2-8-14: 19, 2-8-14:37 and lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	I am amazed at the amount of development planned for the Poipu area of Kauai. This area of agricultural land should not be turned into residential land. Is no one thinking of the future?	There is already grubbing and grading going on in this area without permits I am told. These developers seem to have some sort of in with the local planners. In the past there were many historic / archaeological sites buildozed over on weekends when the authorities were not working. (There is a huge need to have someone available on weekends!) There are many	archaeological sites within the this area that need to be cared for. I am extremely concerned that even if Poipu / Koloa were to grow as much as the developers have planned, there is little or no planning for infrastructure. At a meeting of the Koloa Community our supervisor told us that there should be a beltway built around the town of Koloa so that the	traffic would not turn into gridlock. Then he said that there was not encugh money to do this, and "he doesn't know what to do. " The thing to do is to not allow this growth into our community. If the is to he any prowth this new growth should be made to pay for	the infastructure needed. Our county planners only charge \$1000. for each new unit. They say that they would have to raise our existing taxes if we want infrastructure. This is ridiculous! They are building million and multi million dollar houses. These are not going to help the Kauai community! People here need houses that they can afford! They also do not need their taxes raised to pay for infrastructure built to accommodate expensive housing in their community. Make the new development pay for their needed	infrastructure. The Kauia planners want to build expensive houses on land	people to move here, but, us local people are supposed to have our taxes raised to pay for the new infrastructure. Please see that this is not the right thing to do. This is not what is meant by, "perpetuated in Righteousness." this	is the opposite of righteousness. Please put a moratorium on growth in our area until our community can decide what should be going on in it , instead of the developers. Our politicians are not prepared to deal with these high powered speculators from the mainland. It has happened too quickly and the local government and the Kauai people are being walked all over.	Community. Friends that were born and raised here say that the reefs are no community. Friends that were born and raised here say that the reefs are no longer pristine. The chemicals from golf courses and development are quickly causing them to be destroyed. There are very few fish compared to the past and the reefs are becoming dull looking. This is one of the major reasons	people come to our island. If you look at the problems created on the Noria coast of the Big island and the coast of Japan - you will not want our reefs to follow the same destruction.	Please do not change our agricultural land into residential land. If you feel it needs to change for some reason then it should be turned into
Page 4	ruu Malama U Kane I Olo Uma January 27, 2006 has designated the project site as residential community and the proposed	project is consistent with this vision for the area. The proposed project does not affect Waikomo Stream nor does it have any jurisdiction over its use.	16) We appreciate your concern about the worldwide lack of natural resources. The Draft EIS for the Village at Po'ipū will assess all potential impacts on the natural environment and propose necessary mitigation measures to protect natural resources. As discussed in #11 above, the	project metudes parks, archaeological preserves, and open space areas. According to the State Data Book for 2004, roughly only 4.1 percent of all land on Kaua'i is actually designated for urban uses. The vast majority of the island is designated as conservation (56.1 percent) and agriculture (39.4 percent) by the State Land Use Commission. Less than one percent is	designated as Rural. ¹ The severe lack of land designated for urban or residential uses unfortunately contributes to the limited housing supply and lack of affordable housing on Kaua'i.	17) We acknowledge your concern about the affordability of recent residential developments on Kaua'i. The proposed project will contain a wide-range of housing types, from multi-family to various single family lot sizes, to help target various affordability ranges. The Trust is also working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to meet its remaining affordable housing requirements for the proposed project.	Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.	Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	Hill August Kimi Yuen Associate	cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\Community-01.doc	Carcuater noning and one, resumated Acreage of Land Use Districts, by Islands: December 31, 2004." State of Hawai'' Data Book 2004. Available online at http://www3.hawaii.gov/DBEDT/images/User_FilesImages/databook/db04/sec06_a1885.pdf

January 27, 2006 Mr. Alan Souza 5119 Hoʻona Road Kõloa, Hawaiʻi 96756	 RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipu, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road) Dear Mr. Souza: Thank you for your letter dated August 23, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments. Excerpts from your letter which bear responses are italicized below: 	In the past there were many historic/archaeological sites bulldozed over on weekends when the authorities were not working. Our client and the lessees of the properties upon which archaeological sites were damaged or destroyed have been working with SHPD on appropriate corrective action. The agreement is awaiting final approval. We realize the severity of these actions and therefore, to ensure the long-term protection of important archaeological sites, the Village at Po'ipū conceptual plan preserves all sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation in over 23 acres of archaeological preserves. In addition, the project will preserve and restore the historic rock walls along Hapa Road.	I am concerned that even if Poipu/Koloa were to grow as much as the developers have planned, there is little or no planning for infrastructure. Technical studies have been conducted to assess all necessary infrastructure and roadway improvements for the Village at Po'ipū project. All on- and off-site infrastructure costs for the proposed project will be paid for by the developers. Drinking water, water quality, and runoff are a major concern to our community.	Numerous technical studies have been conducted to assess the potential impacts of the Village at Po'ipū on the natural environment. These are discussed in Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the Draft EIS. With regards to drinking water, potable water demand for the project will be reduced by installing a separate irrigation system using non-potable water for irrigating landscaping in common areas, the multi-family residential area and the larger single-family lots. The non-potable water system will be supplied by a private system to conserve potable water.
HAWAILI	WM. Frank Brandt, FASLA CHARMAN THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA PREATREN R. STAN DINGMA, ÁSLA EXECUTRE VICE PREATBEN RUSSEL 7.3. CHINGI, ASLA EXECUTRE VICE PREATBENT VINESET SHOUGHUN	James Lenowan ACP Provent Ann Orrect Gever Musecure James Associate Tost Server 1, Hos, ASLA Associate Reverver 7, Hos, ASLA Associate Kerver Vennewa, ASLA	Howaruti Onrec 100) Rame Stram AB Trans, 2011 650 Howaru, Hawari Well 344 Francing Johan 251 561 France (800) 323 361 France (800) 323	 UI Annow Chema Sham Huo, Jiaozo Chema Sham Tuo, Jiaozo Chema Sham Pase (2005 94)-4050 E-Mair (2005 94)-4050 E-Mair (2005 94)-4050 E-Mair (2007 94)-2500 Free (3001 34)-2500 Free (3001 34)-2500 Free (3001 34)-2500 Free (3001 34)-2500 Free (3001 34)-2500
OPEN SPECIAL TREATMENT PUBLIC & CULTURAL DISTRICT OPEN SPACE. Koloa / poipu does not have the ability to handle this much new development. There are places on the island that would be appropriate to put in housing that would not put the culture and environment in danger. That development should be affordable for the local residents and their kids not just for mainland people that want to move here.	Thank you for your time and consideration. Sincerely Alap Souza 5119 Hoona Rd. Koloa, Kauai, Hi 96756 (808) 742-9380 alansouza@mac.com			

|

.

	City or	City Manager (707) 822:5953	Environmental Services 822·8184	Police 822-2428	Recreation 822-7091
oposes to he project	ARCAUA	Community Development 822-5955	Finance 822-5951	Public Works 822-5957	Transportatio 822-3775
asins will e. These n the site ed in the	736 F Street Arcata, CA 95521		- V	in 2 5 2005 22 Au	just 2005
would not ordable for 2 here.	Kimi Yuen PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813	Stacey Wo Eric A. Knu P.O. Box 7 Kalaheo, H	ng idsen Trust 59 I 96741		
oject and Complete	RE: Village at Po	ipu Environmental Impac	t Statement Preparatio	n Notice [EISPN]	
with the	Dear Friends of Kaua'i:				
site as a servation es which access to Trust is emaining	I was recently fortunate to I development, including the standpoint of land use reg such a large area segregat contiguous Knudsen prope addressed as a result of se	ave the opportunity to sta large surrounding areas lation in California, I was ced, to the point that the c rty would not be address ogregating the Knudsen T	ay in Po`ipu and visit the previously owned by the surprised to see the are umulative impacts of a ed. Clearly, there <u>are</u> rust property into so ma	t areas proposed for the Knudsen Trust. Fr alysis of the develop <i>II</i> of the development cumulative impacts n any smaller projects.	le subject om the ment of on the of being
the EIS.	Individually, each of the pr picture in this geographic a the Public Safety of reside	ojects deal with the same area, these impacts are co nts and visitors. These is	significant issues, and umulatively significant t ssues include the follow	when looking at the I o the entire communi ing:	igger ty, and to
	 Water supply, not onl Sewage disposal, <i>curr</i> odors. Capacity to m adrainage, which witho actional states to a archeological states to a storm water quality, <i>c</i> public; roads and traffic are a 6. solid waste disposal; rue action, the issue that f regarding, the cuttural heri those individuals who have accurate and complete rev given to identifying and pro in the heart of Povipu. The undertaken as part of the solid vide a part of the solid substances and provibut to be accurated as part of the order of the order of the solid substances. 	Y for drinking but also for entity provided by a privat eet full build out must be eut some kind of adequate the ocean; as a result of drainage rur and, and, creational experience for rist engaged me is the pr lage of the native people is of potential cultural v tecting sites significant to lieve that an independen morionmental analysis of protonmental analysis of	fire suppression; e contractor is already a analyzed; e detention, will run thro n off, will seriously effec to addressed in a con both residents and gue otection of, and enforce alues. Some compreh the remaining native pe the remaining native pe the stubiect protect and	t problem in terms of ugh existing commur ugh existing commur t wildlife, vegetation aprehensive manner, sts alike. Action has been take entits and an approp ensive consideration ople, particularly thos ensive sof this area i	lownwind ittes and and the and the lations n against iate, must be e that are not onterty
unity-01b.doc				0	
				Po'iou	Page 1 of 1 EISPN050819

Page 2 Mr. Alan Souza January 27, 2006 Water quality and runoff are important concerns as well. The project proposes t use detention basins and bioswales to help slow and filter runoff from the projesite using native plants and landscaping. In addition, the detention basins wi be designed to prevent any net increase in peak runoff from the site. Thes mitigative measures are expected to improve runoff water quality from the sit compared with existing conditions. Additional details are provided in th preliminary engineering report attached as an appendix to the Draft EIS.

æ

There are places on the island that would be appropriate to put in housing that would no put the culture and environment in danger. That development should be affordable for the local residents and their kids not just for mainland people that want to move here. We recognize your concern regarding the location of the proposed project and the potential impacts of the project to the culture and the environment. Complete discussions and supporting technical and cultural impact studies have been prepared and included in the EIS. The proposed project is consistent with the Kaua'i General Plan Update from 2000 which identifies the project site as a residential community. All archaeological sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation will be preserved in archaeological preserves which will be accessible to the public. Native Hawaiian gathering rights and access to the sites will also be respected during and after construction. The Trust is working with the County of Kaua'i Housing Agency to meet its remaining affordable housing requirements.

Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.

Sincerely,

PBR HAWAII

Kimi Yuếr Associate

cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\Community-01b

And finally, the County Planning staff report [for the July 26, 2005 Hearing] conditioned the approval on doing subsequent studies of almost every issue where I believe that there are significant impacts, both individually, and cumulatively. I have enclosed a summary of a landmark appellate court case in California [Sundistrom vs. County of Mendocino, 1988 – 202 Cal. App. 3d 299] where the County of Mendocino **lost** the litigation because the County of do not "first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's potential significant environmental effects". These issues, not only for each development, but for the entire "plan" must be addressed <u>prior</u> to approval of any project. There may be significant liabilities accruing to the County of Kaua'I and State of Hawai'i by virtue of not addressing these issues prior to approval.

My visits to Hawai'l are based on seeing and being able to enjoy <u>all</u> of the resources of the Islands, including the cultural resources and sacred sites of the indigenous people, and there are many reasons why I do not return to Oahu or Maui. I hope that a comprehensive analysis of all the cumulative impacts associated with this project and the balance of the Knudsen properties will be addressed in a way that will protect the reasons why people do come to, and prefer Kaua'l, its people and all of its resources. Thank you in advance for your consideration of my comments. Those of us here on the mainland will be looking forward to being kept advised of the future actions on this project and the balance of the properties. Please add me to any mailing lists associated with these developments. If there is a charge please advise me and I will be happy to pto the materials.

DWCLOWW Tom Conton, Director

Tom Conlon, Director Community Development Department

Attach: Sundstrom Vs. County of Mendocino – Except from the CEQA Deskbook. 1999 Second Edition, Solano Press Books

 cc: State Land Use Commission ATTN: Anthony Ching P.O. Box 2359 Honolulu, HI 96804 Office of Environmental Quality Control 235 S. Beretania St., Suite 702 Honolulu, Hi 96813

County of Kaua'l Planning Department 4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 Lihue, HI 96766-1326

Billy Kaohelauli' I Terrie Hayes P.O. Box 941 Koloa, HI 96756 The Garden Island P.O. Box 231 Lihu`e, HI 96766 Page 2 of 2 Po'ipuEISPN050819

be affected" means the area in which significant effects would occur either directhy or indirectly as a result of the project. Guidelines sec. 15360.

CEQA's Mandatory Findings of Significance

CEQA sets forth certain mandatory

A potential impact will be conto have a significant effect. Also, if the project would have environmental Guidelines specify that a project with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource will have a sigtal effects are individually limited rent, and reasonably anticipated future projects, the project would be deemed effects that will directly or indirectly cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, the project would be deemed to have a significant effect. Guidelines sec. 15065. In addition, the nificant effect on the environment. but cumulatively considerable, when viewed in connection with past, curtially degrade environmental quality or reduce fish or wildlife habitat; cause a inate a plant or animal community; reduce the numbers or range of a rare, threatened, or endangered species; eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory; or achieve short-term goals to the disadvantage of long-term goals. If the project's possible environmen-According to CEQA, a project would fish or wildlife habitat to drop below self-sustaining levels; threaten to clim-Code sec. 21083; Guidelines sec. 15065. ronment if the project would substanfindings of significance. Pub. Res. have a significant effect on the envi Guidelines sec. 15064.5.

A potential impact with be considered significant if a Lead Ageney determines that any of the mandatory findings of significance apply

Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino: Court Establishes Rules for Initial Studies and Negative Declarations

In Sundstrom v. County of Mendocino (1988) 202 Cal. App. 3d 296, court interpretation of Negative Declarations came to a head. An individual citizen challenged the Mendocino County Board of Supervisors' decision to approve construction of a sewage treatment plant to serve an existing development consisting of a small motel, restaurant, and filling station, to which a larger motel, a restaurant, and would be addeed.

The county had prepared an Initial Study supporting a Negative Declaration for the proposed project. The Initial Study/Negative Declaration conditioned certain mitigation measures to be developed and implemented at a later date. One of the reasons the Initial Study/ Negative Declaration concluded there would be no potential for signifi-Study and offer the applicant to prepare a future hydrologic study to evaluate the project's potential consignifidownslope properties. This future study was required to recommend appropriate mitigation measures for the significant impacts reported. The Court of Appear Inield that the Initial Study/Negative Declaration violated CEQA. The court stated that, before approving the project, the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's

county public works department and the Coastal Commission had recthe county had included a permit condition requiring subsequent posal plan might not be achievable. The court also noted that both the The court held that the Initial Study/Negative Declaration was county approval of a sludge disposal plan, the court found it inadeommended project denial until the potential problems could be solved. potential significant environmental effects. The court concluded that the success of the mitigation determined by a later study was uncertain; therefore, the county could not have reasonably concluded that analysis of significant effects to a study the applicant was preparing in the future was an inappropriate delegation of its CEQA duties. Although quate because there was evidence that an environmentally sound distion violated CEQA. The court stated that, before approving the project, the county must first resolve the uncertainties regarding the project's the project would not have the potential to have significant environmental effects. Also, the court found that the county's deferral of the

The court need that the finitial subtyinggarve becausation was ultimately invalid because of a lack of substantial evidence supporting the county's finding of no potential for significant impart. The court stated that the county had "evaded its responsibility to engage in comprehensive environmental review." This fact pattern and associated court ruling have been used as a reference guide for assessing the adequacy of mitigation included in Initial Study/Negative Declarations. An Initial Study/Negative Declaration that refies on a future study to An Initial Study/Negative Declaration that refies on a future study to ductermine if there are potentially significant effects is considered a failure to comply with CEQA. Chapter 2 Prohiminary Review, Exemptions, Negative Declarations 39

January 27, 2006	Mr. Tom Conlan, Director Community Development Department City of Arcata	736 F Street Arcata, CA 95521	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Mr. Conlon:	Thank you for your letter dated August 22, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	With regard to your concerns that the analysis of the project's potential impacts does not include the cumulative impacts of all development on contiguous Knudsen Trust property, the technical reports used to assess the project's impact cover all known projects in the surrounding area as well as regional issues and	incorporate them into the analyses. Further, build-out of the Village at Po'ipū community will take place over a number of years. By addressing all three phases of Village at Po'ipū in one document, the Draft EIS aims to identify the cumulative short- and long-term impacts of the entire project, rather than as	segregated projects. The Draft EIS includes analyses of potential regional impacts and necessary	mitigation measures on the natural and human environment, including: 1) <i>Water supplu</i> : Section 4.8.1 of the Draft EIS provides an analysis of the	potential impacts specific to the project. In order to reduce potable water demand, a separate private irrigation system will be developed to provide non-potable water for irrigating landscaping in common areas, the multi-	tamily residential area and the larger single family lots. The complete preliminary engineering report is included as an appendix in the EIS and the proposed water system will be designed to supply sufficient capacity	for both potable water and for fire suppression. The County Department of Water (DOW) has completed their Water Plan 2020 which considers island-wide and regional water system needs. The plan is available online at the DOW's website: http://www.kauaiwater.org/	ce_waterplan2020app.asp.	
PBR	LAND PLANNING LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES	WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA	CHARMAN THOMAS S. WITTEN, ASLA President R. Stan Duncan, ASLA	EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT RUSSELL Y.J. CHUNG, ASLA EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT	VINCERT SHIGEKUN PENCIAL JAMES LEONARD, AICP PENCEN HILO OFFICE	GRANT MURAKAMI, AICP Senor Assocure Tox Scremen, AICP	Associate Raymon T Huai, ASLA Associate Kevin Nisurawa, ASLA Asociate		HONDILLI ÖFFICK 1001 Bismop Synthe	ASB TOVER XUTE 650 AGE TOVER XUTE 650 HORGALL, HARANT 96413-1454 The (808) 521-5631 PAXE (808) 523-1402 F-MAIL Syndhill @ phthawait.com	Huro Oracia 101 Auron Smerr	HILD. ALCONCENTER AUTR. AU HILD., HAWAT 99720-4902 Tra: (1903) 961-4939 E.M.a.: ptuble@favanet E.M.a.: ptuble@favanet	WALLING OPPORT 2123 KANNES STREAME WALLING HAWAT 96703-2214 The, (180) 242-2075 FAN, (180) 242-2072 FAN, (180) 242-2072 FAN, (180) 242-2072	
				ř.							Ì			
							·							
CEQA Deskbook	1999 (Second) Edition Corpright - 1999 by Konald J. Pass. Albert 1. Nerson, and Kenneth M. Poppdan	All rights reserved.	Printed in the United States of America. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical,	photocopical, recorded, or otherwise, withiut the prior written approval of the authors and the publisher.	April 1999	Solano Press Books Post Office Rox 773. Post Office Rox 7468 Lefephone (800) 951-9573 factoring (2707) 585-1109	email sphenks@solano.com internet www.solano.com	Cover design by Christy Anderson, Jones & Stokes Associates, Inc. and Solano Press Books Book design by Solano Press Rooks	Index by Paul Kish. Robnert Park, California Printed by Publishers Press.	Salt Lake (Tity, FUal) ISBN 6.923956.584	IMPORTANT NOTICE	Before you rely on the information in this book, please he sure you have the latest edition and are aware that your changes in statutes, guidelines, or case law may have gove into effect since the date of	publication. The book, moreover, provides general information about the law. Readers should consult their own attorneys before relying on the representations found herein.	

Page 3 Mr. Tom Conlon	January 27, 2006 January 27, 2006 resources. Our client and the lessees of the properties upon which archaeological sites were damaged or destroyed have been working with SHPD on appropriate corrective action. The agreement is awaiting final approval.	Extensive archaeological studies, as well as data recovery and preservation plans have been conducted for the entire property. All of the archaeological sites recommended for preservation to date as well as those recommended for possible preservation will be preserved as shown in Figure 16 of the Draft ElS. Fifty-foot buffers have been provided around each site and continuous	archaeological preserves have been created around large complexes and where multiple sites are located close to one another. In total, the areas set aside for archaeological sites and preserves constitute over 23 acres. We appreciate your inclusion of information regarding <i>Sundstrom vs. Mendocino</i> . Our client is in the process of complying with conditions of the zoning	amendments, including the proposed improvements to Hapa Road. No development will take place that does not comply with these conditions. For this reason, the Draft EIS and technical studies prepared for the proposed project address not only the potential impacts and necessary mitigation measures of the Village at Po'ipū project, but other projects taking place or planned in the Po'ipū- Koloa community as well. Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.	Sincerely, PBR HAWAII	Kimi Yuén Associate cc: Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust	O:\job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\Community-03.doc
Page 2 Mr. Tom Conlon January 27, 2006	2) Setuage disposal: Section 4.8.2 of the Draft EIS includes updated information on the improvements proposed to manage wastewater generated by the Village at Po'ipū project. The Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility (PWRF) is currently undergoing several upgrades to increase capacity and improve effluent cruality and other control and her here capacity and	accommodate the result of the properties of the second of the second of the residued to accommodate the residuation of the village at Po'pū. The Trust will contribute its fair-share cost for these improvements which will give PWRF sufficient capacity to accommodate full build-out of the Village at Po'pū. Additional information is provided in the preliminary engineering report attached as an appendix to the EIS.	3) Drainage and Stormwater Quality: The preliminary engineering report prepared for the project has taken into account regional drainage areas and reasonably foreseen projects in the area in its calculations. Discussion and analysis is provided in Section 4.8.3 of the Draft EIS and the full report is provided in an appendix.	5) <i>Roads and traffic</i> : A Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) for the proposed project has been prepared and will be included as an appendix in the Draft EIS. Similar to the other technical reports prepared for the project, this TIAR accounts for all reasonably foreseen developments in the area and regional traffic projections. A summary of the TIAR and an analysis of the impacts of the proposed project are provided in Section 4.3 of the Draft EIS.	6) Solid tunste disposal: Section 4.8.5 of the Draft EIS includes information on solid waste disposal facilities, and the impact of the project on landfill capacity. The 2000 Kaua'i General Plan Update provides regional analysis of solid waste disposal. It is available online at the Kaua'i Planning Department website: http://www.kauai.gov/Default.aspx?tabid=130.	7) Recreation: The Village at Po'ipū project proposes to significantly expand recreational opportunities for the region. As shown on the Conceptual Master Plan (Figure 3 of the Draft EIS), the Village at Po'ipū will provide 12 acres of parks and open spaces and over 23 acres of archaeological preserves, as well a an extensive network of pedestrian paths, including the improvement of Hapa Road as a shared bicycle and pedestrian path. This far exceeds the County requirements for a project of this size and will significantly enhance the recreational experience for both residents and	visitors alike. We appreciate your concerns about the protection and enforcement of existing regulations regarding the protection of culturally significant archaeological

August 23, 2005

PBR Hawaii 1001 Bishop Street ASB Tower, Suite 650 Honolulu, HI 96813

Eric A. Knudsen Trust P.O. Box 759 Kalaheo, HI 96813 Re: Proposed Development, Village at Po'ipu; Tax Key Numbers: 2-8-13:01, 2-8-14:01, 2-8-14:03, 2-8-14:04, 2-8-14:19, 2-8-14:37 and Lot 19-B

Dear Kimi Yuen and Stacy Wong:

The purpose of this letter is to express my concerns regarding the above referenced development proposal and outline areas of concern that should be addressed in the environmental analysis associated with this proposal.

A complete environmental analysis of the project proposed as well as those envisioned projects reasonably foreseen in the area should be prepared such that the cumulative effects may be identified and mitigation measures incorporated into all projects. It does not seem appropriate to bifurcate the developments envisioned in the Poipu Beach area such that projects are reviewed on only an individual basis when in fact multiple development proposals each cumulatively contributing to overall environmental effects are not reviewed in the Poipu Beach area are not reviewed in their totality. A Specific Land Use Plan should be developed for the dovelopment plans into the Specific Plan, each contributing to the mitigation of the total environmental effects resulting from the multiple envisoned projects.

Among these cumulative effects that must be reviewed in their total context are sacred and cultural sites and related protections and mitigations, surface water run-off, human waste disposal, solid waste disposal, potable water supplies, traffic, recreation, title issues, and housing affordability. An incredible number of sacred and cultural archaeological sites have been identified in the Po'ipu Beach area in the Archeological Inventory Survey (Hammatt, 1990). The location of these sites appears to conflict with the development proposed. Abupua'a divisions of land are evident in the project area and the greater vicinity and must be addressed in the context of all heiau and ancient pathways connecting these sites. In exchange for development approvals, mitigation measures requiring the dedication of onsite and off-site areas (such off-site areas are within adjacent lands proposed or contemplated for development) should be required with such dedications including a

connection of land areas from Po'ipu Beach landward to include heiaus, agricultural areas associated with ancient culture, and pathway areas connecting these sites. Such dedications to a Land Trust will ensure these sacred sites are preserved and protected <u>in their ancient context</u> for all future Hawaiian generations, and to educate island visitors to the ways of the ancient Hawaiians. Dedication of individual sites within a development toses the continuity of how these sites were historically used. Provisions should be made to access these sites in a comprehensive manner and such walking access should include the Kane i olo uma as a center piece.

Surface water run-off must be addressed in an area-wide manner, not on project by project basis. The run-off calculations for the impervious surfaces resulting from all the envisioned or reasonably foreseen projects in the area must be included in ensure that infrastructure improvements, detention basins, or other improvements are incorporated to prohibit flooding of downstream areas.

The sewage treatment plant does not appear adequate to meet the needs of even the current number of households in the Po'ipu Beach area, as odors and plant problems persist. Development approvals should not be issued until an analysis of the sewage treatment plant's potential for additional connections has been reviewed and certified. Such analysis should include the lands proposed or reasonably foreseen for development in the area. Solid waste disposal is an important component of any development proposal but is a much more significant aspect on an island like Kaua'i where land is scare. A comprehensive review of the capacity at the solid waste disposal area proposed for use for the developments in the area should be included in any environmental analysis. Such analysis should include a comprehensive review of all development planned for in the General Plan.

Potable water supplies should be address in the environmental review of this proposal, yet such analysis should be expanded to include proposed and reasonably foreseen developments in the Po'ipu Beach area. Use of groundwater supplies should be carefully reviewed in light of the potential to draw down groundwater or aquifer supplies resulting in the loss of water for current users. Well water contamination form golf course pesticide and agricultural uses should also be addressed. Traffic issues hold perhaps the greatest harm to the Garden Island way of life. The development of up to 500 homes resulting from the Village at Po'ipu project, as well as the proposed and reasonably foreseen developments in the area, requires the cumulative analysis of traffic impacts. Adjacent condominium development, along with the proposed single-family and multi-family homes will cumulative effect the traffic patterns and circulation in a area already experiencing traffic delays. The preparation of a Specific Plan for the Po'ipu Beach area is warranted to address the location of future roads and road expansions on a regional level. Hapa Road has historically been used as a walking path and the character of this road should remain. The location of new roads to handle
January 27, 2006	Mr. Joel Canzoneri 298 Esther Lane Arcata, CA 95521	RE: Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice Eric A. Knudsen Trust Village at Po'ipū, Kaua'i TMKs: 2-8-13: 01, and 2-8-14: 01, 02, 03, 04, 19, 37, and Lot 19-B (Hapa Road)	Dear Mr. Canzoneri:	Thank you for your letter dated August 23, 2005 regarding the Village at Po'ipū Environmental Impact Statement Preparation Notice (EISPN). As the consultant for the applicant, Eric A. Knudsen Trust, we are responding to your comments.	We acknowledge your concern about the cumulative impacts of all developments envisioned in the Poʻipū Beach area. The technical reports used to assess the project's impact cover all known projects in the surrounding area and incorporate them into each of their analyses. Sections 3.0 and 4.0 of the Draft ElS includes discussions of the potential impacts of the project, both regional and specific, and the necessary mitigation measures with regard to a wide range of	environmental, natural, social, economic concerns. These include but are not limited to archaeological sites, cultural impacts, traffic, noise, air quality, surface water runoff, sewage and solid waste disposal, water systems, recreation, and housing affordability.	With regard to a Specific Land Use Plan for the Po'ipū Beach area, the planning system in Hawai'i and Kaua'i differs from that in California. The framework for	In addition to the General Planning in Kaua'i consists primarily of the General Plan and Development Planning in Kaua'i consists primarily of the General Plan and Development Plan. The County of Kaua'i prepared an update to its General Plan in 2000. It includes a regional as well as island-wide analysis of the potential growth and future development needs of the island and its communities. It is a public process that involved widespread community participation to develop a vision for the island and its communities and provides direction for that growth. It includes requirements for future infrastructure, open space, housing and community character needs as well as detailed land use plans and historic resource maps for the five main planning districts on Kaua'i. It is available online at the Kaua'i Planning Department website: http://www.kauai.gov/Default.aspx?tabid=130. In addition to the General Plan, the County also prepares development plans for specific planning regions on the island. Unfortunately, the Po'ipū-Kõloa-Kalãheo Development Plan was last updated in the 1970s and is outdated. Therefore the
PBR	LAND PLANRING LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES	WM. FRANK BRANDT, FASLA <i>Chaaran</i> Thomas S. Witten, ASLA <i>President</i>	R. Stan Duncan, ASLA Executive Vice-President	RUSSELL Y.J. CHUNG, ASLA Executive Vice-President Vincent Shiceruni Principal	JAMES LERNARD, AICP PRINCIPAL HILO OFFICE SEAVER AND	Associat Kryn Neinkwy, ASLA Associat		Howotar Orrect (01) Bioge Starts (38) Towas Starts 663: 3444 Ta: 600 S3314601 Fa: 600 S331400 Fa: 600 S331400 Fa: 600 S331400 Fa: 010 Orberts (101 Augest Starts (101 Augest Starts) (101 Augest Sta
the expected increase in traffic is best handles on a regional basis with exactions required from landowners benefiting form additional development.	Recreation demand resulting from the construction of new housing units should be included in the environmental analysis for this and future proposed and reasonably foreseen developments. The County Park at Po'ipu Beach is in a state of overuse at this time and the additional demand model by the 500 new broasing of the Villand of	Provide an use additional actionate posed by the 2000 new notating units of the vitage at Po'ipu and the unknown amount of units generated y adjacent and reasonably foreseen development sin the area would seem to require the dedication of additional recreational opportunities and facilities at Po'ipu Beach.	The ownership of the land in question as well as surrounding lands should be reviewed in the environmental analysis. A chain-of-title should be required and incorporated into the	analysis to document the legal right of the landowner to propose the development on the above referenced parcels. Chains-of-title should also be required of adjacent developments when they are proposed to verify ownership as well.	Housing affordability issues should be addressed in the environmental analysis for this project. Median incomes must be identified and housing opportunities for Hawaiians should be incorporated into the project. More specifically, the integrity of the single-family neighborhood must be maintained by not allowing the vacation rental of homes in the single-family residential district. Such misuse of the single-family zone tends to degrade the neighborhood and contributes to the loss of continuity of livable communities by creating transient housing for people with no vested interest in the community.	I sincerely thank-you for the opportunity to comment on the scope of the EISPN. Please consider these my initial comments, as I look forward to review the Draft EIR when prepared and available for public review. It is my belief that developments contributing to the character of the Garden Island and preserving the rich cultural heritage of the	Hawaiian community can coexist, resulting in a better project for our welfare and the good of future Hawaiian generations.	Sincerely, Joel Canzoneri Diffice of Environmental Quality Control

Page 2 Mr. Joel Canzoneri January 27, 2006 County's General Plan provides specific plans for this region and currently serves its purpose. The 2000 General Plan Land Use Map designates the project site for residential community. Therefore, the proposed Village at Po'ipū is in compliance with the County's long-range growth plans and vision for this region.

The following responses address your concerns about the impacts to specific resources and infrastructure:

We appreciate your concern for the protection of archaeological sites. We have carefully considered the impacts the proposed project will have on archaeological and cultural resources; therefore, archaeological inventory surveys have been completed for the entire site and all significant sites recommended for preservation and possible preservation will be preserved on site. They will be protected in over 23 acres of archaeological preserves and will be accessible to the public for cultural practices. Internal circulation networks will be designed to provide both visual connections and direct access to the sites. Interpretive signage will be provided at the archaeological preserves and the preserves will be landscaped with native plants. Additional discussion and descriptions of data recovery and protection plans are provided in Section 4.1 of the Draft EIS. With regard to your concerns about water runoff, the preliminary engineering report has taken into account regional drainage areas and reasonably foreseen projects in the area in its calculations. Discussion and analysis is provided in Section 4.8.3 of the Draft EIS and the full report is provided in an appendix. In summary, all runoff generated onsite will be collected and routed to detention basins and bioswales using native plants and landscaping to help filter and slow runoff, thus improving existing drainage conditions and impacts on downstream areas.

Section 4.8.2 of the Draft EIS includes updated information on the improvements proposed to manage wastewater generated by the Village at Po'ipū project. The Po'ipū Water Reclamation Facility (PWRF) is currently undergoing several upgrades to increase capacity and improve effluent quality and has been designed to accommodate the neighboring Kiahuna Mauka project in addition to the Village at Po'ipū. The Trust will contribute its fair-share cost for these improvements which will give PWRF sufficient capacity to accommodate full build-out of the Village at Po'ipū. Additional information is provided in the preliminary engineering report attached as an appendix to the EIS.

Page 3 Mr. Joel Canzoneri January 27, 2006 Section 4.8.5 of the Draft EIS includes information on solid waste disposal facilities, and the impact of the project on landfill capacity. The County General Plan provides regional analysis of solid waste disposal.

minimize impacts on potable water supplies. Section 4.8.1 of the Draft EIS provides an analysis of the potential impacts specific to the project. In order to We have carefully planned the water system for the Village at Po'ipü project to reduce potable water demand, a separate private irrigation system will be developed to provide non-potable water for irrigating landscaping in common areas, the multi-family residential and larger single family lots. The complete preliminary engineering report is included as an appendix in the EIS. With respect to your concerns about water contamination from golf course pesticides and agricultural uses, neither of these uses is proposed for the Village at Po'ipū. The County Department of Water (DOW) has completed their Water Plan 2020 which considers island-wide and regional water system needs. The plan is website: DOW's http://www.kauaiwater.org/ce_waterplan2020app.asp. the at online available

We acknowledge your concerns about traffic issues on Kaua'i. A Traffic Impact Analysis Report (TIAR) for the proposed project was prepared and is included in its entirety as an appendix in the Draft EIS. Like the other technical reports, this TIAR accounts for all reasonably foreseen developments in the area and regional traffic concerns. A summary of the TIAR and an analysis of the impacts of the proposed project are provided in Section 4.3 of the Draft EIS. The project also includes restoring Hapa Road to its historic use as a *mauka-makai* pedestrian path and improving it per County ordinance to be a shared bicycle-pedestrian path. We understand your concerns regarding the overuse of Po'ipū Beach Park. This facility is County-owned and operated, and therefore not within the jurisdiction of the Knudsen Trust. However, the Village at Po'ipū project proposes to significantly expand recreational opportunities for the region. As shown on the Conceptual Master Plan (Figure 3 of the Draft EIS), the Village at Po'ipū will provide 12 acres of parks and open spaces and over 23 acres of archeological Dreserves, as well a an extensive network of pedestrian paths, including the improvement of Hapa Road as a shared bicycle and pedestrian path. This far exceeds the County requirements for a project of this size.

In response to your inquiry regarding land ownership, as discussed in Section 2.1.2 of the Draft EIS, the Eric A. Knudsen is the recorded fee owner of all of the parcels included in the Village at Po'ipü except for Lot 19-B (Hapa Road), which is owned by the County of Kaua'i. The project site was part of a single 6,500-acre property purchased by Annie Sinclair Knudsen in 1872. She later gave most of

Mr. Joel Canzoneri January 27, 2006 Page 4

the lands including all of Village at Po'ipū project site to her two sons, Eric A. and August Knudsen, in the early 1920s to hold in trust.

We recognize your concerns about housing affordability issues. A market study conducted for the Village at Po'ipū identifies the impact this will have on purposes, and therefore will not include any resort uses. All residents will be members of the Homeowners' Association and will have a vested interest in the housing opportunities on Kaua'i. The Draft EIS provides further discussion regarding housing issues in Section 4.7.2. The full market study will be included as an appendix in the Draft EIS. Although homes cannot be set aside specifically for persons of Native Hawaiian ancestry due to discrimination laws, approximately half of the future residents of Village at Po'ipū are expected to be current Hawai'i residents. The Village at Po'ipū is intended for residential community.

Thank you for reviewing the EISPN. Your comments will be included in the EIS.

Sincerely,

PBR HAWAII

le le Kimi Yuen

Associate

Mr. Anthony Ching/State Land Use Commission Ms. Genevieve Salmonson/OEQC Mr. Stacey Wong/Eric A. Knudsen Trust ប្ល

O:\Job22\2217.05 Village at Poipu Entitlements-DEIS\Reports\EIS\Draft EIS\Response Letters\Community-02.doc